Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Company No: 3454611

Directors Report for the Year Ended 31st December 2013

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013
Principal activities, review of the business and future developments

The principal activity 1s that of a holding company and 1t 15 not envisaged that this will change 1n the
foreseeable future

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemption
provided by s 415A of the Companies Act 2006

Results and dividends

The profit for the yvear was £180 1m (2012 loss £232 8m) The Company released provisions against
investments of £180 1m (2012 provision £233 Om)

The director does not recommend the payment of a dividend to the holders of ordinary shares
(2012 £nil)

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial mstruments compnse of balances with group undertakings and preference
shares The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to raise finance for the Company’s
operations and to provide funding for the Company’s subsidianes

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review, the Company’s policy that no trading 1n
financial instruments shall be undertaken

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s transactions are all in sterling and therefore there 1s no foreign currency nisk to the
Company

Interest Rate Risk

There 1s no interest on loans with fellow group undertakings, therefore there 1s no interest rate risk

Directors
The following served as directors during (and unless otherwise indicated, throughout) the year
1. D Hangran (resigned 25 July 2013) -

E J Milner (appointed 25 July 2013)
B Pynnonen (appointed 25 July 2013)

19/05/2014
COMPANIES HOUSE
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Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Company No: 3454611

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31st December 2013 (continued)

Disclosure of information to Auditors
In accordance with s 418(2) of the Compames Act 2006 each of the directors
s 13 not aware of any relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware,
and

» has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information

On behalf of the Board
= y

E.J.Milner
Director

Date: 1 Ma\-j 2014




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements m
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that pennod In prepanng those financial statements, the directors are required to

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
¢ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume
that the Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregulanues




o Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-
MOGUL GLOBAL GROWTH LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited for the
year ended 31 December 2013 which comprise the Profit & Loss Account, the Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1| to 15 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
mught state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 3, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of'the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audtt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements  In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial informatwon in the
Directors Report to identify materal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or mconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Opmion on financial statements

In our opmion the financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2013
and of its profit for the year then ended,

e have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

o have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006




o Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FEDERAL-
MOGUL GLOBAL GROWTH LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Opmmion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

[n our opmion the information given mn the Directors' Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you 1f, in our opwnion

o adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returs adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

o the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with
the small companies regime and take advantage of the small companies exemption
from the requirement to prepare a Strategic Report or in preparing the Directors’
Report

Clmppte = Thlmdn. UK L7

Stuart Muskett

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Manchester

7 maY 5014




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Notes 2013 2012

£m £m

Exceptional operating income — provisions against fixed asset investments wntten back 3 1801 -
Exceptional operating expense — provisions against fixed asset investments - (233 0)
Operating income/(charges) 180 1 (233 0)
Operating income /(expense) 180 1 (233 0)
Net interest receivable 4 - 02
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 1801 (232 8)

Tax on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities 6 - -
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 180 1 (232 8)

A reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 1s given 1n Note 11 of the financial statements
All results have been denved from conunuing operations

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND 1L.OSSES

There are no recogmsed gains or losses other than the profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and loss for

the year ended 31 December 2012




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2013

FIXED ASSETS
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors falling due within one year
Cash at bank and 1n hand

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS — amounts falling due after more than one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Capital Redemption Reserve
Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

The financial statements on pages 6 to 13 were approved by the Board of Directors on ™

were signed on its behalf by

= S

E J Miiner
Dhrector

Notes

2013 2012
£m £m
888 1 708 0
888 1 708 0
333 333
333 333
921 4 7413
(544 0) (544 0)
3774 197 3
589 589
820 820
236 5 56 4
3774 197 3
2014 and

Y




Federal-Mogu! Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013

1. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies of the Company remain unchanged from previous years and are set out below
a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with applicable UK Accounting Standards and under
the historical cost convention

b) Deferred tax

The taxation charge 1s based on the result for the penied and takes into account taxation deferred because of
timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred tax 1s
recogmsed 1n respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result 1n an obhigation to pay more, or rnght to
pay less or to receive more, tax with the following exceptions

¢ Provision 1s made for gains on disposals of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets
only where, at the batance sheet date, there 15 a commitment to dispose of the replacement assets

o Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the director considers that 1t 1s more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are excepted to apply tn the perods 1n
which the tirmng differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

c} Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of transaction Any monetary assets
or liabilities denominated in foreign currency are retranslated at the year end rate Exchange differences on
transactions 1n foreign currencies are included in the profit and [oss account

d) Investments
Investments are held at cost less provision for impairment
2. Consolidation and related party disclosures

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking 1s Icahn Enterpnises L P, a company histed on the New York Stock
Exchange The Company 1s included in the consolidated financial statements of Icahn Enterpnses L P, which
are publicly available Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cash
flow statement under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 1 {revised 1996) The Company 1s also exempt
under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transachons with entities that
are part of the Icahn Enterpnses Group or investees of the Icahn Enterprises Group

The Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings are included 11 consolidated accounts for a larger group,
Federal-Mogul Corporation, drawn up to the same date in the same financial year and those accounts are drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Seventh Directive (83/349/EEC) or in a manner equivalent to
consolhidated accounts and consolidated annual reports so drawn up  Accordingly the Company, 1n accordance
with the exemption in s 401 of the Compantes Act, has not prepared consolidated financial statements The
financial statementg therefore contain information about Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited as an individual
company and not as a group




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013

3. Operating profit

(a) Exceptional expense / income - provisions against fixed asset investments

Following an impairment review of the Company’s investments, it was decided that provisions of £180 Im
made 1n previous years were no longer required and accordingly were released to the profit and loss account 1n

the current year {2012 charge £233 Om)

(b) Audit fees

The audit fees of £3,850 (2012 £3,800) were borne by a fellow group company dunng the year There were
audit fees and fees for other services payable to the Company’s auditor and 1ts associates durning the year in

respect of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings amounting to £0 3m (2012 £0 3m)

2013

4. Net interest recervable

2012
£m

Interest receivable from other compames within the Federal-Mogul Corporation Group
Interest payable to other companies within the Federal-Mogul Corporation Group

02

Net interest receivable

02

5. Directors and employees

The directors have not received emoluments n respect of thewr services as directors of the

(2012 £ml)

The Company has ne employees (2012 ml)

6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
{a) Analysis of charge / (credit ) in the period
There 15 no tax charge or credit for either the current year or prior year

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge / (credit) for period

Company

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s lower than (2012 — ugher than) the standard rate of

corporation tax 1n the UK (23 23%) (2012 24 5%) The differences are explained below

2013 2012
£m £m

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activitics before taxation 180 1 (232 8)
Profiv/(loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax 1n the UK of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 419 (57 0)
Effect of
UK UK transfer pricing adjustment 02 03
Group relief (claimed) / surrendered for mil payment (02) 0 4)
Non-taxable (release of provision)/provision against investments (419) 571

Current tax charge / (credit) for pertod (Note 6(a)) -




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013 (continued)
6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)
(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Company has unrecogmzed capital losses camed forward of £ml (2012 £14,700,000) the future recoverability of
which 1s uncertamn

No deferred tax has been provided for tax that may become payable 1if revalued assets were disposed of at their revalued
amounts

The Finance Act 2013 included changes which affect future tax charges The rate of corporation tax will reduce to 21%
from | Apnl 2014 and to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 The rate changes will impact the amount of future cash tax paymenis
made by the Company

7. Investments Subsidiary undertakings Total

Shares

£m £m

Cost
At 31 December 2012 1,4615 1,461 5
Disposal {39) 39
At 31 December 2013 1,457 6 1,457 6
Provisions
At 1 January 2013 (753 9) (153 5)
Provision released 1801 180 1
Release following disposal 39 39
At 31 December 2013 (569 5) (569 5)
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 8881 8881
At 31 December 2012 708 0 708 0

Details of the investments in whech the Company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are
disclosed below Advantage has been taken of the exemption in S410 of the Companies Act whereby, due to the large
number of undertakings 1n respect of which the Company would be required to make disclosure, disclosure has only been
made 1n respect of those undertakings whose results or financial position principally affect the financial statements

Name of Country of Holding Proportion For the year Aggregate amount of Profit or Nature of
Company incorporation of voting ending (*) capital and reserves at | (loss) for business
1f outside nghts and the end of its most the year

Great Britain shares held recent financial year
% £m £m
Federal- Ordinary 100 31122013 6717 3242 Automotive
Mogul Ltd shares Components

All subsidiary undertakings incorporated in Great Bnitam are registered in England and Wales

(*) Financial imformation taken from the latest audited financial statements

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment m value

In accordance with FRS11, the directors have compared the carrying value of investments to their value n use to the
Company The exercise undertaken at 31 December 2013 indicated that some investments were no longer impaired and
accordingly provisions of £180 1m were released 1n the current year (2012 impairment £233 Om)

The value 1n use has been denved from discounted cash flow projections using nominal discount rates consistent with

each applicable global industry sector, ranging from 11% to 12 5% (2012 12% to 13 5% on a pre-tax basis A long-term
growth rate of 2 5% has been assumed

10




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

8. Debtors 2013 2012
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year-

Amounts owed by fellow subsihary undertakings 333 333

9. Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 2013 2012
£m £m

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 08 08

Redeemable preference shares 543 2 5432

544 0 544 0

Preference shares 2013 2012
£m £m

Authorised preference share capital

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each

Authonsed — 1,150,000,000 1,150 ¢ 1,1500

Called up preference share capital 2013 2012
£m £m

Redeemable Preference shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid — 543,222,114 (2012 543,222,114) 5432 5432

Total called up preference share capital 543 2 543 2

The redeemable preference shares carry the following nghts

e prionty 10 any payment to the holders of any other class of shares on return of capital or winding up,

¢ voung rights par1 passu with ordinary shares,
e are redeemable at any tume at the option of the Company

On 30 January 2012 the Company redeemed £82m of preference shares owned by its immediate parent Federal-
Mogul Global Inc  The consideration for the redemption, which was paid on 31 January 2012, consisted of the

assignment of 1ntra-group loans amounting to £77 5m and cash of £4 Sm

10. Share capital
Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of £1 each

Authonised — 100,000,000

Called up share capital
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted and fully paid — 58,850,100

11

2013 2012
£fm £m
100 0 100 0
589 589




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

11. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Share Capttal Redemption Profit & Loss Total
Capital Reserve Account
£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2012 589 - 3712 4301
Transfer on Redemption of - 820 (82 0) -
Preference Shares
Loss for the year 2012 - - (232 8) (232 8)
At 31 December 2012 589 820 564 1973
Profit for the year 2013 - - 1801 180 1
At 31 December 2013 589 820 236 5 3774

12. Principal subsidiaries, associated undertakings and trade investments at 31 December 2013

Holding Compames Powder Metal Products

Federal-Mogul (T&N) Hong Kong Limuted Hong Kong Federal-Mogul Sintered Products Ltd UK

Federal-Mogul Limited ** UK

FDMIL. Holdings Ltd UK Systems Protection

Federal-Mogul UK Investments Ltd UK Federal-Mogul Japan KK Japan

Federal-Mogul SAS France Federal-Mogul Systems Protection SAS France
Federal-Mogul (Thailand) Limited Thailand

Powertrain

Federal-Mogul Bradford Ltd UK

Piston Rings (UK) Linuted UK Bearings

Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS — Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS —  France

Chasseneuil France Orleans

Federal-Mogul Operations France SAS —

Garennes France

Federal-Mogul Piston Segman (50%) # Turkey Sealing Products

Federal-Mogul Tzmut (42 5%) # Turkey Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Ltd UK

Dongsuh Industnal Company Ltd (50%) # South Korea Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems SAS France

Friction Products Engime Parts Aftermarket

Federal-Mogul Friction Products Ltd UK Federal-Mogul Aftermarket UK Ltd UK

Federal-Mogul Friction Products a s Czech Rep Federal-Mogul Aftermarket France SAS  France

Federal-Mogul Friction Products SAS France

Federal-Mogul Friction Products SA Spain

K-B Autosys Co Ltd (33 61%) # South Korea

Apart from FDML Holdings Ltd and Federal-Mogul UK Investments Ltd, the UK companies are constituted as
branches of Federal-Mogul Limited All are registered in England and Wales Investments in overseas comparnes
are held by subsidianes of Federal-Mogul Limited The companies are incorporated and operate principally in the
countries indicated Equity capital are wholly owned, unless otherwise shown, and ceonsist of ordinary shares

# Associated undertakings

** Directly owned by the Company

13. Related Party Transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption 1n FRS8, para 3¢, not to disclose transactions with other group
companies which meet the critena that all subsidiary undertakings which are party to the transactions are wholly

owned by the ultimate controlling parent.

There are no other related party transactions

12




Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

14, Ultamate and immediate holding undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Federal-Mogul Global LLC, a company registered in the USA  The ultimate
holding undertaking and controlling party i1s Icahn Enterprises L P, which 1s registered in the USA  Financial
statements of this company may be obtained from Icahn Enterprises L P, 767 Fafth Avenue, Suite 4700, New York,
NY 10153, USA

15. Composite Cross-Guarantee
Contingent liabilittes exist 1n respect of cross-guarantees given by the Company and certamn of its fellow UK

subsidiaries to support some of the UK banking faciliies At the year-end these facilities amounted to £l (2012
£ml)

13




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013
Commusston File Number 001-34029

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION

{Exact name of Registrant as specified in 1ts charter)

Delaware 20-8350090
(State or other jurisdiction of incorpoeration ar organisation) (TRS Emplayer 1 D No )

26555 Northwestern Highway
Southfield, Michigan 48033
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zap code)
Registrant’s telephone number Including area code (248) 354-7700

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act
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files) Yes 3 No O
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant 15 a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, 2 non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company See defimtion of * large accelerated
filer “accelernted filer” and ‘smaller reporiing company n Rule [2b-2 of the Exchange Act {check one}
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certamn statements contained or incorporated 1n thus Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not statements of histoncal fact constitute “Forward-Looking
Statements™ within the meanung of the Private Secunties Lingation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Reform Act'™)

Forward-looking statements grve current expectations or forecasts of future events Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,”
“may”™ “plan " “seek™ and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with discussions of future operaung or financial performance sigmify
forward-looking statements Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company™) also, frem time to ume, may provide oral or wntten forward-looking statements 1n
other matenals released to the public Such statements arc made n good faith by the Company pursuant to the “Safe Harbor™ provisions of the Reform Act

”

Any or all forward-tooking statements included i this report or 1n any other public statements may ulumately be incorrect Forward-looking statements may
mvolve known and unknown nsks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results, performance, expenence or achievements of the
Company to differ matenally from any future results, performance, experience or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements The
Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise

Listed below are some of the factors that conld potentially cause actual results to differ matenally from historical and expected future results Other factors
besides these histed here could also matenally affect the Company’s business

. Varations in current and anticipated future production velumes, financial condition, or operational circumstances of the Company’s significant
customers, particularly the world’s ongmal equipment manufacturers of commercial and passenger vehicles

. The Company’s ability to generate cost savings or manufactuning efficiencies to offset or exceed contractually or competiively required price
reductions or price reductions to obtain new bustness

. The Company’s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund its needs, including availamlity of borrowings under its vanous credit facilittes

. Fluctuations in the pnice and availabihty of raw matenals and other supplies used in the manutactunng and distnbution of the Company’s
products

. Matenal shortages, transportation system delays, or other difficulties in markets where the Company purchases supplies for the manufactunng
of 1ts products

. Sigmficant work stoppages, disputes, or any other difficulties in labor markets where the Company obtains materals necessary for the
manufacturing of uts products or where its products are manufactured, distnbuted or sold

. The Company's ability to increase its development of fuel cell, hybnd-clectric or other aliemative energy technologies :

. Changes 1n actuanal assumptions, mterest costs and discount rates, and fluctuations 1n the global securiies markets which directly impact the

valuation of assets and liabilities associated with the Company’s pension and other postemployment benefit plans

Vanous worldwide economic, pohitical and social factots, changes in economic conditions, currency fluctuations and devaluations, credit risks
th emerging markets, or political mstability in foreign countries where the Company has significant manufactuning operations, customers or
suppliers

. Legal actions and claims of undetermined ment and amount nvolving, among other things, product lability, patent infningement, warranty,
recalls of products manufactured or sold by the Company, and environmental and safety 1ssues mvolving the Company's products or facilines

. Legislative activities of governments, agencies, and similar orgamizations, both 1n the United States and in other countnies that may affect the
operations of the Company

. Physical damage to, or loss of, sigmificant manufacturing or distnibution property, plant and equipment due to fire, weather or other factors
beyond the Company’s control

. Possible terronist attacks or acts of aggression or war, that could exacerbate other nsks such as slowed vehicle production or the availability of
supplies for the manufacturing of the Company s products

- The Company’s abtlity to effectively transition its information system mnfrastructure and functions to newer generation systems

.1




PART 1

ITEM 1 BUSINESS
Business Overview

Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company™) 1s a leading global supplier of technology and mnovation i vehicle and industnial products for fuel economy,

emissions reduction and safety systems The Company serves the world’s foremost ongimal equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) and servicers (“OES"}

{collectively "OE") of automotive, light, mediumn and heavy-duty commercial vehicles, off-road, agnicultural, manne, rail, aerospace, power generation and

mdustrial equipment, as well as the worldwide afiermarket The Company seeks to participate in both of these markets by leveraging its onginal equipment

product engineening and development capability, manufacturing know-how and expertise in managing a broad and deep range of replacement parts to service

the aftermarket The Company behieves that it 15 uniquely positioned to effectively manage the hife cycle of a broad range of products to a diverse customer

base Federal-Mogul 1s a leading technology suppher and a market share leader in several product categories As of December 31, 2013, the Company had
current OEM products included on more than 300 global vehucle platforms and more than 700 global powertrains used 1n light, medium and heavy-duty
vehicles The Company offers premum brands, OE replacement and entry/mud leve! products for all aftermarket customers Therefore, the Company can be

first to the aftermarket with new products, service expertise and customer support This broad range of vehicle and powertrain applications remnforces the

Company's belief in 1ts umque market position

The Company operates with two end-customer focused busiess segments The Powertramn (or “PT™) segment focuses on ongmal equipment products for

automotive, heavy duty and industnal applications The Vehicle Components Sclutions {or “VCS”) segment sells and distributes a broad portfolio of
products tn the global afiermarket, while also serving oniginal equipment manufacturers with products including braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle

components This organizational model altows for a strong product hine focus benefiting both engmal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the

global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater identificatzon with Federal-Mogul premium
brands Additionally, this orgamzational model enhances management focus to capitalize on opportumtes for organic or acquisition growth, profit
improvement, resource utiizatton and business model optimization in line with the umque requirements of the two different customer bases

PT offers 1ts customners a diverse array of market-leading products for OE applications, including pistons, piston nings, piston pins, cyhinder liners, valve
seats and guides, 1gmition products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets, static gaskets and seals, ngid heat shields, engine
bearings industnal bearings, bushings and washers, plus element resistant systems protection sleeving products, acoustic shrelding and flexible heat shields

VS offers powertrain products manufactured by PT, distributed through globally-recognized aftermarket brands to the independent aftermarket and also
offers brake disc pads, brake linings, brake blocks, brake systcm components, chassis products, wipers, and other product lines to OEM OES and
aftermarket customers

Federal-Mogul has manufacturing facilittes and/or distribution centers m 23 countries and, accordingly, all of the Company’s reporting segments dertve sales
from both domestic and international markets The attendant nsks of the Company’s intemnational operations are pnmanily related to currency fluctuations,

changes in locat economic and political condibions, extraterritonat effects of United States laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and changes in laws

and regulations




The following tables set forth net sales and net property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") by geographic tegton as a percentage of total net sales and net PP&E,
respectively

Net Sales Net PP&E
Year Ended December 31 Decemnber 31
B 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012

United States L 3% 38% 37% 2% _29%,
Mexico 5% 5% 4% 7% 6%
:Canada — e Tt 2% - 2% i e — *1'
Total Nerth America 43% 45% 43% 34% 35%

_ - T
Germany " T "7 aew T aswm 19w 2w T Taom
France 6% 6% 6% % 5%
Belgium 5% 4% 4% 1% 1%
Tualy T T 4% 4% T % T
United Kingdom 3% 4% 4% 4% 4%
Other EMEA: _ 6% T 6% . - 8% L w13% LT 149
Total EMEA 44% 42% 45% 47% 48%
[ T o
China 5% 4% 4% 8% 6%
Tndia . 3% - . . 4% 7% i 7%3
South Amenica 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Other” =~ " - 3%, T 3% 2% "2% 2%
Total Rest of World 13% 13% 12% 19% 17%
[ 100% - 100% - 100% 100% 100%'

The following table sets forth net sales by reporting segment as a percentage of total net sales

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net sales by reporting segment |
Powertrain 57% 56% 56%
{ Vehicle Components Solutions . 43% 44% 44}
100% 100% 100%

Strategy

The Company’s strategy 1s designed to create sustamnable global profitable growth by leveraging exisung and developing new competitive advantages This
strategy consists of the following primary elements

. Provide value-added products to customers in all markets served through leading technology and inmnovation,

. Develop products to enable increased fuel economy and reduce vehicle emussions, plus enabte the use of alieranve energies,

. Utilize the Company’s leading technology resources to develop advanced and innovative products, processes and manufacturing capabilities,

. Extend the Company’s global reach to support its OE customers, furthering its relationshups with leading Asian OEs and strengthening market share

with U § and European OEs,




. Assess acquisiion and mnvestment opportumnes that provide product hine expansion, technological advancements, geographic positioning,
penetration of emerging markets (includimng the “BRIC” markets of Brazil, Russia, India and China) and market share growth,

. Leverage the strength of the Company’s global aftermarket leading brand positions, product portfolio and range, marketing and selling expertise, and
distnbution and logistics capabihties, and

. Aggressively pursue cost competitiveness 1n all business segments by continuing to dnve producuvity in existing operations consolidating and
relocating manufactunng operaiions to best cost countnes, utihzing the Company's strategic joint ventures and alliances, and rationalizing business
resources and infrastructure

The Company’s strategy 1s to develop and dehver leading technology and innovation which results in market share expansion mn the OE market and
aftermarket The Company assesses individual opportunities to execute 1ts strategy based upon estimated sales and margin growth, cost reduction potential,
internal investment returns, and other criteria, and makes investment decisions on a case-by-case basis Opportumities meeting or exceeding benchmark return
critena may be undertaken through research and development activities, acquisitions, joint ventures and other strategic alhances, or restructuning activities as
further discussed below

Research and Development. The Company mainiains techmeal centers throughout the world designed to

. provide selutions for customers and bring new, innovative products to market,

. integrate the Company’s leading technologies into advanced products and processes,
. provide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufacturing sites, and

. provide technological expertise 1n engineenng and design development

Federal-Mogul's research and development activities are conducted at the Company’s research and development locations Within the United States, these
centers are located 1n Skokae, [lhinois, Ann Arbor, Michigan, Plymouth, Michigan, and Exton, Pennsylvania Intemmationally, the Company’s research and
development centers are located 1n Burscheid, Germany, Nuremberg, Germany, Wiesbaden, Germany, Bad Camberg, Germany, Chapel, United Kingdom,
Crepy, France, Shanghai, China, Bangalore, India, and Yokohama, Japan

Each of the Company’s business units 1s engaged 1n engineenng, research and development efforts working closely with customers to develop custom
solutions to meet their needs Total expendifures for research and development activities, mcluding product engineening and validation costs, were § 173
mullion, $173 mullien and $166 mallion for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively

Joint Ventures and Other Strategic Alijances The Company forms joint ventures and strategic alliances to gain share in emerging markets, facilitate the
exchange of technical information and deveiopment of new products, extend current product offerings, provide best cost manufactunng operatious, and
broaden 1ts customer base The Company believes that certamn of its joint ventures have provided, and will continue to provide, opportunities to expand
business relationships with Asian and other OEs operating in BRIC growth markets The Company 1s currently involved in 25 joint ventures located in 11
cifferent countries throughout the world, including China, India, Korea, Russia, Turkey and the United States Of these joint ventures, the Company
mamtains a contrelling wnterest 1n 16 entities and, accordingly, the financial results of these entities are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company The Company has a non-controlling 1nterest in 9 of 1ts joint ventures, of which 7 are accounted for under the equity method and 2 are
accounted for under the cost method The Company does not consohdate any entity for which 1t has a vanable interest based solely on power to direct the
activities and sigmificant participation in the entity’s expected results that would not otherwise be consohdated based on control through voting interests
Further, the Company’s joint ventures are businesses estabhished and maintained in connection with 1ts operating strategy

Net sales for the Company’s 16 consolidated joint ventures were approximately 8%, 9% and 9% of consolidated net sales for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively The Company’s investments in non-consolidated joint ventures totaled $253 nullion and $240 million as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively, and the equity 1n earmings of such affiliates amounted to $34 milbon, $34 million and $37 mullion for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively

Acquisiion In June 2012, the Company entered into a defimitive agreement to purchase the spark plug business from BorgWamer, Inc ("BWA") These
spark plugs are manufactured in France and Germany and are sold to European original equipment manufacturers The purchase closed in September 2012
for $52 nullion, net of cash acquired The Company allocated the purchase price i accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™)
Accounting Standards Codifications (*ASC™) Topic 805, Business Combinations The Company utihzed a third party to assist in the fair value
determination of certain components of the purchase price allocation, namely fixed assets and intangible assets The Company recorded $19 million of
defimte-hved




mtangible assets (pnmanly customer relanonships) and $9 mithen of mdefinne-hved intangibie assets (pnmanty goodwill) associated with this acquisttion

Drvestitures In connection with its strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market pogtion, product technelogy and capahility,
and profitability Those businesses determimed by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are consiered non-core and may be considered
for divestiture or other exit activities Durmg the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations located m France,
its connecting rod manufactunng facility located in Canada, its camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom and its fuel pump business, which
ncluded an aftermarket business component and a manufacturing and research and development facility located in the United States These divestitures have
been presented as discontinued operations 1n the consolidated staterents of operations See Note 5 for further detatls

Restructuring Acnvittes. The Company’s restructunng activities are undertaken as necessary to exesute management’s strategy and streamline operations,
consohidate and take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restructuning activittes include efforts to
integrate and ranonalize the Company’s businesses and lo relocate manufactuning operations to best cost manufacturing locations

In February 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved evaluauon of restrectuning opportumities in order to improve operating performance The
Company obtained Board approval to commence a restructunng plan (“Restructuring 2013") as detatled below Restructuring 2013 15 intended to take place
from 2013-2015 Duning the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recorded $39 mullion 1n restructuning expenses for Restructuring 2013 compnised of
$38 mullion 1n employee costs and $1 mullion of facility closure costs

In June 2012, the Company announced a restructunng plan (“Restructuring 2312") to reduce or elimunate capacity at several high cost VCS facilities and
transfer production 1o lower cost locations Restructuning 2012 was completed as of December 31, 2013 [n connection with Restructunng 2012, the Company
incurted restructuring charges totaling $13 miliion During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recorded $2 mullion in restructuring expenses for
Restructuring 2012, all of which were facility closure costs During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded $11 million m restructurng
expenses for Restructuring 2012, alt of which were employee costs

Dunng the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded $14 million and $5 million, respectively, m net restructunng expenses outside
of Restructuning 2012 and Restructuring 2013 The Company recorded $14 million i employee costs related to other restructuring activities dunng 2012 The
Company recorded $3 mithion im employee costs and $2 million 1n facility closure costs related to other restructuring activities duning 2011

The Company’s restructurning activities are further discussed in Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and Note 2 to the Consohidaled Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report

The Company’s Products
The following provides an overview of products manufactured and distributed by the Company’s reporting segments

Poswertratn The PT segment pnmarty represents the Company’s OEM business About 90% of PT's revenue 15 to OEM customers, with the remaiming 1096
of tts revenue being sold directly to the Company’s VCS segment for eventual distnbution, by VCS, to customers i the independent aftermarket

PT operates 6 5 manufacturing sites 1n 17 countries, serving a large number of major automotive, heavy-duty, marine and industral customers worldwide
Powertrain derived 34% of 1ts 2013 OE sales i North Amenica, 49% in EMEA and 7% in the rest of the world (“Rest of World” or * ROW™)

Federal-Mogul 1s one of the world’s leading powertrain component and assembly providers Comprehensive design capability and an extensive product
portfolio enable effective delivery of a broad range of engime and driveline components as well as engineered solutions to improve fuel economy, reduce
enusstons or enhance vehicle performance and durability Products in this segment include pistons, piston nngs, piston pins, cylinder finers, valve seats and
guides, engine beanngs, ndustrial beanngs, bushings and washers, igmtion products, dynamic seals, bonded piston seals, combustion and exhaust gaskets,
static gaskets and seals, ngid heat smelds, element resistant systems protection sleeving products, flexible heat shrelds and lighting products PT products are
used in autormnotive, motorcycle, light truck, heavy-duty, industnal, commercial equipment (construction, agricultural, power generaticn, marne and
rallway), aerospace, and small air-cooled engine applications




The following provides a description of the vanous products manufactured by PT

Product

Pistons

Piston Rangs

Piston Pins

Cylinder Liners

Valve Seats and Guides

Engine Beanngs

Industnal Bearings

Bushings and Washers

Ignitton

Dynamic Seals

Bonded Piston Seals

Description

The main task of the piston 15 to compress the air and fuel mixture in advance of ignition Following combustion, the
piston re]éys the combustion energy into mechanical energy In this process, substantial pressures are exerted on the prston,
imposing high demands on 1t 1n terms of ngudity and temperature tesistance Product offenings include Monosteel and
DuraBowl pistens, winners of the 2006 and 2010 PACE awards (Prermer Automotive Suppliers’ Contribution to
Excelience Award), respectively

The three main tasks of piston rings in internal combustion engines include (1) sealing the combustion chamber, (2)
supporting heat transfer from the piston to the cylinder wall, and (3) regulating lubnication and o1l consumption Products
include GDC and LKZ Rings, winners of the 2007 and 2011 PACE awards respectively

Piston pins attach the piston to the end of the connecting rod, allowing the piston to pivot in each cycle of the engine and
following the revolution of the crankshaft

Cylinder liners, or sleeves are specially engmeered where surfaces formed within the engine block, working 1n tandemn wath
the piston and ring, as the chamber 1n which the thermal energy of the combustion process 1s converted into mechanical
energy

Federal-Mogul designs and manufactures a wide variety of powdered metal inserts used in engines and general industrial
applicattons, which are specially designed to meet customer requirements for extrerne hardness

Engine bearings provide an intermediate surface between the connecting rod and crankshaft and between the crankshaft
and engine block Their purpose 1s to facilitate the conversion of combustion energy into mechanical energy by allowing
low-friction movement of the connecting rods and crankshaft when absorbing the power created in the combustion
chamber They operate principalty under hydrodynarme lubncation conditions

The Company's beanng product line includes lead-free aluminum engine bearings commenly used 1n gasoline engines and
bronze bearings used 1n highty-loaded compression engines such as diesel or gasoline turbocharged models The
Company’s portfoho includes a full range of lead-free solutions developed 10 meet EU requirements and covers a range of
electroplated and sputter coated bearings These extremely high performance materials support the downsizing of engines
and consequent improved fuel economy and CO2 reduction The Company’s product range also includes innovatrve
polymer coated bearings (IROX) for automotive engines, winner of the 2013 PACE award These beanngs have a special
polymer coated shell that helps to withstand gh reciprocating mechanical loads produced by heavily boosted engines The
mnovative IROX bearing coating with embedded dry lubncant design enables these bearings to operate in low lubrication
conditions found 1n hybnd or start-stop engines

Sold under the Deva®, Glycodur®, Metaftam® and Metaghss® brands, industrial bearings are primanly dedicated to
applications operating m mixed or low lubnication conditions Applications are mainly diverse industrial motors or
converters and include wind turbimes and hydroelectnic power generation equipment

Bushings and washers are used n engines and transmissions 1o ensure low friction rotation or oscillation of shafts They
are made of bronze, alumunum or polymer material

Igmtion products include spark plugs, glow plugs, 1gnition coils and accessories for automotive commercial and industmal
applications

Dynamuc seals are used between a housing or body structure and rotating or moving shafts to contain lubricants, fluids
and pressure inside the housing, while keeping out dust and other contaminates There are numerous areas of application
mcluding engine crankshafl, transmission dnveshaft, pimon and axle, and wheel seals

Bonded piston seals use hydraulic pressure in transmussions to facilitate gearshift These products are used in automatic,
dual clutch transmissions and continuously vanable transmissions

Combustion and Exhaust Gaskets Combustion znd exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contain gas and pressure produced from combustion

These gaskets are primanly used on internal combustion engine applications mcludmg cylinder head, exhaust mamfold,
exhaust takedown exhaust gas recirculation and turbocharger gaskets
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Static Gaskets and Seals Static gaskets and seals create a barmier between two surfaces to contain fluids, pressure and gases while keeping out dust
and other contamnants There are numerous areas of apphication including engmne covers, o1l pans, intake mamifolds,
transmussion covers and differential covers

Rigid Heat Shields Rigid heat shields are designed to provide a heat and sound bamer to enutting components These products cover a full
range of application on a vehicle from engine to tailpipe

Element Resistant Sleeving Element resistant sleeving products provide protection of wires, hoses, sensors, and mechanical components and
assembhes from heat, electro-magnetic interference, dirt, vibration and moisture Element resistant sleeving products
include

* automotive wire hamesses and hoses,
* abrasion protection and wire management of cable assemblies,
+ dielectric protectien of electncal leads,
» thermal and mechamcal protection of hose assemblies, and
* acoustic nsulating and seund-dampening matenals
Flexible Heat Shields Flexible heat shields are designed to provide a heat barrier and for thernal management usually in the engine compartment

Lighting Automonive hghting products include power and lLighting systems, and tntenor and exterior hghting components

Vehicle Components Soluttons VCS primarily represents the Company’s aftermarket business About 75% of VCS’s revenue 1s to customers m the
independent aftermarket, with the remaining 25% sold to the OE/OES market VCS operates 28 manufacturing sites in 15 countnes and 17 distibution
centers n 12 countnes VCS denved 57% of its sales through North Amenca, 37% in EMEA and 6% mn Rest of World

VCS sells products manufactured by the VCS and Powertrain segments, as well as certam products purchased from outside suppliers, into the ndependent
automotive, heavy-duty and specalty replacement markets Through global market insight, supply chain expertise, and brand and product line management,
aftermarket customers worldwide benefit from the Company's extensive OE technology and manufactuning expertise Federal-Mogul markets a broad portfolio
of leading brands and products that are designed to solve a problem, facilitate installation and improve safety, durability and vehiele performance This
portfolio 15 organized mto product categores that provide comprehensive vehicle solutions The following provides a descniption of the aftermarket products
sold by the VCS segment

Category Product Lines Brand Names
Braking Solutions Disc Pads Abex®, Beral®, Ferodo®, Necto®,
Hydraultc Parts ThermoQueet®, Wagner®
Linings
Rotors & Drums
Brake Hardware

Chassis Selutions Chassis MOCG® National®
Driveline
Hub Assemblres
Anti Friction Beanngs

Scaling Solutions Gaskets Fel-Pro®, Goetze®, National®, Payen®
Seals
Engine and Scrvice Solutions Engmne Parts AE®, FP Diesel®, Glyco®, Goetze®,
Nural®, Scaled Power®
Wipers ANCO®, Champion®, Wagner®
Igmuen Products
Lighting
Fulters




VCS manufactures braking, chassts, sealing and wiper products which are sold both to aftermarket and to OE / OES custormers The following provides a
description of the products manufactured by VCS

Product

Eight Vehicle Disc Pads

Commercial Vehicle Disc Pads

Railway Disc Pads
Light Vehicle Drum Brake

Linings

Commercial Vehicle Full Length
Linmgs

Commercial Vehlucle Half Blocks
Ratlway Brake Blocks )
Chassis

Dniveline Umversal Joints

Combustion and Exhaust Gaskets

Static Gaskets and Seals

Wipers

Description
A light vehicle disc pad assembly consists of
+  fnction matenal, whach dissipates forward momentum by converting energy into heat,

+ underlayer, which 1s a layer of different friction matenal placed between the backplate and friction matenal to
improve strength, provide a thermal barner, corrosion resistance, noise performance or a combination of these
characteristics,

+  backplate, to support and locate the fiction material in the caliper, and

+  shim, which 15 a rubber/metal laminate developed to suppress noise

Commercial vehicle disc brake pads are a growing segment of the friction market, superseding drum brakes on trucks,
buses, tractor umts and trailers The basic construction of a commercial velucle disc pad 1s the same as a hight vehicle
disc pad

Railway disc pads are produced in single pad or paired pad format Federal-Mogul produces sintered meta] pads for
raliway applications

Drum brake linmngs are fnction matenal affixed to a brake shoe and fitted on the rear service brake, rear parking brake
and/or transmussion brake application

Full length hmngs are the commercial vehicle equivalent of hght velncle drum brake linings

+

Half blocks are segments of friction matenial made to be niveted onto drum brake shoes They are used on heavier vehicle
appheations where discs are not used

Railway brake blocks work by acting on the circumference of the wheel They are lighter and queter in operation than
cast 1ron blocks However, friction performance 1s designed to replicate that of cast 1iron blocks

Chassis parts include ball joints, tie rod ends, sway bar links, 1dler arms, and pitman arms These components affect
vehicle steering and vehicle nde quality

Dniveline universal joints which provide a hinkage between a power umt and output device such as a wheel end or service
device

Combustion and exhaust gaskets are used between two surfaces to contain gas and pressure produced from combustion
These gaskets are pnmanly used on mternal combustion engine applications including cylinder head, exhaust mamfold,
exhaust takedown, exhaust gas recirculation and turbocharger gaskets

Statsc gaskets and seals create a barrier between two surfaces to contan fluids, pressure and gases while keeping out dust
and other contarminants There are numerous areas of application mcluding engine covers, o1l pans, intake mamifolds,
transmuission covers and differential covers

Windshield wiper parts include conventional and profile style wiper blades, blade refills and wiper arms




Reporting Segment Financial Information The following tables summanze net sales, cost of products sold, gross margin and total assets for each
reporting segment For additronal information related to the Company's reporting segments, refer to Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included

1t ltem 8 of this report

Net sales
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
{Mulhons of Dollary)
Powertram . - o CET R e e L T8 T 4NTY R 300648 ‘”‘4‘,131»’{
Vehicle Components Solutions 2,935 2,853 2,985
Inter-segment cminations - © .. - e By TR 1 (335) - T T (397)
Total 5 6,786 §$ 6444 % 6,719
Cost of products sold
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Millions of Dollars)
Powertam, » v Lo 0 LT s e e T S U (3656 8 (TAT0)S i (3,570)]
Vehicle Components Solutions (2.432) (2,390} {2,462)
Inter-segment ehminations: - - 1« © 1 o 0 o o, - el s R Ry R R RS s 6 = 397.)
Total Reporting Segment {5,766) (5,525} (5,635)
:C_q_x:ﬁératezi” L T s LT & S S VIR = (5)
Total Company $ (5,766) $ (5,531) § (5.640)
Gross margin
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollars)
Powertram , .. % L5178 L0 436 8§ - 561 |
Vehicle Components Solutions 503 463 523
{ . . Total Reporting Scgment ~ s 1,020 919" < 1,084 ]
Corporate — (®) (5)
| . Total Company $ .- 1,020 §° . 913 $.° - 1,079 |
Total assets
December 31
2013 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
Poweriram s 3373 § 3,090 |
Vehicle Components Solutions 3,055 3,226
'_L Total Reporting Segment 6,428 6,316
Corporate 754 516
Iascontimued operations — 95|
Total Company Assets g 7.182 % 6,927
g
(o3




The Company’s Industry

The automotive light vehicle market, as well as the medium duty / heavy duty commercial market, 15 compnsed of two pnmary segments the O market in
which the Company’s products are used i the manufacture of new vehicles and OE dealer service parts, and the global afiermarket, in which the Company’s
products are used as replacement parts for all vehicles 1n operation on the road, including all previous models

The OF Market Demand for component parts in the OF market 1s generally a function of the number of new vehicles produced, which 1s dnven by macro-
economic factors such as interest rates, fuel pnees, consumer confidence, employment trends, regulatory requiremnents and trade agreements Although OE
demand 1s tred to planned vehicle production, parts supphers also have the oppottunsty to grow through increasing their product content per vehicle, by
increasing market share and by expanding into new or emerging markets Compamies with a global presence, leading technology and innovation, and
advanced product engineering. manufactunng and customer support capabilities are best positioned to take advantage of these opporturties

There are currently several significant trends that are impacting the OE market, including the following

Global Production — The global hght and commercial vehicle production 1n the developed markets expenienced a decline in Europe and growth in

North America in 2013 In total, the number of vehicles produced duning 2013 was 21 4 mullion n the Americas, 21 1 mullion 1n Europe, the Middle
East and Afnca (“EMEA™) and 43 9 milhion 1n Asia, compared to 2012 vehicle production of 20 3 mulhion, 21 6 mullion and 42 2 million 1n the
Amencas, EMEA and Asia, respectively Whle global OE production increased at a moderate pace, the demand for parts, including products

produced by the Company also increased moderately dunng 2013 due to solid demand in the Americas and Asia

Automotive Supply Consolidation — Consolidation within the automotive supply base 1s expected to continue as the entire industry evolves and as the
industry responds to the need to achieve economies of scale and global capabilities to serve vehicle manufacturers who are increasingly globa!l i therr
producticn Suppliers will seek opporturities to achieve synergies 1o their operations through consohidation, while stnving to acquire complementary
businesses to improve global competitiveness or to strategically enhance a product offenng to global customers

Globalhization of Automotive Indusiry — OEs are increasingly designing global platforms where the basic design of the vehicle 15 performed 1 one
location, but the vehicle 1s produced and sold in numerous geographic markets to realize sigmificant econemues of scale by hminng vanations across
product designs and geographic regions While developed markets in North America and Europe continue to remain important to OFEs, increased
focus is being placed upon expanded design, development and production within emerging markets for growth opportumties, espectally i the BRIC
markets As a result, suppliers must be prepared to provide product and techmical resources in support of their customers within these emerging
markets Furthermore, OEs are moving their operations to best cost geographtes outside the U S and western European markets and, accordingly,
OEs are increasingly requunng suppliers to provide parts on a global basis Finally, the Asian OEs continue to expand their reach and market share
1n relation to traditional North Amencan and European manufacturers As thus trend 1s expected to continue mto the foreseeable future, suppliers
must be geographically and technically positioned to meet the needs of the Asian OEs

ocus on Fuel Ec educed Enussions and Alternative Energy S — Increased fuel economy and decreased vehucle enussions are of great
mportance to OEs as legislators and customers continue to demand more efficient and cleaner operating vehicles Increasingly stnngent fuel economy
standards and environmental regulations are driving OEs to focus on new technologies including downsized, higher output and turbocharged
gasoline engines, diesel and turbocharged diesel, bio-mass and hybnd diesel applications and hybnd, electric and alternative energy engines As a
result, the number of powertrain configurations will increase 1n response to the proliferation of commercially available energy sources Suppliers
offening solutions to OEs related to numerous vehicle fuel and powertrain configurations possess a distinct competitive advantage, which 1s dniving
accelerated new product development cycles

Focus on Vehicle Safety — Vehicle safety continues to receive industry attention by OEs as customers view safety as a fundamental dniver n
consumer purchasing decisions and legislation looks on improved vehicle safety as a public health 1ssue Accordmngly, OEs are seeking supphiers
with new technologies, capabilities and products that have the ability to advance velcle safety Suppliers that are able to enhance vehicle safety
through innevauve products and technologies have a distinct competitive advantage

Pricing Pressures — OEs provide extensive pricing incentives and financing alteratives to consumers in order to generate sales of new vehicles and
retan or gam market share These actions, coupled with the mcreasing content required to meet regulations, have placed pressures on the OEs’
profits and, 1o turn, the OEs expect certain recovery from their supply base Suppliers must continually identify and implement product innovation
and cost reduction activities to fund customer annual price concession expectations m order to retain current business as well as to be competitively
positioned for future new business opportuntiies




Raw Materjal Cost Fluctuations — There have been sigmificant fluctuations in recent penods in global prices of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel,
platinum, resins, steel, other base raw matetials and energy Suppliers must continue to identify leading design and mnovatve technological
solutions and matenal substitution options tn order to retain a competitive advantage to the extent that cost increases are not passed on to customers

Energy, Industrial and Transport Markets — Customers continue to develop alternatives to historic infrastructure 1n the energy, sndustnal and
transport markets This includes power generators and other power conversion devices as well as growth in the aerospace and high speed railway

markets and ocean transpert Suppliers with the capabilaty to utilize automotive expertise to service these and other related markets have a competitive
advantage

The Aftermarket Business. Products for the global aftermarket are sold directly to a wide range of distributors, retail parts stores and mass merchants who
distnbute these products to professional service providers and “do-it-yourself” consumers Demand for aftermarket preducts 15 dniven by many factors,
including the number of vehicles in operation, the average age of the vehucle fleet, the durability of OF parts, and vehicle usage Although the number of
vehieles on the road and different models available continue to mncrease, the afiermarket has experienced softness due to increases (n average useful lives of
automotive parts resulting from continued technologteal advancements and resulting improvements i durability More recently, some aftermarket product
categories have been impacted by the growth of the midgrade segment due to consumer and trade channel trends

Some of the significant trends, both negative and positive, that are :mpacting the afiermarket business include the following

Projected Expansion of the Global Car Parc — OEMs are mcreasingly focused on emerging markets for growth This increased OEM focus on
emerging geographic regions will ultumately dnve the need for replacement pans for vehicles produced and i service, which the Company beheves
provides longer-term growth opporturnuties for its aftermarket business 1n these regions

Vehicle Usage Trends — The overall usage of the vehicle fleet, typically measured i number of miles dniven, has historically increased year over
year 1n most global markets That increase in usage of the fleet causes vehicle parts to wear out faster, requiring more frequent replacement In the last
few years, however, that market demand tailwind has tapered off as vehicle usage has slowed 1n the more estabhshed regional markets

Consohdation and jncreased market power of affermarket customers - Independent aftermarket customers are continuing to consolidate and gain

purchasing power and the ability to demand extended payment terms and other pnicing concessions

Increase in Average Age of Vehicles — The average age of vehicles on the road has increased over the past few years Should the average age of the
vehicle fleet continue to nise over the long term, this increase in vehicles requinng mamtenance and repair will increase the demand for aftermarket
replacemnent parts

Yehucle Complexity — Today’s velucles are more complex in design, features, and integrauon of mechanicat and electrical products Ever increasing
complexity adversely impacts the demand for reptacement parts through the traditional independent aftermarket, as certain repairs can be too complex
for some independent repair shops, which forces owners back to the dealer network for these types of services

Extended Automotive Part Product Life and New Car Warranties — The average useful hves of automotive parts, both OE and aftermarket, have been
steadily increasing due to mmnovations in product technology and manufactuning Longer product lives and improved durability results in vehicle
owners replacing parts on their vehicles less frequently

Changes in Consumer Behavigr — The aftermarket 1s ympacted by changes in economic conditions, volatiity m fuel pnices, and expanding focus on
environmental and energy conservation For example, the number of consumers with the ability to purchase new vehicles has been reduced due to
adverse economuic conditions and this may mcrease demand for repairs 1n order to keep older vehicles road-worthy In relation to fuel prices, nsing
fuel pnces cause consumers to dnve less or defer vehicle repairs, whereas falling fuel prices free up residuat income for consumers to make vehicle
repatrs

Size of the Dealer Netwark - As a result of the contraction of the U S dealer network, there has been a reduction tn the avaitabtlity of dealers offering
post-warranty repair work This should increase the demand for replacement parts through the independent aftermarket
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The Company’s Customers

The Company supplies OEs with a wade vanety of technologically innovative parts, substantialiy all of which are manufactured by the Company The
Company’s OE customers consist of automotive and heavy-duty vehicle manufacturers as well as agricultural, off-highway, manne, railroad, aerospace, ugh
performance and industnal applhication manufacturers The Company has well-estabhished refanonships with substanually ali major Amencan, Evropean and
Asian automouve OEs

The Company’s aftermarket customers include independent warehouse distnbutors who redistribute products to local parts suppliers, distributors of heavy-
duty vehicular parts, engine rebwilders, retail parts stores and mass merchants The breadth of the Company’s product lines, the strength of 1ts leading brand
names, marketing expertise. sizable sales force, and 1ts distnibution and logistics capability are central 1o the success of the Company’s VCS operations

No individual custemer accounted for more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales during 2013

The Company’s Competitton

The globat vehicular parts business 1s highly competitive The Company competes with many independent manufacturers and distnibutors of component
parts globally In general, competition for sales 1s based on price, product quality, technelogy, delivery, customer service and the breadth of products offered
by a grven suppher The Company 1s meeting these competitive chalienges by developing leading technologies, efficiently integrating 1ts manufactunng and
distnbution operations, expanding its product coverage within its core businesses, restructuring its operations and transferring production to best cost
countries, and utilizing 1ts woridwide technical centers to develop and provide value-added solutions 1o its customers A summary of the Company’s primary
independent competitors by reporting segment 1s set forth below

. Powertrain — Primary competitors include Aisin, Art Metal, BinZou, Bleistehl, Bosch, Daido, Dana/Remnz, Delfingen, Denso, DongYang,
ElnngKlinger, Freudenberg, General Electric, GKN, Hella, Hitachi-Automotive, Honeywell, Kolbenschmidt, Mahle, Miba, NGK, NOK, NPR,
QOsram, Pall, Riken, Sinteron, and Stanley

. Vehicle Components Solutions — Primary competitors include AC Delco, Affinia, Akebono, Bosch, Contitech, Dana/Reinz, Delfingen, Delphi,
Denso, ElnngKlinger, Freudenberg, Galfer, General Electric, Hella, Honeywell, Mahle, Nisshinbo/TMD, NOK, Osram, Pall, SKF, Stanley,
Stemco, Sylvama, Timken, TMD, Trico, TRW and Valeo

The Company’s Backlog

For OE customers, the Company generally receives purchase orders for specific products supplied for particular vehicles These supply relationships

typically extend over the life of the related vehicle, subject to intennm design and technical specification revisions, and do not require the customer to purchase a
munimum quantity In addition to customary comnmercial terms and conditions, purchase orders generally provide for annual price reductions based upon
expected productsvity improvements and other factors Customers typically retain the right to termunate purchase orders, but the Company generally cannot
terminate purchase orders OE order fulfillment 1s typically manufactured 1n response to customer purchase order releases, and the Company ships chrectly
from a manufactunng location to the customer for use 1 vehicle production and assembly Accordingly, the Company's manufacturing lecations turn finished
goods inventory relatively quickly, producing from on-hand raw matenals and work-in-process mventory within relatively short manufactuning cycles

Significant risks to the Company include a change 1n engine production, dniven by mux changes, for powertrain components (e g a change from diesel to
gasoline engines), lower than expected vehicle or engine production by one or more of 1ts OE customers or termination of the business based upon perceived or
actual shortfalls in delivery, quality or value

For its Global Aftermarket customers, the Company generally establishes product line arrangements that encompass all pans offered within 2 particular
product line These are typically open-ended arrangements that are subject to termination by etther the Company or the customer at any ttme Pricing 1s market
responsive and subject to adjustment based upon competitive pressures, matenal costs and other commercial factors Global Aftermarket order fulfillment 1s
largely performed from fimshed goods inventory stocked in the Company’s worldwide distnbution network Inventory stocking levels 1n the Company’s
distribution centers are established based upon histoncal and anticipated future customer demand

Although customer programs typically extend to future penods, and although there 15 an expectation that the Company will supply certain levels of OE
production and aftermarket shipments over such penieds, the Company believes that outstanding purchase orders and product line arrangements do not
constitute firm orders Firm orders are limited to specific and authonzed customer purchase order releases placed with 1ts manufacturing and distribution
centers for actual production and order fulfillment Firm orders are typically fulfilled as promptly as possible after receipt from the conversion of available raw
materials and work-n-process inventory for OE orders and from current on-hand fimished goods inventory for aftermarket orders The dollar amount of such
purchase order rcleascs on hand and not processed at any point in time 1s not believed to be sigmificant based upon the timeframe ovolved
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The Company’s Raw Materials and Suppliers

The Company purchases various raw materials and component parts for use 1n its manufactuning processes, mncluding ferrous and non-ferrous metals, non-
metallic raw matenals, stampings, castings and forgings The Company also purchases parts manufactured by other manufacturers for sale 1n the
aftermarket The Company has not expertenced any significant shortages of raw materials, components or finished parts and normally does not carry
inventories of raw matenals or finished parts in excess of those reasonably required to meet its production and shipping schedules In 2013, no outside
suppiter of the Company provided products that accounted for more than 2% of the Company’s annuat purchases

Insight Portfolio Group LLC (formally known as Icahn Sourang, LLC) - Related Party

Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entity formed and controiled by Mr Icahn in order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of entities
with which Mr Icahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and intangible property at negotiated
rates The Company was a member of the buying group 1n 2012 Pnor to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Icahn Sourcing any fees or other
amounts with respect to the buying group arrangement

In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective Fanuary 1, 2013 1t would restructure its ownership and change its name to Insight
Portfolio Group LLC {“Insight Portfolio Group™) In connection with the restructuring, the Company acquired a mimonty equity interest in Instght Portfolio
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses in 2013 The Company's payments to Insight Pertfohio Group were less than
$0 5 mulhon dunng 2013 The Company anticipates 1ts 2014 payments to Insight Portfolio Group to be simutar to the amounts paid in 2013

Seasonality of the Company’s Business

The Company’s business 15 moderately seasonal because many North Amernican OE customers typically close assembly plants for two weeks 1n July for
model year changeovers, and for an additional week during the December holiday season OE customers in Europe histortcally shut down vehicle production
during portions of July and August and one week in December Shut-down penods in the Rest of World generally vary by country The afiermarket expenences
seasonal fluctuations in sales due to demands caused by weather and driving patterns Histoncally, the Company’s sales and operating profits have been the

strongest 1n the second quarter For additional information, refer to the Company's quarterly financial results contained 1n Note 25 to the Consohdated
Financral Statements, included 1n ltem 8 of this report

The Company’s Employee Relations
The Company had 44,275 employees as of December 31, 2013

Various unions represent approximately 35% of the Company’s U S hourly employees and approximately 70% of the Company's non-U S hourly
employees With the exception of two facilities in the U § |, most of the Company’s unionized manufacturing facilities have their own contracts with their own
expiration dates and, as a result, no contract expiration date affects more than one facility

Impact of Environmental Regulations on the Company

The Company’s operations, consistent with those of the manufactuning sector in general, are subject to numerous existing and proposed laws and
govemmental regulations designed to protect the environment, particularly regarding plant wastes and emussions and solid waste disposal Capital expenditures
for property, plant and equipment for environmental contro activities did not have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position or cash flows n
2012 and are not expected to have a matenal impact on the Company's financal position or cash flows in 2014

The Company's Intellectual Property

The Company holds 1n excess of 5,100 patents and patent applications on a worldwide basis, of which more than 1,100 have been filed 1n the United States
Of the approximately 5,100 patents and patent applications, approxumately 30% are m production use and/or are licensed to third parties, and the remaiming
70% are betny considered for future production use or provide a strategic technological benefit to the Company

The Company does not matenially rely on any single patent, nor will the expiration of any single patent materially affect the Company’s business The
Company’s current patents expire over various pertods into the year 2036 The Company 1s actively introducing and patenting new technology to replace
formerty patented technology before the expiration of the existing patents
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In the aggregate, the Company’s worldwide patent portfolio 1s matenally important to its business because it enables the Company to achieve technologicat
differentiation from its competitors .

The Company also maintains more than 6,30¢ active trademark registrattons and applications wortdwide In excess of 90% of these trademark registrations
and applications are in commercial use by the Company or are licensed to third parties

Interests Held by an Entity Controlled by Mr. Carl C Icahn

An entity mdirectly owned and controlied by Mr Icahn filed a Schedule 13D and amendments theremn with the Secunties and Exchange Comrrussion

indicating that such entity has a beneficial interest of approximately 80 73% of the Company's outstanding shares of commeon stock As a result, Mr Icahn
has the indirect ability to nominate and elect all of the directors on the Company’s Board of Directors Under applicable law and the Company’s certificate of
ncorporation and by-laws certain actions cannot be taken without the approval of holders of a majonty of the Company’s voung stock including, without

hmutation, mergers, the sale of substantially all of the Comparny’s assets, and amendments to its certificate of incorporation and by-laws So long as Mr Icahn
continues to control a majonity of the Company’s outstanding capital stock, he will continue to have these governance nghts and the ability to controf the

Company

The Company’s Weh Site and Access to Filed Reports

The Company mamntamns an internet Web site at www federalmogu! com The contents of the Company’s Web site are not incorporated by reference in this
report The Company provides access to its annual and penodic reports filed wath the SEC free of charge through this Web site The Company’s Integnty
Policy 1s also available on 1ts Web site The SEC mantains a Web site at www SEC gov where reports, proxy and information statements, and other
mnformation about the Company may be obtained Paper copies of annual and periodic reports filed with the SEC may be obtained free of charge by contacting

the Company’s headquarters at the address located within the SEC Filings or under Investor Relations on the Company’s Web site




ITEM 1.A RISK FACTORS

An investment 1n Federal-Mogul involves vanous nisks The nsks discussed below are not the only ones faced by the Company Please also read the
cautionary note regarding “Forward-Looking Statements™ beginntng on page 2

The Company has substantial indebtedness, which could restnct the Company’s business activities and could subject the Company to significant
interest rate nisk. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had approximately 32 6 bilhion of outstanding indebtedness The Company 1s permitied by the
terms of 1ts debt instruments to cur substantial additional indebtedness, subject to the restnctions therein The Company’s mnability to generate sufficient
cash flow to satisfy (ts debt obligations, or to refinance its debt obhgations on commercially reasonable terms, would have a matenat adverse effect on the
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations

The Company’s indebtedness could

. himit the Company's ability to borrow meney for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements or other corporate purposes,

. require the Company to dedicate a substantial portion of 1ts cash flow to payments on indebtedness, which would reduce the amount of cash
flow avaitable to fund working capital, capital expenditures, product development and other corporate requirements,

. tncrease the Company's vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, and

. Limit the Company’s ability to respond to business opportunitics

A sigmficant portion of the Company’s indebtedness accrues interest at vanable rates To the extent market interest rates nse, the cost of the Company's debt
would increase, adversely affecting the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows

Duning the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company extended the term of its revolving credit facility to December 6, 2018 In the event, however, that on any day
prior thereto, more than $300 mulhion 1n aggregate pnncipal amount of the Company's existing term loans (or any debt refinancing such term loans) will
become duc within 91 days, the matunty date of the revolving credit facility automatrcally accelerates to such date The Company's tranche B term toan witha
December 31, 2013 principal balance of $1,597 million currently matures on December 27, 2014 In the event that the Company ts unable to refinance such
portion of 1ts existing teren loans so that the principal amount of such indebtedness outstanding on December 27, 2014 1s less than $300 mullion or obtaiz an
amendment to its revolving credit facihity that 1n substance warves the provisions of thus accelerated matunty date, the revolving credit facihity will mature by
its terms on September 27, 2014, and the Company, therefore, will be required to repay any outstanding amounts on such day under the revolving credit
facility and no longer have further access to the revolving credit faciity No assurance can be given that the Company wail be able to either refinance its
existing term loans or obtain an amendment to 1ts revolving credit facility that provides relief from thus provision

The Company’s restruciuring activities may not result in the anucipated synergies and cost savings: It 15 possible that the achievement of expected
synergies and cost savings associated with restructuring activities will require additional costs or charges to earnings in future periods It 15 also possible that
the expected synergies may not be achieved Any costs or charges could adversely impact the busmness, results of operations, liquidity and financtal condition

The Company may pursue acquisttions or joint ventures that involve inherent risks, any of which may cause the Company net te realize
anticipated benefits, and the Company may have difficulty integranng the operations of any compantes that may be acquired, which may adversely
affect the Company’s resuits of aperations Tn the past, the Company has grown through acquisitions, and may engage in acquisitions 1n the future as part
of the Company’s sustainable global profitable growth strategy The full benefits of these acquisitions, however, require integration of manufacturing,
admimstrative, financial, sales, and marketing approaches and personnel If the Company 1s unable to successfully integrate its acquusitions, 1t may not
realize the benefits of the acquisitions, the financial results may be negauvely affected, or addittonal cash may be required to integrate such operations

In the future, the Company may not be able to successfully identify sutable acquisition or jont venture opportunities or complete any particular acquisition,
combuination, joint venture or other transaction on acceptable terms The Company’s identification of suitable acquisition candidates and jomt venture
opportunities and the integratron of acquired business operations involve nsks inherent i assessing the values, strengths, weaknesses, nsks and profitabihity
of these opportunities This includes the effects on the Company’s business, diversion of management’s attention and nsks associated with unanticipated
problems or unforeseen habilities, and may require significant financial resources that would otherwise be used for the ongotng development of the Company’s
business

The difficulties of mtegration may be increased by the necessity of coordmating geographically dispersed orgamzations, mtegraung personnel with disparate
business backgrounds and combimng different corporate cultures These difficulties could be further
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increased to the extent the Company pursues acquisition or joint venture opporturities internationally The Company may not be effective in retammng key
employees or custorners of the combined businesses The Company may face integration 1ssues pertaining to the internal controls and operations functions of
the acquired companies and also may not realize cost efficiencies or synergies that were anticipated when selecting the acquisition candidates The Company
may expenience managenal or other conflicts with 11s joint venture partners Any of these items could adversely affect the Company's results of operations

The Company’s failure to identify suitable acquisition or jomnt venture opportunities may restrict the Company’s ability to grow its business 1f the Company
18 successful in pursuing future acquisitions or joint ventures, the Company may be required to expend sigmficant funds, incur additional debt and/or 1ssue
additicnal secunities, which may matenally adversely affect results of operations If the Company spends sigmficant funds or incurs additional debt, the
Company’s ability to obtain financing for workmg capital or other purposes could dechine and the Company may be more vulnerable to economic downturns
and competitive pressures

Adverse conditions 1n the automaotive market adversely affect demand for the Company’s products and exposes the Company to credit risks of tts
customers The revenues of the Company’s operatiens are closely tied to giobal OF automobile sales, production levels, and independent aftermarket parts
replacement activity The OE market 1s characterized by short-term volatility, with overall expected long-term growth in global vehicle sales and production
Autemotive production in the local markets served by the Company can be affected by macro-economuc factors such as interest rates, fuel pnces consumer
confidence, employment trends, regulatory and legislative oversight requirements and trade agreements A variauon in the level of automobile producthon would
affect not only sales to OE customers but, depending on the reasons for the change, could impact demand from aftermarket customers The Company’s
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected if the Company fails to respond in a umely and appropnate manner to changes 1n the
demand for its products

Accounts recervable potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit nsk The Company’s customer base includes virtually every significant
global automotive manufacturer, numerous Tier 1 automouve suppliers, and a large number of distnibutors and nstallers of automotive aftermarket parts

Consolidation and increased market power af the Company’s independent afiermarket customers could negatively affect the Company’s financal
performance. The Company’s independent aftermarket customers are contimung to consohidate and gain purchasing power and the ability to demand
extended payment terms and other pricing concessions If these trends continue the financial results of the Company's VCS business segment could be
negatively impacted

If the Company loses any of 1ts executive officers or key employees, the Company’s operations and abdity to manage the day-to-day aspects of its
business may be matereally adversely affected” The Company’s future performance substantially depends on its ability to retain and motivate executive
officers and key employees, both individually and as a group If the Company loses any of its executive officers or key employees, which have many years of
experience with the Company and within the automotive industry and other manufacturing industries, or 1s unable to recruit qualified personnel, the
Company’s ability to manage 'tJhc day-to-day aspects of 1ts business may be materially adversely affected The loss of the services of one or more executive
officers or key employees, who also have strong personal ties with customers and suppliers, could have a matenial adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations

The Company does not cwrrently maintain “key person” hife msurance

The Company’s operations in foreign countries expose the Company to risks related to economic and pelitical conditions, currency fluctuations,
imporiexport resirictions, regulatory and other risks: The Company has manufacturing and distnbution facilities in many countries International
operations are subject to certain nsks including

. eiposure to local economic conditions,

. exposure to local political conditions {including the nisk of seizure of assets by foreign governments),

. currency exchange rate fluctuations (including, but not limited to, matenal exchange rate fluctuations, such as devaluations) and currency controls
. export and import restrictions, and

. comphance with U § laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and local laws prohibiting inappropriate payments

The likelihcod of such occurrences and their potential effect on the Company are unpredictable and vary from country-to-country

Certain of the Company's operating entities report therr financial conditton and results of operations 1n currencies other than the U S dollar (tncluding, but not
hmited to, Brazihan real, British pound, Chinese yuan renmnbi, Czech crown, euro, Indian rupee, Mexican peso, Pohish zloty Russian ruble, South Korean
won and Swedish krona) In reporting its consolidated statements of
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operations, the Company translates the reported results of these entities mto U 5 dollars at the applicable exchange rates As a result, fluctuations 1n the dollar
against foreign currencies will affect the value at which the results of these entities are included within Federal-Mogul's consohdated results

The Company 1s exposed to a risk of gain or loss from changes n foreign exchange rates whenever the Company, ot one of its forergn subsidiaries, enters into
a purchase or sales agreement 1 a currency other than its functional currency While the Company reduces such exposure by matching most revenues and
costs within the same currency, changes in exchange rates could impact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations

The Company’s actions to separate its business into two divisions may result in additional costs* The Company separated 1ts business nto two
separate business divisions One division focuses pnmanly on the manufacture and sale of powertran products to onginal equipment manufacturers

(* Powertrain” or “PT"), whle the other consists of the Company's global aftermarket as well as 1ts brake, chassis and wipers businesses (“Vehicle
Components Solutiens™ or “VCS™) The Company initiated several achions 1n connection with the creation of these two operating divisions, including the

hinng of a Chief Execunive Officer for VCS and the 1denufication of faciliues that will be managed by each division This separation may result 1n additional

costs and expenses both during and after separanon No assurance can be given that the separation of the bustness into these two divisions will not have a

matenal adverse impact on the Company’s profitabihty and consohdated financial positton

The Company is subject to possible insolvency of financial counterparties: The Company engages 1 numerous financial transactions and contracts
including msurance pohicies, letters of credit, credit line agreements, financial denivatives (including interest rate swaps), and investment management
agreements involving various counterparties The Company s subject to the nsk that one or more of these counterparties may become nsolvent and therefore
be unable to discharge 1ts obligations under such contracts

The automotive industry is highly competitive and the Company’s success depends upon uts ability to compete effectively in the market The
Company operates 1n an extremely competitive industry, driven by global vehicle production volumes and part replacement rends Business 1s typically
awarded to the suppher offering the most favorable combination of cost, quality, technology and service In addition, customers continue to require penodic
price reductions that requure the Company to continually assess, redefine and improve 11s operations, products and manufacturing capabilittes to maintawn and
umprove profitability The Company’s management continues to develop and execute imihatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve its
strategy, however, there can be no assurance that the Company witl be able to compete effectively 1n the automotive market

The Company’s pension obligations and other postemployment benefits could adversely impact the Company’s operanng margins and cash flows*
The automotive mdustry, like other industries, continues to be impacted by the nising cost of provading pension and other postemployment benefits In
addition, the Company sponsors certain defined benefit plans worldwide that are underfunded and will require cash payments If the performance of the assels
in the pension plans does not meet the Company’s expectations, or other actuanal assumnptions are modified, the Company's required contributions may be
higher than 1t expects See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n ltem 8 of thus report

The price of the Company’s cemmon stock is sulyect to velathity- Vanous factors could cause the market price of the Company’s common stock to
fluctuate substantrally including general financial market changes, changes in governmental regulation, sigmificant eutomotive industry announcements or
developments, the introductuion of new products or technologies by the Company or 1ts competitors, and changes 1n other conditions or trends in the automotive
industry Other factors that could cause the Company’s stock price to fluctuate could be actual or anucipated vanations in the Company’s or 11s competitors’
quarterly or annual financial results, financial resuits failing to meet expectations of analysts or investors, changes in secunties analysts’ estimates of the
Company's future performance or of that of the Company’s competitors and the general health of the automotive industry

Mr. Carl C Icahn exerts significant influence over the Company and his interests may conflict with the interest of the Company’s other
stockholders Mr Carl C Icahn indirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voting power of the Company’s capital stock and, by virtue of such stock
ownershtp, 15 able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, mcludmg

. the election of directors,

. business strategy and policies

. mergers or other business combinations,

. acquisilion or disposition of assets,

. future 1ssuances of common stock or other secuntes,

. mcurrence of debt or obtaiming other sources of financing, and
. the payment of dividends on the Company’s common stack




The exastence of a controlling stockholder may have the effect of making 1t difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from seeking to acquire a
majonity of the Company’s cutstanding common stock, which may adversely affect the market price of the stock

Mr Icahn’s interests may not always be consistent with the Company’s interests or with the mterests of the Company’s other stockholders Mr Icahn and
entibies controlled by him may also pursue acquisiions or business opportunities that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that conflicts of interest may arise between the Company and Mr Icahn and his affiliates, those conflicts may be resolved m a manner adverse to the
Company or its other shareholders

The Company’s stock price may deciine due to sales of shares by Mr. Carl C. feahn- Sales of substantial amounts of the Company’s common stock by
Mr Icahn and his affiliates, or the perception that these sales may occur, may adversely affect the pnce of the Company’s common stock and impede 1ts
ability to raise capital through the 1ssnance of equity secunities in the future Mr Icahn 1s contractually entitled, subject to certain exceptions, to exercise tights
under a registration nights agreement to cause the Company to regaster his shares under the Securities Act By exercising his registration rights and selting a
large number of shares, Mr Icahn could cause the pnce of the Company’s common stock to decline No other shareholder has registration rights

The Company is subject to the pension liabilities of all entities in which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% In
July 2013 the Company completed a commeon stock nghts offennng The purchases of shares of common stock in the rights offering increased the ndirect
control of Mr Carl C Icahn to approxamately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownership mterest in the Company by Mr Icahn’s
affthates, the Company 1s subject to the pension habilies of all entities in which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% One
such entity, ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the mmimum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2013 If the ACF plans were voluntanly termnated, they would be
underfunded by approximately $100 mullion as of December 31, 2013 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’
actuaries These habilities could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors, including future changes n benefits, Investment returns, and the
assumptions used to calculate the hability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be hable for any failure of ACF te make ongong pensicn
contributions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon a termination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entittes now or in the future within the
controlied group in which the Company 1s included may have penston plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
liable for any farlure of such entities to make ongoing pension contributions or to pay the unfunded habilities upon termunation of such plans Further, the
fatlure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of hiens in favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(*PBGC™) aganst the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requires 1t to notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certatn extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occurrence of such reportable events

Icahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemmfy Federal-Mogul for any and all habihity imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation thereunder (“ERISA™) resulting from the
Company being considered a member of a controlled group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a)}{14) of wiuch American Entertainment Properties
Corporation 15 a member, except with respect to hability in respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), mamtained by the Company
Icahn Enterprises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to maintain any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn
Enterprises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LL.C will be able to fund its indernmification obligations to the Company

Certain disruptions in supply of and changes in the competitive environment for raw materials could adversely affect the Company’s operating
margins and cash flows: The Company purchases a broad range of matenals, components and fimshed parts The Company also uses a sigmificant
amount of energy, both electricity and natural gas 1n the production of its products A stgntficant disruption in the supply of these matenals, supplies and
energy or the failure of a supplier with whom the Company has established a single source supply relationship could decrease production and shipping levels,
matenally increase operating costs and matenally adversely affect profit margins Shortages of matenals or mterruptions n transportation systems, labor
strikes, work stoppages, or other interruptions to or difficulties in the employment of labor or transpertation 1n the markets where the Company purchases
material, components and supplies for the production of products or where the products are produced, distributed or sold, whether as a result of labor stnfe,
war, further acts of terrorism or otherwise, 1n each case may adversely affect profitablity

In recent periods there have been significant fluctuations 1n the prices of aluminum, copper, lead, nickel, platinum, resins, steel, other base metals and energy
which have had and may continue to have an unfavorable impact on the Company’s business Any continued fluctuations n the price or availability of energy
and matenials may have an adverse effect on the Company’s results of
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operations or financial condition To address increased costs associated with these market forces, a number of the Company's supphers have implemented
surcharges on existing fixed price contracts Without the surcharge, some suppliers claim they will be unable to provide adequate supply Competitive and
marketing pressures may hrt the Company's ability to pass some of the supply and matenial cost increases on to the Company’s customers and may prevent
the Company from doing so 1n the future Furthermore, the Company’s customers are generally not obligated to accept price ncreases that the Company may
desire to pass along to them This mability to pass on pnice increases to customers when matenal prices increase rapidly or to significantly higher than historic
levels could adversely affect the Company’s operating margins and cash flow, possibly resulting in lower operating immcome and profitability

The Company’s hedging actvittes to address commodity price fluctuations may not be successful in offsetting future increases in those costs or
may reduce ar eliminate the benefits of any decreases in these costs* In order to mitigate short-term vanation 1n operating results due to the
aforementioned commodity price fluctuations, the Company hedges a portion of near-term exposure to certain raw matertals used in production processes,
primanly natural gas, copper, mckel, un, zinc, high-grade alunmum and aluminum alloy The results of the Company’s hedging practice could be positive,
neutral or negative 1 any penod depending on price changes in the hedged exposures

The Company’s hedging activities are not destgned to mingate long-term commodity price fluctuations and, therefore, wiil not protect from long-term
commodity price increases The Company's future hedging posiions may not correlate to actual energy or raw matenals costs, which would cause acceleration
m the recognition of unreahzed gains and losses on hedging positions 1n operanng results

The Company is subject 1o a variety of environmenial, health and sefety laws and regulanons and the cast of complying, or the Company’'s falure
to comply with such requirements may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. The Company
15 subject to a vanety of federal, state and local environmental faws and regulations relating to the release or discharge of matenals 1nto the environment, the
management, use, processing, handling, storage, transpori or disposal of hazardous waste matenals, or otherwise relating to the protection of public and
employee health, safety and the environment These laws and regulauons expose the Company to hability for the environmental condition of 1ts current
faciliues, and also may expose the Company to liability for the conduct of others or for the Company’s actions that were in comphance with all applicable
laws at the time these actions were taken These laws and regutations also may expose the Company to liability for claims of personal injury or property
damage related to alleged exposure to hazardous or toxic matenals i foreign countnes Despite the Company’s intention to be m compliance with all such laws
and regulations, the Company cannot guarantee that it wall at alt trmes be 1n comphiance wath all such requirements The cost of complying with these
requirements may also increase substantially i future years 1f the Company violates or fails to comply with these requirements, the Company could be fined
or otherwise sanctioned by regulators These requirements are complex, change frequently and may become more strngent over tume, which could have a
matenal adverse effect on the Company’s business

The Company’s failure to maintain and comply with environmental permuts that the Company 15 required to maimntain could result in fines or penalues or other
sanctions and have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s operations or results Future events, such as new enivironmental regulations or changes m or
mod:fied interpretations of existing laws and regulations or enforcement policies, newly discovered information or further mvestigation or evatuanon of the
potential health hazards of products or business activities, may give nse to additional compliance and other costs that could have a matenal adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial conditions and operations

New regulations related to “conflict minerals” may force us to incur additional expenses and may make the Company's supply chain more complex In August
2012 the SEC adopted annual disclosure and reporting requirements for those compames who use certam minerals known as “conflict muinerzals” mined from
the Democratic Republic of Congo and adjoining countries in their products These new requirements required due diligence efforts in 2013, with imitial
disclosure requirements beginmng i 2014 There wiil be sigmificant costs associated with complying with these disclosure requirements, including for
diligence to determune the sources of conflict minerals used in the Company's products and other potential changes to products, processes or sources of supply
as a consequence of such venfication activities

The Company is invelved from time to fime in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes, which could have an adverse impact on
the Company’s profitability and consolidated financial postfion- The Company 1s involved 1n legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes
that, from time to ime are significant These are typically claims that arise in the normal course of busness including, without lmiutation, commercal or
contractual disputes, ncluding disputes with suppliers, intellectual property matters, personal injury claims, environmental 1ssues, tax matters and
employment matters No assurances can be given that such proceedings and claims will not have a matenal adverse impact on the Company’s profitability
and consoltdated financial posttion
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If the Company is unable to protect us intellectual property and prevent its improper use by third parnes, the Company’s abiluty to compete in the
market may be harmed+ Vanous patent, copynght, trade secret and trademark laws afford only himited protection and may not prevent the Company’s
compeuters from duplicating the Company’s products or gaming access to 1ts proprietary nformation and technology These means also may not permt the
Company to gain or maintatn a competitive advantage

Any of the Company’s patents may be challenged, invahdated, circumvented or rendered unenforceable The Company cannot guarantee that 1t will be
successful should one or moere of its patents be challenged for any reason and countries outside the U S may dimimsh the protection of the Company’s
patents If the Company’s patent claims are rendered invalid or unenforceable, or narrowed 1n scope, the patent coverage afforded to the Company’s products
could be impaired, which could significantly tmpede the Company’s ability to market 1ts products, negatively affect 1ts competitive position and matenaily
adversely affect its business and results of operations

The Company’s pending or future patent applications may not result 1n an 1ssued patent Additionally, newly 1ssued patents may not provide meaningful
protection against competitors or against competitive technologies Courts 1n the United States and 1n other countries may mvalidate the Company’s patents or
find them unenforceable Competitors may aiso be able to design around the Company’s patents Other parties may develop and obtain patent protection for
more effective technologies, designs or methods [f these developments were to occur, it could have an adverse effect on the Company’s sales [f the Company’s
intellectual property nghts are not adequately protected, the Company may not be able te commercialize its technologies, products or services and the
Company’s competitors could commercialize the Company’s technologies, which could result in a decrease tn the Company’s sales and market share and
could matenally adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operattons

The Company’s products could infringe the intetlectual property rights of others, which may lead 1o lingation that could itself be costly, could
result in the payment of substannal damages or ropaities, and could prevent the Company from using technology that 1s essential to its products*
The Company cannot guarantee that 1ts products, manufactunng processes or other methods do not infringe the patents or other intellectual property rights of
third parties Infringement and other intellectual property claims and proceedings brought against the Company, whether successful or not, could result 1n
substantial costs and harm the Company’s reputation  Such claims and proceedings can also distract and divert management and key personnel from other
tasks important to the success of 1ts business In addition, intellectual property hitigation or claims could force the Company to do one or more of the follewing

. cease selling or using of any products that incorporate the asserted intellectual property, which would adversely affect the Company’s revenuc,
. pay substantial damages for past use of the asserted intellectual property,

. obtain a license from the holder of the asserted intellectual property, which hicense may not be available on reasonable terms, 1f at all, and

. redesign or rename, in the case of trademark claims, products to avoid infringing the intellecal preperty nghts of third parties, which may

not be possible and could be costly and tme-consumung if 1t 1s possible to do

In the event of an adverse determunation n an wntellectual property suit or proceeding, or the Company's failure to heense essential technology, the Company’s
sales could be harmed and its costs could increase, which could matenally adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of
operations

The Company may be exposed to certain regulatory and financial risks related to climate change- Chimate change 1s contimung to receive ever
increasing attention worldwide Many scientists, legislators and others atinibute climate change to increased levels of greenhouse gases, including carbon

dioxide, which could lead to additional legislative and regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas emissions The focus on emissions could increase costs

associated with the Company’s operations, including costs for raw materials and transportation Because the scope of future laws in this area 1s uncertain, the

Company cannot predict the potential impact of such laws on 1ts future consolidated financial condition, results of opetations or cash flows
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ITEM 1 B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Federal-Mogul's world headquarters 1s located 1n Southfield, Michigan, which 1s a leased facility The Company had 155 manufacturing facihities, technical
centers, distribution centers, and sales and administration office facilities worldwide at December 31, 2013 Approximately 38% of the facihities are leased, the
majonty of which are distribution centers, and sales and admumistration offices The Company owns the remainder of the facilities

North Rest of

Type of Facily America EMEA World Total

'PE
Manufactunng facilities- = -, Yes Catete 732 e T 390 o0 70 30 937
Techrnical centers 9 5 2 16

<y mieo . g e - " 7 S R T e

RN A N e T R A T S T e s
Sales and admunistration offices 7 10 12 29

P LA oy A T %, g — E .
[ R b L. o g =T o e B nteee R OE, U F par R apgetlaelv . be o 1554

The facilittes range in size from approximately 500 square feet to 700 thousand square feet Management believes that substantially all of the Company’s
facilities are 1n good condition and that 1t has sufficient capacity to meet 1ts current and expected manufactuning and distnbution needs

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company s involved n vartous htigation matters regarding environmental matters and other matters as descnibed below

Environmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admimstrative orders 1ssued or demand letters received, m vartous junisdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“*CERCLA™) or other sirmular national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be hable to pay for remediating contarmnation resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged mto the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they currently own or operate, ot by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vartous provincial and state agencies that it may be a potentially responsible party (“"PRP")
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site mvestigations and subsequent remed:al activities

Many of the s:tes that are likely to be the costhest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential joint and several hability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertaining to
these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small Therefore, the Company believes its exposure for hability at
these sites 15 Limited

The Company has also identified certain other present and former properties at which 1t may be responsible for cleaming up or addressing environmental
contamination, In some cases as & result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 1s actively seeking to resolve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the 1ssues, the Company
has accrued amounts corresponding to 1ts best estimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the basts of available
information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Total environmental babilites were $14 milhon and $15 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Management believes that such accruals will be
adequate to cover the Company’s estimated hiability for 1ts exposure in respect to such matters In the event that such liabilities were to sigmificantly exceed the
amounts recorded by the Company, the Company’s results of aperanons and financial condinion could be matenally affected At December 31,2013,
management estimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and beyond management’s best esimate of requured remediation costs, as
recorded, appreximate $44 million

N
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Other Matters

The Company 1s involved in other legal actions and claims, directly and through 1ts subsidianes that anse in the normal course of business Management
does not believe that the cutcomes of these other actions or claims are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, operating
results, or cash flows

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company's stock 1s listed on the NASDAQ Global Stock Market
There were approximately 58 stockholders of record of Common Stock as of February 21, 2014 including multiple beneficial holders at depositones, banks

and brokers listed as a single holder of record 1n the street name of each respective depository, bank or broker High and low sales prices for the Company’s
common stock for each quarter in 2013 and 2012 are as follows

2013 2012
Quarter High Low High Low
Fust, . T T S oY 988 ST . L 598 $ 1. w7978 O e 1480
Second s 1039 $ 48 $ 1720 § 9 96
Thurd: "~ i S S S 1733 8 ) 992§ Ll 11798, 7 867]
Fourth 3 2115 8 1497 § 1018 § 6 90

The Company did not pay any dividends in 2013 or 2012 The Company has certan restrictions under 11s debt facilibes from payng dividends n the future

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder retumn during the five year period from December 31, 2008 to  December 31, 2013 The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2008, 1 each of the Company’s common stock, the stocks compnising the S&P 500 Index and the stocks
comprising the peer group The peer group 1s comprised on the following compames BorgWarner Inc , Dana, Magna Internatronal, Mentor, Tenneco and
TRW This performance graph shall not be deemed to be lncorpn}ated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Form 10-K mto
any filing under the Secunities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by reference, and shall
not otherwise be deemed soliciting matenal or filed under such Acts

Federal-Mogul Stock Performance Chart
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents informaton from the Consolidated Financial Statements as of or for the five years ended December 31,2013 This information
should be read m conjunctien with ‘“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’” and *‘Financial Statements
and Supplemental Data *’

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2014 2010 2009
(Millinnl of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)
Consoelidated Statement of Operations Data TR T e e e e s e ]
Net sales 3 6,786 § 6,444 § 6,719 § 6,045 % 5,142
Cost of products sold |, _ - 7: ¢ /e F» B Barss 7 R T vy T (s,g;g@&f (553 TPFL (55640)%&%{5 0497 5 (4.3645)
Gross margin 1,020 913 1,079 996 778
Seiling, general and admymistrative expenses” 1 - 0 ws L (O GODE o (GB0VEEA. . (@16 . (682)]

Interest expense. net (99) (128) (127) (129} _ _(132)

Amomunon:expcnsc A T N i NN )
Restructuring expense, net (8) (26)
Eqﬁx?y‘ﬁﬁmmnﬁg monsconsolidated affiliates 4 W@Z&W%wl‘g@
OPEB curtailment gains

Wgéjﬁr&ﬂm (2)@5 e (1]
Other (expense) income, net (17 4]
Income tax (expense); berehn (IR R BLFT 38
Net income (loss) frorn contmum o eranons 165 (32)
Less net mncome attnbutable 1o noncontrollmg mterests (B) (7 (@) (6) {12)
Netincome (1oss) atfributable to Federal Mogul ¢ 1 SUL APE AL 8, T (17 Sai Ll @03, She, e 61y § . @s)]

o AP

'Amounts attributable to Federa]’-Moggiug LN

sl

m——rw—-—?

> § b

Net income (loss) from contmumg operations
(Loss) ulcome - fTom discontmned. otmns uet of tax- & P

Net mncome (Ioss) $ 41 3 {1mn s 50) $ 161 s (45}
SN O R AR T T R ST
Common Share Summary Attrlbutable to Federal-| Mogul

Net'n ( c sHarg- basic . ~° ' SE g L T Yot - ]
Net income {loss) from contmmr;g operations $ 075 § 099) § (064) $ 161 § (0 45}
{Loss) income from disconiinued operations; net of tax’ - ot (042)E ST (019), - (0 27)%%&% 002 1 & o1
Net income (loss) $ 933 § (118) % 091} $ 163 § (0 46)
I AR R R . s R S
Net income (loss} per common share - diluted

Net income (loss) from contminhg“c_fﬁégfatxénsv - 075 % (0*92) $ 064y %" 160§ __(0‘45)?
(Loss) mncome from discontinued operations, net of tax (042) (0 19) {027 002 ©01)
Net mcome (loss) e o s T T $- 03§ (118) § S 162 $ (0 46)}
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic (in muthons) - 1234 < 98 9 98 9- 98 9 m28#9j
Wclghted average shares ourstandmg diluted (in millions) 123 4 99 4 99 4 99 4 99 3
Dlv:dends declared per commonshare  «. - . 3., e . — 8 RS — § T
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= E= LA K TFRET T Y 5 o - A
Other Financnslglnfomaﬂongg{«@ - {,W&% il *”%M R T T ,?M o @f;g:}i T e )

2

Net cash provided from (used by) operating activities b 418 % 3) §$ 241 § 404 $ 328
Expenditures for property, plant, equlpmenu»%"“w PR RS Tal  aTu380) R (3g7) e T (ag) i 251y 0 (176))
Depreciation and amertization expense {296) (289) (284) (333) (327)

As of December 31
2013 2012 011 2010 2009

(Mll[lom ol’ Dollurs)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data & 4.5 o0 "] 0 a8 2% | %

T TR i C

s TR AEE R o ) |
Total assets $ 7, 182 $ 6, 927 $ 7,026 % 7 296 3 7,127
Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt™ ©  * 7 TET 16047 T T4 AR RIS T3 T g
Long-term debt 905 2,733 2,741 2,752 2,760
'Ij;_deml-MognI sbaréhbldem’%quity”ﬁ AT i 4 M:/g,«”w;_i“‘% o R 490w-f";,@’1ﬁ T2504, 57 o B8535, < 1’27::/'«{: Ll 1,0211_|
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Federal-Mogui Corporation 1s a leading giobal suppher of a broad range of components, accessones and systems to the automotive, small engine, heavy-duty,

marine, ratiroad, agnicultural, off-road, aerospace and energy, industnal and transport markets, including customers 1n both the onginal equipment

manufacturers and servicers (“OE”) market and the replacement market {“aftermarket”) The Company’s customers include the world’s largest automotive

OEs and major distnbutors and retailers in the independent aftermarket Geographically, the Company derived 37% of 1ts 2013 sales 1n the Uruted States and
63% internationally The Company has operations in established markets including Australia, Belgium, France, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Spain, Sweden, the
United Kingdom and the United States, and emerging markets mncluding Argentina, Brazil, China, Czech Repubhc, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico,

Morocco, Poland, Russia, South Afinca and Thailand The attendant nisks of the Company’s international operations are primarily related to currency

fluctuations, changes 1n local economic and pelitical conditions, and changes in laws and regulations

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain (or “PT™) segment focuses on engimal equipment products for
automotive, heavy duty and mdustnal apphcations The Vehicle Components Solutions (or “VCS”) segment sells and distributes a broad portfolio of
products 1n the global aftermarket, while also serving onginal equipment manufacturers with products including braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle
components This organizational model allows for a strong product line focus benefitting both ongimal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the
global Federal-Mogul teams to be responsive to customers’ needs for superior products and te promote greater wdentification with Federal-Mogul premum
brands Additionally, this orgamizational model enhances management focus to capitalize on opportunities for organic or acquisition growth, profit
improvement, resource utthzation and business model optimization 1n line with the unique requirements of the twe different customer bases

The Company operates 1n an extremely competitive tndustry, driven by global vehicle production volumes and part replacement trends Business 1s typically
awarded to the supplier offering the most favorable combimation of cost, quality, technelogy and service Customers continue to require periodic cost
reductions which drive the Company to continually assess, redefine, and improve its operations, products, and manufacturing capabilities to mamntain and
improve profitability Management continues to develop and execute imitiatives to meet the challenges of the industry and to achieve 1ts strategy for sustainable
global profitable growth, meluding the following ongomg ntiatives

. Best-Cost Production — The Company has established and expanded manufacturing operations 1n best-cost countries mn an effort to meet the cost
pressures inherent 1n the industry and increase profitability The Company has manufactuning operations or jomnt venture alhances in Brazil, China,
Czech Republic, Hungary, India, Korea, Mexico, Poland, Russia, South Africa, Thailland and Turkey

. Global Organjzation — Recognizing the ever-increasing globalization of the automotive industry, the Company orgamzed i1ts pnimary business units
on a global basis This allows each business to take advantage of best practices m product development, technology and innovation, manufacturing
capability and capacity Furthermore, the Company contimues to develop and implement standardized processes and consolidated systems to further
the direction and performance of the business

- Global Distribution Optimization — The Company continued 1ts efforts to optimize its aftermarket distribution network n order to smprove both the
efficiency of operations and customer order fulfiliment and delivery performance, including initiatives to streamline 1ts American and European
aftermarket operations; and expand its aftermarket operations mn Asia

. Global Deliverv Performance — In addition to the distribution network consolidation efforts, the Company upgraded many of its remaimng
distnibution centers with state-of-the-art warehouse management systems Furthermore, the Company has renewed its focus on internal logistics and
execution of mventory “pull” systems throughout its manufacturing operations and suppliers to ensure prompt and accurate replemishment of 1ts
distnbution network

. Expand Asia Pacific Presence — The Company has invested in manufacturing operations, both wholly-owned and jont venture relationships, in the
Asia Pacific region and maintains three technical centers in Shanghat, China, Bangalore, India, and Yokohama, Japan to support the Company’s
efforts in this region The Company intends to use these operations and techmical centers to strengthen 1ts current, as well as to develop new,
customer relationships in this important region '

. Customer Valued Technology — The Company has signsficant engineering and technical resources throughout its businesses focused on creating
value for customers with innovative solutions for both product apphecations and manufacturing processes

26




Cnitical Accounting Policies

The accompanying Consohidated Financial Statements, mncluded in Item 8 of this report, have been prepared in conformity with U 8 GAAP and,
accordingly, the Company’s accounting policies have been disclosed in Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements The Company considers accounting
estimates to be critical accounting policies when

. the estimates involve matters that are hughly uncertam at the time the accounting estimate 1s made, and
. different estimates or changes to estimates could have a matenial impact on the repotted financial position, changes in financial position, or results of
operations

When more than one accounting punciple, or the method of its application, 1s genetally accepted, management selects the principle or method that 1t considers
to be the most appropniate given the specific circumstances Application of these accounting pninciples requires the Company’s management to make estimates
about the firture resolution of existing uncertainties Estimates are typically based upon histonical expenence, current trends, contractual documentation, and
other information, as appropriate Due to the mherent uncertainty involving estimates, actual results reported n the future may differ from those estimates In
preparing these financial statements, management has made 1ts best estimates and judgments of the amounts and disclosures included 1n the financial
statements, giving due regard to mateniality The following summanzes the Company’s critical accounting policies

Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefit Planx

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans (“Pension Benefits™) and postemployment health care and Iife insurance benefits (“Other
Posiemployment Benefits” or “OPEB”) for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropnate actuanal methods and assumpnons, the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715,
Compensation — Retirement Benefits (“"FASB ASC 715™)

Actual results that differ from assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future periods and, accordingly, generally affect recogmzed expense and
the recorded obligation in future peniods Therefore, assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations as of the end of a fiscal year directly impact the expense
to be recognized 1n future perieds The prumary assumptions affecting the Company’s accounting for employee benefits as of December 31, 2013 are as
follows

. Long-term rate of return on plan asseis The required use of the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets may result in recogmized returns
that are greater or less than the actual retumns on those plan assets in any given year While the development of the long-term rate of return on assets
gives appropriate consideration to recent fund performance and tustonical returns, the assumption 1s designed to approximate a long-term prospective
rate The expected long-term rate of return used to calculate net peniodic pension cost s 7 45% for U S plans and a weighted average of 4 62% for
non-U § plans

. Drscount rate The discount rate refiects the effective yield on tngh quality fixed mcome securities available 1n the marketplace as of the
measurement date to settle pension and postemployment benefit obligations The discount rates used to calculate net pertodic benefit cost for the 2013
and year-end obligations as of December 31, 2013 were as follows

Pension Beneflts
Other
United Statey Nop-US Postemployment
Plans Plans Benefits
Used to calculate net periodic benefit cost T 370% 2 99% +  360%]|
Used ta calculate henefit obligations 4559 349% 445%
. Health care cost trend For posternployment health care plan accounting, the Company reviews extemal data and Company specific historical

trends for health care costs to determuine the health care cost trend rate The assumed health care cost trend rate used to measure next year’s
postemployment health care benefits 1s 6 88% for health care and 7 81% for drug cost, both dechiming to an ulimate trend rate of 5 00% m 2018
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The following table 1llustrates the sensitivity to a change 1n certain assumptions for projected benefit oblhigations (“PBO™), associated expense and other
comprehensive loss (“OCL") The changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Company’s funding requirements

Penston Benefits Other Postemployment
United States Plans Non-US Plans Benefits
Change Change Change
in 2014 Change n Change 1n Change in Change Change
Pension in Accumulated 2014 Pension in Accumutated in 2014 in
Expense FBO OCL Expense PBO OCL Expense PBO

(Mililons of Dollars)
25.bp decrease wn discount rate, 7§t 1o $oo o 28§ 4 Ry e T S ST TSI S (14) L 8 - et §ik. Ty

o o}

25 bp increase 1n discount rate (1) 27) 27 1) {13) 13 — )

253bp decrease,m remm -on asse:s}““;iﬂ *“i‘i m%ﬁﬁyﬁw S %%éi%;" s %;’;%ﬁq e AR L AT wmw‘xf A ﬁ;ﬁ
. LAy 4 S A f’;g;"f, s B SO R IO B W et

P e ’@;@‘ T, § T Y B OB e S e WG SRR R Ty e )

25 bp mncrease n return on assets

rate 2) — — — — — — —

The assumed health care trend rate has a significant impact on the amounts reported for non-pension plans The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a
change 1n the assumed health care trend rate

. Total Service and

Interest Cost APBO
’ (Millvons of Dollars)
00 basis point (“bp) ncrease in healt cate cost trend rate™  ©d ‘5« B R N N XL R IR L I S 726 |
100 bp decrease in health care cost trend rate g (1) % 23)

Environmental Matters

The Company 1s a defendant n lawsuits filed, or the recipient of admimistrative orders 1ssued or demand letters recerved, i various jurisdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (*CERCLA™) or other sumilar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be hable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged 1nto the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they currently own or operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Envirenmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and various provincial and state agencies that it may be a potentially responsible party (“PRP”)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provincial environmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site investigations and subsequent remedial activittes

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costliest to remediate are often current or former commercial waste disposal facilities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential jomnt and severat hability which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertarnng to
these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small Therefore, the Company believes 1ts exposure for liablity at
these sites 15 imited

The Company has also 1dentified certain other present and former properttes at which 1t may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing environmental
contamination, in some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 15 actively seeking to resolve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obligations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the 1ssues, the Company
has accrued amounts corresponding to 1ts best estimate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual ebligations on the basis of available
information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants

Recorded environmental Liabiities were $14 mullion and $15 million at December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively These accruals are based upon
management’s best estimates, which requires management to make assumptions regarding the costs for remediation activines, the extent to which costs may be
borne by other hable parties, the financial viability of such parties, the time periods over which remediation activities will be completed, and other factors
Although management believes its accruals will be adequate to cover the Company’s estimated hability for its exposure 1n respect to such environmental
matters, any changes 1n the underlying
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assumptions could materially impact the Company’s future results of operations and financial condition At December 31, 2013, management estimates that
reasonably possible material additional losses above and beyond management’s best estimate of required remediation costs as recorded approxamate  $44
mullion '

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records asset retrement obligations (“ARO™) 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations
The Company’s primary ARO activities relate to the removal of hazardous building materials at its facilites The Company records an ARO at fair value upon
muial recogmition when the amount can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectatton that an operating site may be closed or sold The Company has
dentfied sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sold In connection with these sites, the Company has
accrued $26 mullion and $29 mulbion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for ARO, pnmanly retated to anticipated costs of removing hazardous
building matenals and has considered impawment issues that may result from capitahzation of an ARQ

In determiming whether the faur value of ARO can reasonably be estirnated, the Company must determune if the obhgation can be assessed n relation to the
acquisition price of the related asset or 1f an active market exists to ransfer the obligation If the obligation cannot be assessed 1n connection with an acquisition
pnce and if no market exists for the transfer of the obligation, the Company must determine 1f 1t has sufficient information upon which to estimate the
obligation using expected present value techriques This determination requires the Company to estimate the range of settiement dates and the potential methods
of settlement, and then to assign the probabilities to the vanous potential settlement dates and methods

The Company has conditional asset retirement obhigations (“*CARQO”), pnmarily related to removal costs of hazardous matenals in binldings, for which it
behieves reasonable cost estimates cannot be made at this fime becanse the Company does not believe 1t has 2 reasonable basis 1o assign probabilines to a range
of potential settlement dates for these retirement obligations Accordingly, the Company 1s currently unable to determune amounts to accrue for CARO at such
sites [f new information were to become available whereby the Company could make reasonable probability assessments for these CARO, the amount accrued
for ARO could change significantly, which could matenally impact the Company’s statement of operations and/or financial posttion Settlements of ARO n
the near-future at amounts other than the Company’s best estimates as of December 31, 2013 also could matenally unpact the Company's future results of
operations and financial condition

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Testing

As a result of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment (“PP&E™) have been stated at estimated replacement cost as of
December 31, 2007, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropnate Long-hved assets such as definte-lived mtangible
assets have been stated at fair value as of December 31, 2007 Deprectation and amortization 1s computed principally by the straight-line method for financial
reporting purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes Definite-hved assets are pericdically reviewed for rmpairment indicators If
mpanment tndicators exist, the Company performs the required analysis and records an rmpaiment charge, as required, n accordance with the subsequent
measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant & Equipment The Company recogmzed PP&E mpairments of $8 milhion, $43 million
and $11 mthon for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively The 2012 property, plant and equipment impairment excludes $7
mullion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item
8 of this report

Goodwill Impawrment Testing

As of December 31, 2007, goodwall was determuned as the excess of reorgamzation value over amounts attributable to speciiic tangible and intangible assets,
in¢luding developed technology and customer relationshups Goodwall 15 reviewed for impairment annually as of October 1, or more frequently 1f impatrment
indicators exist, m accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, fniangibles — Goodwill and Other (“FASB ASC
350") This impaurment analysis compares the fair values of the Company’s reporting units to their related carrying values If a reporting unit carrying value
exceeds 1ts fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting unit’s unplied fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are recorded for any excess
of the goodwill carrying valug over the imphed fair value of goodwitl The reporting umits’ fair values are based upon consideration of various valuation
methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the risks involved, guideline transaction multiples, and multiples
of current and future earmings
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The Company has eight reporting units that have goodwill The following table categorizes the Company’s goodwill by reporting umt as of October 1, 2013
according to the level of excess between the reporting unit’s fair value and carrying value

Fair Value

Exceeds
Carrying Value Goodwill
(Milhions of Dollars)
Reportng Umit 15, " o orry 7o 0% oo nat o D6% 8§ roy, g e 56
Reporting Units 2 and 3 30% 243
RepornngUnit A% v 7 o o T a L AGeee e e T 98]
chortmg Umnits 5-8 >100 368
j,“i‘ j‘?‘if e o2 2 zi»; L f“i‘é’% b W‘""" Mg’mbé w’/“ & ""iaéi‘*; i ’sﬁﬁfﬂ iy ’“gy ﬁuj%ﬁniﬁigg;?QZQ‘H

Other Indefimite-Lived Intangible Assets Impawment Testing

The Company performs 1ts annual trademarks and brand names impairment analysis as of Octeber 1, or more frequently 1f impairment mdicators exist, in
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibies — Goodwill and Other This impairment analysis compares
the fawr vatues of these assets to the related carrying values, and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of carrying values over fair values These fair

values are based upon the prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropriate for
these intangible assets

All of the Company’s trademarks and brand names are associated with its aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product line Based upon the
October 1, 2013 imparment analysis, the Company has $25 milhion of trademarks and brand names in which carrying value equals farr value and $200
mulhion of trademarks and brand names 1n which fair value exceeds carrying value by at least 10%

The primary, and most sensitive, input utilized 1n determuning the fair values of trademarks and brand names 1s aftermarket sales by product hine The
Company performed a sensitivity analysis on 1ts trademarks and brand names and determined that a one percentage point decrease 1n 1ts projected future sales
growth rates within each aftermarket product hine would result m a $1 million impawrment

Results of Impairment Testing Described Above

The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011 \
(Millions of Dollars)
Property, plant and equipment _© - - % % oo et 8 Bleocwr 43§ v ] .
Goodwll — 96 231
Other indefinste-lived mtangible assets .. o 70 Py~ F e e e T en e LA 4G e e Fe 3T
Investments in non-consohidated affiliates —_ 2 —
L el MAe e L TE i e L e e R B -« 1800 WG 5, 279 ]

The 2012 impairment of property, plant and equipment excludes $7 mulhion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed
in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included in [temn 8 of this report

The 2011 impairment of goodwl! excludes $28 milhion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 5 to the
Consohdated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

The Company’s adjustment of assets to fair value are further discussed in Note 3 to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 of this report
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation m accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensafion — Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC
7187), which requires companies to expense the fair value of employee stock options and other forms of stock-based compensation Estmating fair value for
shared-based payments 1n accordance with FASB ASC 718 requires management to make assumptions regarding expected volatility of the underlying shares,
the nisk-free rate over the life of the share-based payment, and the date on which sharc-based payments will be settled Any differences in actual results from
management’s estimates could result in fair values different from estimated fair values, which could matenially impact the Company's future results of
operations and financial condition Additional financial information related to the Company’s share-based payments 1s presented m Note 20 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, inctuded in Item 8 of thus report

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“FASB ASC 740™) The determination of the Company’s
tax provision ts complex due to operations in many tax junisdictions outside the Umited States Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attnbutable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and lrabiliies and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and other tax loss and credit carryforwards The realization of deferred tax assets 1s dependent upon the Company’s ability to generate future
taxable income The Company records a valuation allowance to offset its deferred tax assets to the amount that 1t believes 1s more likely than not to be realized
Defetred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 1n the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settted The Company records a valuation allowance that primarily represents operating and other loss carryforwards for which
utilization 1s uncertamn Management judgment 1s required 1n determining the Company's provisien for income taxes, deferred tax assets and habihties and the
valuation allowance recorded against the Company’'s net deferred tax assets

The Company did not recerd taxes on its undistributed earmings of $824 mullion at December 31, 2013 since these earnmgs are considered by the Comnpany to
be permanently reinvested If at some future date, these earnings cease to be permanently remnvested, the Company may be subject to United States income
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on such amounts Detertmining the unrecogmzed deferred tax hability on the potential distribution of these earmngs 1s not
practicable as such hability, 1f any, 1s dependent on circumstances existing when remuttance occurs

At December 31, 2013, the Company had deferred tax assets of $236 mullion’, net of a valuation allowance of $1,151 million, and deferred tax abilities of
$492 mailhion At December 31, 2012, the Company had deferred tax assets of $285 mallion, net of a valuanon allowance of $1,223 melhion, and deferred tax
habilities of $536 million

The Company 1s subject to income taxes in the U § at the federal and state level and numerous non-U S junsdictions Significant judgment 15 required
determining the Company's worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and abihities In the ordinary course of business, there are
many transacuons and calculations where the ultimate tax determination 1s less than certain Accruals for income tax contingencies are provided for 1
accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC 740 The Company’s U § federal and certamn state income tax returns and certain non-U 8 mcome tax
returns are currently under various stages of audit by apphcable tax authorities Although the cutcome of ongoing tax audits 1s always uncertain, management
believes that 1t has approprate support for the positions taken on 1ts tax returns and that 1ts annual tax provisions include amounts suffictent to pay
assessments, if any, which may be proposed by the taxing authorities At December 31, 2013, the Company has recorded a hability for 1ts best estimate of the
more hkely than not loss on certain of tts tax positions, which 15 in¢luded i other non-current liabilities Nonetheless, the amounts ultimately paid, 1f any,
upon tesolution of the 1ssues raised by the taxing authonties may differ matenally from the amounts accrued for each year

Cn July 11, 2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation becamne part of the Icahn Enterpnses affihated group of corporations as defined in Section 1504 of the Intermal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp {“AEP”) 1s the common parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement”) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the
Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax items The Company will join AEP 1n the filing of AEP’s federal consolidated return and certain
state consolidated returns In these junisdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated retums with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax it would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce 1ts tax hability as a result of including the
Company 1 its consohdated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equa! to 20% of such reductron and the Company will carryforward for its own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction {the “Excess Tax Benefits™) While a member of the AEP affiliated group
the Company wili reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, if the Company should ever become deconsolidated
from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax lability i post-consolidation years the Company would not have paid had it actualty had the Excess
Tax Benefits for 1ts own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consolidation

31 .




cannot exceed the cumulative reductions 1n tax to the AEP group resulting from 1ts use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology will be used in
determiming 1ncome taxes
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Company's results of operations should be read in connection with Items 1, 3 and 7A of thus Form 10-K, as well as
“Forward-Looking Statermnents™ and Item t A ' Risk Factors " These items provide additional relevant mformation regarding the business of the Company, 11s
strategy, and the various mdustry dynamies in the OE market and the aftermarket which have a direct and significant impact on the Company’s results of
operat:ons, as well as the nsks associated with the Company’s business

Consolidated Results

Net sales
Year Ended December M
2013 2012 2011
{Millioas of Dollars)

Powertrain - o C e 48 AT § AT 03,0268 - 413l
Vehicle Components Solutions 2,935 2,853 2,985
jl_ntcr-segment eliminations * B R (322) : “5 ;7(335) C (397

Total $ 6,786 $ 6444 § 6,719

Net sales by group and region are listed below “PT,” represents Powertrain and “VCS™ represents Vehicle Components Solutions

PT VCS Total
| . 2013 - et Lty TR e e
North America 34% 57% 43%
EMEA . 49% - 37%> 7, 7 a4
Rest of World 17% 6% 13%
2012
North America i} T w0 T60% T 45%)
EMEA 49% 33% 42%
Rest of World 17% j 7% 13%
L 2011 i i ]
North Amenca 30% 58% 43%
EMEA 53% 35% s A5%
Rest of World 17% 7% 12%
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Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 011
{(Milligns of Dollars}
Powertramn - = = - - - & ;o $ (3,656) §° .- (34701 S - (3,570
Vehicle Compoenents Solutions (2,432) (2,390) (2,462)
ﬁalsegmenl“ei;ﬁxm:}{__ R LEE . S 7 LR r335k{ T T 397
Total Reporting Segment (5,766) (5.525) _(5,635)
rg?iporatnc,; “‘1}2‘::‘ T o R e p ,,,”“:%3 Y (6)%;2%2‘5:& T (5')1
Total Company 3 (5,766) § (5,531) § (5,640)
Gross margin by reporting segment was
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Millions of Dollars)
R G O Rk 4 AR, T
Vehicle Components Solutions 503 463 523
[/ Yol Roporung Segment™" o/ o 5% L oo = 7 e o 000% o 7 00 i s 1084
Corporate — {6) (5)
{7¥" TotalCompany . T LT R TR TR L L0004 $, B 913 $Eet T 079 ]

Consolidated Results — 2013 versus 2012

Consolidated net sales increased by $342 mulhon, or 5%, to $6,786 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $6,444 nullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 with a favorable foreign currency impact of $24 milhion Excluding sales directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business
from BorgWarner, Inc ("BWA") 0f$43 mullion and sales from the European distnbution agreement for ignition products of $112 mallion, sales organically
mcreased by $163 mullion, which 1s net of $19 muilion from customer price decreases This organic growth 1s compnsed of PT increases of $202 million
partially offset by VCS decreases of $39 mullion

Given PT's weighted market presence n the light vehicle, commercial vehicle and industrial markets and the year-over-year changes in production rates for
those markets, the expected PT sales change would be neghgible compared to the prior year However, PT sales increased by 5%, excluding the impact on sales
from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting growth 1n excess of the underlying market This was dniven by an increase n sales n
North America of 10%, an increase m sales in ROW of 12% and an increase 1 sales in Europe of 1%

In the VCS segment, external sales volumes decreased by $39 million excluding the impact of sales from the European distnbution agreement for igmition
products of $112 million This was mainly attnbutable to the decrease in sales in North Amenca of 3% Thus reflects the cessation of selected non-strategic
business contracts as well as a softening in the export business, mainly into Venezuela as a result of a tightening in exchange rate control 1 the country
However, this was partly offset by an increase 1n sales in VCS Europe of 4% resulting from aftermarket volume gains and improved market conditions

Cost of products soid increased by $235 mullton to $5,766 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to §5,531 nullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012 The increase 1n materials, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase 1n external and mter-segment sales volumes was $249
muthen along with an icrease of $33 mullion directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA Matenials and sourcing savings of $71
mllien and favorable productivity of $2 million were partly offset by currency movements of $20 mallion

Gross margin icreased by $107 million to $1.020 mllion, or 15 0% of sales {or the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $913 mullion, or 14 2% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012, driven mainly by materials and services sourcing savings of $71 million As well, the product mix 1ssues
expenenced 1n the first half of the year due to commercial vehicle productton dechmng to a greater extent than hight vehicle production has stabilized Therefore,
the impact on margins due to volutne increases was an imcrease of $57 mullion Other factors contributing to the increased margin were $10 mullion from the
acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA, reduced pension expense of $6 million, $4 million of currency movements, and favorable
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productivity of $2 million These increases were partially offset by unfavorable customer pneing of $19 million, $12 malhon of increased depreciation, and
unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $12 mullion

Consohidated Results - 2012 versus 2011

The fundamental causes of the drop 1n sales and margin were the U S dollar strengthening, pnimarily agawnst the euro, combined with reductions 1 virtually
all areas of European vehicle production and reductions in demand for European non-autometive and tndustrial apphications Although the U S passenger car
market grew shightly, this had only a mmor muigating impact on the Company’s sales given that the majonty of its QEM sales are to customers outside the
U S The European passenger car market also underwent a shift 1n demand away from diesel towards gasoline vehicles As a result of this change the diesel
share of the passenger car market i Europe moved from 51% 1n 2011 to 48% 1n 2012 Over 70% of the Company’s European QEM business serves the
European light vehicle diesel and heavy duty markets, and so the Company's sales were heavily impacted by this unfavorable shift in mux Furthermore,
given the generally greater techmcal complexity of these applicanons, the margins for these parts are genierally hugher than those serving light vehicle gasoline
market Therefore, not only were the Company’s sales stgmificantly impacted by the changes in European demand, but tts profits bore a disproportionate
adverse impact due to those reductions occurnng 1n some of the most profitable applications within those regions

Consolidated net sales decreased by $275 muthion, or 4%, to $6,444 milhon for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $6,719 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 201! Over 60% of the Company’s sales onginate outside the Umted States, therefore, the impact of the U S doltar strengthening, primarily
agamst the euro, decreased reported sales by $280 mullion Sales increases of 328 mulhion directly related to acquisttions, were mostly offset by $23 mullion of
decreased volumes Although sales were essennally flat when removimng the impact of exchange and acquisitions, there were significant regional differences in
the year over year constant dollar sales patterns, with North Amenca increasing by 2%, Europe decreasing by 4%, and ROW increasing by 8%

Cost of products sold decreased by $109 mullion to 35,531 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $5,640 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2011 The impact of the relative strength of the U S dollar decreased cost of products sold by $229 miliion The Company noted matenals and
services sourcing savings of $102 mullion These decreases were parually offset by $88 mullion of increases in material, labor and overheads related to the
regronal changes 1n sales, plus a further $25 rmullion of such costs directly related to the acquisiions The unfavorable productivity of $78 mullion 1s largely
the result of reductions n threct iabor lagging behnd the reducthions m manufactunng output 1o Europe, but also includes a $10 mifhion expense associated
with a commercial agreement with a customer, along with unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $21 mullion

Gross margin decreased by $166 milhion to $913 milhon, or 14 2% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $1,079 mullion, or 16 1%
of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2011 The favorable impact on margin of new program launches was more than offset by the impact of the

production volume declines 1n Europe, and a shift in mix towards lower margin products, resulting in anet $111 mllion decrease n gross margin Other
factors contributing to the decreased margin were unfavorable productivity of $78 mullion, inclusive of $10 mullion expense associated with a commercial

agreement with a customer, clurency movements of $51 million and unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $21 million These decreases
were partially offset by matenals and services sourcing savings of $102 million
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Reporting Segment Results 2013 versus 2012

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes i net sales. cost of products sold, gross margin and operational EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared with the year ended December 31, 2012 for each of the Company's reporuing segments Operational EBITDA 1s defined as
earmings from contiuing operations before 1nterest, ncome taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain items such as restructurng and 1mpairment
charges, Chapter 11 and UK Admumstration related reorpamization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of
the US based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gans or losses and the income statement impacts associated with stock appreciation nghts

Total
Inter-segment Reparting
PT vCS§S Eliminati S t Corporate Total
(Mullisns of Dollars) .

2002 8ales. 5 3976 S 283 § - (335) 8. 644§ — § sa4a
External sales volumes 209 85 —_ 294 —— 294
Tater-scgment sales volumes __+ - = 9 T 6 T e o e = ]
Customer pricing ) {12) (19) - (19)
IAcqmsitiems ;- R O T N N N -
Forelgn currency 21 3 — 24 —_ 24

TR I e T 2 T

,2013 Salesw i 0 g e ggﬁ%@w&w@:@gﬁ SHAASLT 35S i 2,930 S i (322)c Sk 6,7B6RE Sidrifioe—ivo S, 6,786%]

R ar é‘if - R R et TN ”%»%"b’“ﬁgi“’ﬂz aTatl];zj;é“ﬁw"x ‘1\‘} L T S hw
e e e i i o e e oy
N N ‘mmﬁﬁsﬁ b T oF % , Corporates., % S Total #7)

2012 Cost of Products Sold 5 (3 470) S (2,390) 3 335 S (5 525) S ) $ (5531)
l',".xtcrnal Sales volumes [ TRIK 1 & i - 1 & O T i el R S A IR e 2 TR TaIn)
Inter-segment sales volumes 7 (6) (13) (12) — (12)
Productvity, net of inflation _, - 1% . . N O R T N A - 24
Matenals and services sourcing 41 30 — 71 — 71
Pgﬁi&%j;&gr‘kg T T g B g s m}: s %%&»' fL L e e 6 T U6
Depreciation (11) (1) — (12) — (12)
M&siﬁops%_wwwﬁ R T i r(33§g: G F OB SR (33)%??’;‘ Gt T 3]
Foreign cumrency {24) 4 — 20 — (20)
2013 Cost of Products Sold T L S (3.656). 8 (2,432)]8 - 322§ (8766)° % - — § (5766)
Total
Inter-segment Reporung
PT vCS Elimination Segment Corporate Totad
2012 Gross Margin _ o e $: .. 456 §. 463 §-: o — § . 919. § ¢)_§_ 913 |
Extemal sales volumes / mix 44 13 — 57 — 57
Inter-segment sales volumes —_ — T — —— L e =
Unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales (12) — —_ 12) — (12)
Customer pricing, ~ “:m__-:ﬁ‘ T o N (‘12) — '—(_1 N — ( 19')_}
Productlvny. net ofmﬂauun (1) 3 — 2 — 2
Malerm.ls and se; services so—u}—cmg —— Tar 30 — 71- — 7ﬂ
Pension — — — — 6 6
'_Qgpreclatlon‘:‘f T T - Z’.—l) (1) e Qg”f — “WM(IZ_‘Q
Acquisitions 10 —_ — 10 -—
I%-relgqcm:r_encxﬂA e 3} 7 — 4 — £
2013 Gross Margn S 517 § 563 § — $ 1,020 § — § L1620
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Inter-segment Reporting

B PT VCs El Seg Corporate Total
2012 Operational EBITDA -~ - 8. 288 S 20008 . . —. 8 i 48, 8§ . - § 458 |
External sales volumes / mix 46 (5 — 41 — 41
Unabsorbed fixed costs on wter-segment sales = ~ 77 =7 4 Ty T on T S T T R (YT R o r e U (12)]
Customer pnicing (7 (12) — (19) — (19
Productmity = Costof products sold ~ -~ .~ T " e TRy T gt T v w2 T 2.]
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Powertrain

Sales increased by $247 mullion to $4,173 mithon for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $3,926 muliion for the year ended December 31, 2012, of
which $43 mullion of this increase resulted from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA External sales volumes increased by $202 million net
of customer price decreases of $7 million This was dniven by an increase in sales 1n North Amenica of 10% or $117 mullion, an increase 1 sales in ROW of
12% or $73 mullion and an increase in sales in Europe of 1% or $12 million Given PT’s werghted market presence in the light vehicle, commercial vehicle
and industnial markets and the year over year changes in productzon rates for those markets, the expected PT sales change would be negligible compared to the
prior year However, PT sales mereased by 5%, excluding the 1mpact on sales from the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA - reflecting growth
1n excess of the underlying market The Powertrain segment generated approximately 70% of its revenue outside the United States and the resulting cuirency
movements icreased reporied sales by $21 mullion

Cost of products sold increased by $186 millron to $3,656 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $3.470 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 The increase in matenals, labor and overheads as a direct result of the increase 1 external and inter-segment sales volumes/mix was $158
muillion along with an increase of $33 milhon directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA Matenals and sourcing savings of $41
milhon These increases were partially offset by currency movements of $24 mullien, mereased depreciation of $11 mullion and unfavorable productivity of
$1 milben

‘Gross margin mereased by $61 million to $517 milhon, or 12 4% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $456 million, or 11 6% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 This increase consists of a net favorable sales volumes and regional mix impact of $44 mllion, matenals and
services sourcing savings of $41 mullion and a 310 mullion 1ncrease 1n gross margin directly related g) the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA
partially offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on nter-
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segment sales volumes of $12 mullion, ncreased deprectation of $11 milhion, $7 nullion of unfavorable customer pticmg, currency movements of $3 rmllion,
and unfavorable productivaty of $1 million

Operational EBITDA mcreased by $90 million to $378 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $288 mullion for the vear ended December 31,
2012 This mcrease was caused by net favorable external sales volume and mix of $46 million, matenals and services sourcing savings of $41 million,
favorable preductivity of $14 million an increase in equity earnings of non-consohidated affiliates of $3 million and currency movements of $2 mllion,
partially offset by unabsorbed fixed costs on mter-segment sales volumes of $12 rullion, unfavorable customer pricing of $7 mmllion and other decreases of
$3 milhon

Vehicle Components Solutions

Sales increased by $82 million to $2,935 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $2,853 msllion for the year ended December 31, 2012,
including $112 milthon from the European distribution agreement for igmition products The corganic external sales volumes change was therefore a decrease of
£3%9 mullion, inchuding the impact of customer price decreases of $12 muilion This was driven by a decline in North Amenca of $51 mulhien or 3% This
reflects the cessation of selected non-strategic business contracts as well as a softening 1n the export business, mainly into Venezuela as a result of a ightenung

mn exchange rate control i the country Sales in ROW decreased by $21 mulhon or 11% Hewever, this was offset by an ncrease in sales in VCS Europe of
$33 million or 4%, excluding the impact on sales from the European distnbution agreement for ignition products, due to strong aftermarket volume gains as

market conditions 1n this region continued to improve

Cost of products sold increased by $42 mullion to $2,432 mllion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $2,390 mitheon for the year ended
December 31, 2012 This increase was due to 372 milhion directly associated with external sales volumes/mix, partially offset by favorable matenals and
services sourcing savings of $30 mullion, currency movements of $4 ruthon, and efficiencies of $3 mulhion

Gross margin increased by $40 mullion to $503 mmllion, or 17 1% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $463 mallion or 16 2% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 Thus 15 the result of materals and services sourcing savings of $30 mullior, favorable external sales volume/mix
of $13 mullion, currency movements of $7 mithon and favorablte productivity of $3 mmllion, partially offset by unfavorable customer pricing of $12 million
and increased depreciation of $1 milhon

Operattonal EBITDA mcreased by $9 mullion to $209 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $200 nullion for the year ended December 31,
2012 Favorable matenals and services sourcing of $33 mulhon and other increases of $22 milhon, nclusive of a year-over-year improvement as 2012
operational EBITDA was negatively impacted by a $9 million legal and contractual settlement, were partially offset by unfavorable productivity of $30
mullion including labor inflation, increased year-over-year mcentive compensation and project costs, customer price decreases of $12 million and a decrease 1n

equity earnings of non-consol:dated affiliates of $4 million

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Seling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) were $719 mullion, or 10 6% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to $702
tllion, or 10 9% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 This $17 mulhon mcrease was due to acquisition-related expenses of $14 million,
increased costs in excess of labor and benefits inflation of $9 mullion, and $3 mullion due to currency movements, partially offset by matenals and services
sourcing savings of $4 million and decreased depreciation of $2 milhion

The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to integrate the Company’s leacing technologies inte advanced products and
processes, to provide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufacturing sites, and to provide technological expertise in engmeering and design
development providing solutions for customers and bringing new, innovative products to market Included in SG&A were research and development (“R&D™)
costs, mcludmg product and validation costs, of $173 mulhion for cach of the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012

OPEB Curtailment Gamn

Dunng the second quarter of 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of ts U § manufactuning locations As this location participated m the Company’s
U 8 Welfare Benefit Plan, the plan was re-measured due to 1ts curtailment implhications The resulting reduction 1n the average remawning future service period
to the full eligibility date of the remaiming actrve plan participants i the Company's U S Welfare Benefit Plan miggered the recogmiion of a $19 mulhon OPERB
curtailment gaimn, which was recognized in the consohdated statements of operations duning the second quarter of 2013 It should be noted that the calculation
of the curtmlment excluded the newly created prior service credit

In July 2012, as a result of contract negothanons with a wmon at one of the Company’s U § manufacturing locations, the benefits under the U S Welfare
Benefit Plan were eliminated for the location’s active participants Since this plan change reduced benefits
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attributable to employee service already rendered, 1t was treated as a negative plan amendment, whuch created a $13 million prior service eredst 1 accumulated
other comprehensive loss The corresponding reduction in the average remaiming future service penod to the full eligibility date also triggered the recognition of

a2 $51 milhion OPEB curtaslment gain which was recognized in: the consolidated statements of operations duning the third quarter of 2012 1t should be noted

that the calculation of the curtarlment excluded the newly created prior service credit

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $99 nuilion 1n the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $128 mithon for the year ended December 31, 20i2 The decrease 1s
pnimanly due to the expiration of unfavorable interest rate swaps

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net was $3 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $26 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012

Foreign currencv exchange The Company recogmzed $10 mullion 1n foreign currency exchange losses during the year ended December 31, 2013 The
Company recognized $18 mulhion 1n foreign currency exchange losses during the year ended December 31, 2012, $10 milhion of which relates to unrealized
losses associated with outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts that settled during 2013
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Reporting Segment Results 2012 versus 2011

The following table provides a reconcthiation of changes in net sales, cost of products sold, gross margin and operationat EBITDA for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared with the year ended December 31, 2011 for each of the Company’s reporting segments Operational EBITDA 1s defined as
earnings from contimuing operations before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and certain 1tems such as restructuning and impairment
charges, Chapter 11 and U K Administranon related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of businesses, the non-service cost components of
the U S based funded pension plan, OPEB curtailment gains or losses and the income statement impacts associated with stock appreciation rights
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Contained within the Company’s 2012 Operational EBITDA of $488 million are $25 mullion of charges compnised of a $10 milhion commercial agreement
with a customer, a $9 million legal and contractual settlement, and $6 muillion in expense associated with a payment made to the Company’s retired CEO,
Jose Mana Alapont

Powertrain

Sales decreased by $205 mullion to $3,926 milhon for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $4,131 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2011 The
Powertram segment generated approximately 70% of 1ts revenue outside the Umted States and the resulting currency movements decreased reported sales by
$183 mulhion Unfavorable customer pricing also reduced sales by 36 million A decrease 1n inter-segment sales volumes caused a $60 milhon decrease in
sales, largely as a result of the non-recurrence of prior year inventory bwild for VCS, partially offset by an mcrease in external sales volumes of $24 million
This consists of sigmficant regional and market differences [In fact, sales 1n NA rose by $52 mullion, or 5%, sales in Europe fell by $76 milhion, or 4%,
and sales in ROW rose by $48 mullion, or 8% These movements are generally in line with the changes in vehicle production in those regions However, with
over 70% of PT’s European business serving the light vehicle diesel and heavy duty markets, 11s sales were heavily impacted by this unfavorable shift 1 mix
Furthermore, given the generally greater technical complexuty of these applications, the margins for these parts are generalty bugher than those used 1n the hight
vehicle gasoline market Therefore, not only were PT's sales significantly impacted by the changes 1n European demand, but its profits bore a disproportionate
adverse mmpact due to those reductions occurnng 1n some of the most profitable applications within those regions Sales decreases were aiso partially offset by
a $20 mullion ncrease in sales directly related to the acquisition of the spark plug business from BWA
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Cost of products sold decreased by $100 milhon 1o $3,470 nullion for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 53,570 mullion for the year ended
December 31,2011 This was due to currency movements of $156 muliion, matenals and services sourcing savings of $56 mullion, and reduced materals
and labor for inter-segment sales of $39 mullion There were increases in matertals, labor and overheads of $58 mullion due to mcreased volumes 1n NA and
ROW, not being offset by sufficient decreases in Europe, where volumes declined The unfavorable productivity of $66 milhion 1s largely the result of
reductions mn direct labor lagging behind the reductions i manufactunng output in Europe, but also includes a $10 mllion expense associated with a
commercial agreement with a customer

Gross margin decreased by $105 milhion to $456 mullion, or 11 6% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $561 million, or 13 6% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2011 Matenals and services sourcing savings of $56 mitlion and a $3 mullion increase mn gross margin directly
related to the acqusition of the spark plug busmness from BWA were more than offset by unfavorable productivity of $66 mullion, a net unfavorable sales
volumes and regional mix mmpact of $34 million, currency movements of $27 milhon, unabsorbed fixed costs on inter-segment sales volumes of $21 mullion,
increased depreciation of $10 mullion and $6 mmllion of unfavorable customer pricing

Operational EBITDA decreased by $137 mullion to $288 miliion for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $425 mlhion for the year ended December 31,
2011 This decrease was caused by unfavorable productivity of $89 million, net unfavorable external sales volume/mix of $34 mulhon, currency movements
of $36 mullion, unabsorbed fixed costs on nter-segment sales volumes of $21 mullion, a decrease 1n equity earmings of non-consolidated affiliates of $ 3
muiihon, unfavorable customer pricing of $6 milhon, $4 mullion allocation of expense essociated with retired CEO payment and other decreases of $7 mullion
These decreases were partially offset by materials and services sourcing savings of $62 mullion, and a $2 rmlhon increase directly related to the acquisition of
the spark plug business from BWA

Vehicle Components Solutions

Sales decreased by $132 mullion to $2,853 mulhion for the year ended December 31, 2012, from $2,985 milhon for the year ended December 31, 2011 The
VCS segment generated approximately 50% of 1ts revenue outside the Umted States and the resulting currency movements decreased reported sales by 397

million Otherwise, sales were largely flat to the prior year, although there was a sigruficant shuft 1n the mux of products away from premium towards mud-
grade products in North America

Cost of products sold decreased by $72 millien to $2,390 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $2,462 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2011 This decrease 1s pnmanly duoe to currency movements of $73 milhion and matenals and services sourcing savings of $46 milhon,
partially offset by increased product coss of $30 million, reflectung the shuft 1n product mux from premium to rmd-grade product

Gross margin decreased by $60 milhon to $463 milhion, or 16 2% of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $523 million, or 17 5% of
sales, for the year ended December 31, 2011 This decrease was due to a significant shift 1n the mix of products away from premium and towards mid-grade
products in North America, as well as sofiness in certamn key European markets, which decreased gross margin by $77 muliion Other decreases consist of
currency movements of $24 milhion and unfavorable productivity of $12 million These decreases were partially offset by materials and services sourcing
savings of $46 mullion, and 1increases i customer pricing of $6 mullron - largely the non-recurrence of pnor year customer incentives

Operauonal EBITDA decreased by $54 mullion to $200 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $254 mullion for the year ended December 31,
2011 Thus decrease was due to the impact of a sigmficant shift in the mix of products away from premium and towards nmd-grade products 1n Nerth
America, as well as sofiness in certain key European markets of $77 mulhon, currency movements of $16 mmllion, net unfavorable productivity of $11
muthon, $2 million allocation of expense associated with retired CEO payment and other decreases of $7 mullion, inclusive of a $9 mullion legal and
contractual settlement These decreases were partially offset by materals and services sourcing savings of $48 million and customer price increases of $6
miilion - largely the non-recurrence of prior year customer incentives

Selling, General and Admunistrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expenses (*SG&A™} were $702 mullion, or 10 9% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to $680
milhon, or 10 1% of net sales, for the year ended December 31, 2011 This $22 nmullion increase was due to increased costs 1 excess of labor and benefits
inflation of $36 million, inclusive of $6 million m expense assoctated with a payment made to the Company’s retired CEQ, Jose Maria Alapont, acquisition-
related expenses of $7 mullion and $10 mullion of other expenses, parually offset by currency movements of $22 mullion, matenals and services sourcing
savings of $6 million and decreased stock-based compensation of $2 mullion
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The Company maintains technical centers throughout the world designed to integrate the Company’s leading technologies mto advanced products and
processes, to pravide engineenng support for all of the Company’s manufacturning sites, and to provide technological expertise in engineenng and design
development providing solutions for customers and bringing new, nnovative products to market Included in SG&A were research and development (“R&D")
costs, incluchng product and validanon costs, of $173 millzon for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared with $166 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011

OPEB Curtailment Gam

In July 2012, as a result of contract negotations with a umon at one of the Company's U 8 manufactunng locations, the benefits under the U S Welfare
Benefit Plan were elimuinated for the location’s active participants Since this plan change reduced benefits auributable to employee service already rendered 1t
was treated as a negative plan amendment, which created a $13 mullion prior service credit in accumulated other comprehensive loss The corresponding
reduction 1n the average remaimming future service period to the full ehigibnhty date also triggered the recogmition of 2 351 mithon OPEB curtariment gamn which
was recognized 10 the consolidated statements of operations during the third quarter of 2012 It should be noted that the calculation of the curtariment excluded
the newly created prior service credit.

In December 2011 the Company ceased operations at one of its U S manufacturing locations The resulung reduction i the average remamning future service
peniod to the full ehgibility date of the remaimng active plan participants mn the Company’s U S Welfare Benefit Pian tnggered the recognition of a 31 million
OPEB curtaitment gain, which was recogmzed m the conselidated statements of gperations dunng the fourth quarter of 2011

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense was $128 mullion in the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to $127 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2011

Other Expense, Net
Other expense, net was $26 mullion for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to $18 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2011
Foreign currency exchange The Company recogmzed $18 mllion 1n foreign currency exchange losses during the year ended December 31, 2012, $10

mtllion of which relates to unrealized losses associated with outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts that settle over the next twelve months The Company
recogmzed $9 million in foreign currency exchange losses duning the year ended December 31, 2011

Adjustment of Assets to Fawr Value
The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as follows

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Milllons of Dollars)
Property, plant and equipment $ 8 § 43 % 11}
Goodwill — 96 231
Other indefinrte-lived tangible assets — 46 37]
Investments in non-consolidated affiliates — 2 —
?_ $ LI 187 § 2791

The 2012 property, ptant and equipment impairment excludes $7 mullion related to discontinued operations Dhscontinued operations ave further discussed 1n
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of thus report

The 2011 goodwill impairment excludes $28 mulhon related to discontinued operatiens Discontinued operations are further discussed 1n Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in [tem 8 of this report

The Company’s adjustment of assets to fair value are further discussed in Note 3 to the Consohidated Financial Statements, included in 1tern 8 of this report
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Restructuring Activities

The Company, as part of 1ts sustainable global profitable growth strategy, has undertaken various restructuring activities to streamline 1ts operations,
consolidate and take advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimatety achieve cost reductions These restructuring activities include efforts to
integrate and rationzhize the Company's businesses and to relocate manufacturing operations to best cost markets Such activities have resulted in the
redeployment of human and capital resources to the Company’s core businesses

In February 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved evaluation of restructuning oppertunities i order to improve operating performance The
Company obtamed Board approval to commence a restructuring plan (“Restructuring 2013”) as detailed below Restructuring 2013 1s intended to take place
from 2013-2015

Net Restructuning 2013 costs by type of exit cost are as follows

Total Estmated
Expected Costs . Additional
Costs 2013 Costs
(Mulons of Dollars)
]:“.inp_l_gyee COSIS s 3L L. 3s et Dew $0 o 00 S8 §E ﬁxf‘»“’"n“ﬁ”zﬁ:ia“ $ i 20 20 }

Facility costs 15 1 14
TR " g AR g IR g e R T 440

In June 2012, the Company announced a restructuring plan (“Restructuring 2G12") to reduce or ¢lirminate capacity at several lagh cost VCS facalities and
transfer production to lower cost locations Restructuning 2012 was completed as of December 31, 2013 In connection with Restructuring 2012, the Company
incurred restructuring charges totaling $13 mullion

Net Restructuning 2012 costs by type of exut cost are as follows

Total
Incurred Costs 1n Costs in
Costs 2012 2013
(Millioas of Dallars)
e T T i Ty T £ T e T g
Employee costs o+ - teuiivaTd i an e QAR w T100 § SR T B s e
Facmty costs. 2 — 2
I T = 7 T - - -
[ e T R g, 130y See s g 1L 8 0 T L 24

Dunng the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded $14 million and $5 mullion, respectively, in net restructuring expenses outside
of Restructuring 2012 and Restructuning 2013 The Company recorded $14 mullion in employee costs related to other restructuning activities during 2012 The
Company recorded $3 million i employee costs and $2 million in facility closure costs related to other restructuring zctivities duning 2011

The Company's restructuring activities are further discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, mcluded n Item 8 of this report

Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company recorded income tax cxpense of $56 million on inceme from continuing operations before mcome taxes of
$157 mullion, compared to tncome tax benefit of $29 million on a loss from continuing operations before income taxes:of $120 nullion for the year ended
December 31, 2012, and compared to income tax expense of $16 mullion on a loss from contimung operations before income taxes of $40 muliron for the year
ended December 31, 2011 The mncome tax expense for the year ended December 31 2013 differs from the U $ statutory rate due primarily to pre-tax mcome
taxed at rates lower than the U 8 Statutory rate, recording a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets that are believed to be not more likely than not to be
realized, income 1n junsdictions with no tax expense due to offsetting valuation allowance release, partially offset by pre-tax losses with no tax benefits and a
tax benefit recorded related to special economic zone tax incentive The income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2012 differs from statutory rates due
primarnly to a goodwill impairment with no tax benefit and pre-tax losses with no tax benefit, partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the
U S statutory rate, income n junsdictions with no tax expense due to offsetung valuation allowance releases, release of uncertain tax posihens due
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to audst settlements, valuation allowance release, and a tax benefit recorded refated to a special economic zone tax incentive The income tax expense for the year
ended December 3!, 201 1chffers from the U § statutory rate pnmanly due to a goodwill impairment with no tax benefit and pre-tax losses with no tax benefit,
partially offset by pre-tax income taxed at rates lower than the U § statutory rate, income n junsdictions with no tax expense due to offsetting valuation
allowance releases, tax refund from prior years, release of uncertain tax positions due to audit settlement and a tax benefit recorded related to a special economic
zone tax incentive

The Company believes that it 1s reasonably possible that certain of 11s unrecognized tax benefits in multiple junisdictions, which primanly relate to transfer
pncing and other various matters, may decrease by approximately $25 million in the next 12 menths due to audit setilements or statute expirations, of which
approx:mately $5 mullion, 1f recogmzed could impact the cffective tax rate .

On July i1, 2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterpnises affiliated group of corporations as defined 1n Section 1504 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, of which Amencan Entertainment Properties Corp (“AEP") 15 the common parent The Company subsequently entered
nto a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocanon Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the Company have agreed t
the allocation of certain income tax items The Company will join AEP 1n the filing of AEP’s federal consolidated retumn and certain state consohdated returns
In those junsdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated returns with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax it would have owed had it continued
to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 15 able to reduce 1ts tax hability as a result of including the Company 1n 1ts consolidated group,
AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryforward for its own use under the Tax Allocation
Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits™) While a member of the AEP affihated group the Company will reduce
the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, 1f the Company should ever become deconsolidated from AEP AEP will
retmburse the Company for any tax hability in post-consohidation years the Company would not have paid had 1t actually had the Excess Tax Benefits for its
own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative reductions in tax to the AEP group resulting from
1ts use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology wall be used i determinng income taxes

The Company’s income taxes are further discussed 1n Note 15 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements, included 1n Item 8 of this report

Discontinued Operations

In connection with 1ts strategic planning process, the Company assesses its operations for market position, product technology and capability, and
profitability Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competitive advantage are considered non-core and may be considered for
divestiture or other exit activittes Duning the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations located 1n France, its
connecting rod manufactunng facility located in Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located in the United Kingdom and its fuel pump business, which included
an aftermarket business component and a manufactunng and research and development factlity located in the United States These divestitures have been
presented as discontinued operations 1n the consolidated statements of operations The Company’s discontinued operations are further discussed in Note 5 to
the Consohdated Financial Statements, mcluded m Item 8 of this report
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Liqudity and Capital Resources
Operanng Activities

Net cash provided from (used by} operating activities was $418 million, $(53) mulhion and $241 mlhon for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively

Working Capital

The cash inflows {outflows) from changes in working capital were $59 million, $(292) mullion and $(190) mlhion for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively

The cash inflow due to changes 1n accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2013 was 51 mullion as terms extensions with certain customers 1n the
North Amencan aftermarket reached a plateau near the end of 2012

The cash outflows due to changes in accounts receivable for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 of $(197) million and $(137) million, respectively,
were pnimarily the result of terms extensions with certain customers in the North American aflermarket

The cash outflews due to changes tn inventory of $(21) millton and $(93) mullion for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are largely
n support of increased customer service and delivery

The cash outflow due to changes mn mventory of $(140) milion and the cash inflow due to changes 1n accounts payable of $87 mullion for the year ended
December 31, 2011 are both largely as a result of the mcrease 1n global revenues for full year 2011 as compared to full year 2010

Investing Activities

Cash flow used by nvesting activities was $355 milhon, $427 million and $356 muthon for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively Expenditures for property, plant and equipment were 3380 nullion, $387 rmlkion and $348 mllion for the years ended December 31 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively

Durning the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested 1ts sintered components operations located 1n France, 1ts connecting rod manufacturing
facility located in Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located 1n the Umted Kingdom and 1ts fuel pump business, which ncluded an aftermarket business
component and a manufactunng and research and development facility located in the United States The Company recognized net proceeds of $26 mullion
assoclated with these divestitures

In June 2012, the Company entered into a defimtive agreement to purchase the spark plug business from BorgWarner, Inc The purchase was completed n
September 2012 for $52 million, net of cash acquired

Financing Aciivities and Liquidtty

Cash flow provided from (used by) financing activities was $242 mllion, $(22) million and $(15) mullion for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012,
and 2011, respectively The 2013 cash inflow was primanly the result of a $500 million nghts offening 1n July 2013, partially offset by a $250 mullion
prepayment on the Company's tranche B term loan 1n November 2013

On December 6, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment (the “Amendment”) of its Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of
December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement”), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc , as Administrative Agent,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A, as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Farge Foottull, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, to amend 1ts existing revoiving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit factlity {the “Replacement Revolving Facility™) The

Amendment, among other things, (1) increases the aggregate commtments available under the Replacement Revolving Facility from $3540 nullion to $550

miflion, (1) extends the matunity date of the Replacement Revolving Facility to December 6, 2018, subject to certain limited exceptions descrtbed below, and

{1n) amends the Company’s borrowing base to provide the Company with additional hquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facility generally bear interest at a vaniable rate per annum equal to (1) the Alternate Base Rate (as defined n the
Credit Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of 0 50% to | 00% based on the average monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
(1) Adjusted LIBOR Rate (as defined 1n the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of 1 50% to 2 00% based on the average monthly availabihty under the
Replacement Revolving Facility An unused commutment fee of ¢ 375% also 1s payable under the terms of the Amendment

Under certain lirmted carcumstances the maturity date of the Replacement Revolving Facility may be accelerated In the event that as of a particular
determination date more than $300 rmilhion aggregate principal amount of the Company’s existing term loans and certain refated refinancing mdebtedness will
become due within 91 days of such determination date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such deterrination date
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The Amendment does not alter the Company’s existing Tranche B or Tranche C term loans under the Credit Agreement dated December 7, 2007 The tranche
B term loans mature December 27, 2014 and the tranche C term leans mature December 27, 2015 All term loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 1 9375% To
the extent that interest rates change by 25 basis pownts, the Company’s annual interest expense would show a comresponding change of approximately $7
million and $2 mullion for years 2014 - 2015, the period of the term loans under the Company's Credit Agreement

The Company has $1,694 nullion of short-term debt as of December 31, 2013, of which $1,597 null:on relates to the tranche B term loan that matures on
December 27, 2014 On December 6, 2013, High River Limited Partnership (“High Raver™), an affilrate of Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company’s largest
stockholder, provided a backstop commitment letter (the "Backstop Commitment”) 1n favor of the Company with respect to 1ts existing Tranche B term
loan The Backstop Commtment provides that 1if the Company 1s unable to refinance 1ts Tranche B term loan on or pror to September 27, 2014, High River
Limtted Partnership or an affiliate thereof with at least the same net worth will provide loan financing of up to $1 6 billion to the Company and 1ts
subsidiaries on arms-length terms to provide the funding necessary to repay the Tranche B term loan The High Raver loan will be subject to negouiation and
execution of definttive documentation to be approved by the independent directors of the Company

The Company’s ability to obtain cash adequate to fund its needs depends generally on the results of 1ts operations, restructuring imtiatives, and the
availability of financing Management believes that cash on hand, cash flow from operations, and available borrowings under its Credit Agreement and the
Backstop Commitment will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures and meet 1ts operating obligations through the end of 2014 In the longer term, the
Company believes that its base operating potential, supplemented by the benefits from 1its announced restructuning programs, will provide adequate long-term
cash flows However, there can be no assurance that such initiatives are achievable 1n this regard

The Credit Agreements contains some affirmative and negative covenants and events of default, including, subject to certain exceptions, restrictions on
incurring additional indebtedness, mandatory prepayment provisions associated with specified asset sales and dispositions, and limutations on 1)
Investments, 1) certain acquisitions, mergers or consolidations, m) sale and leaseback transactions, tv) certain transactions with affihates, and v) dividends
and other payments 1n respect of capital stock The Company was in comphiance with ail debt covenants under the Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2013
Based on current forecasts, the Company expects to be i compliance with the covenants under the Credit Agreement through December 31, 2014

The Company received $30 mullion n msurance proceeds directly associated with the Thailand manufacturing facility flood during the year ended
December 31, 2012 For further details, see Note 22 to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included in ltem 8 of this report

Off Balance Sheer Arrangemenis

The Company does not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The Company has the following contractual obligations and commercial commitments outstanding at December 31, 2013

2014 s 2016 017 2018 Thereafter Total
{(Millions of Dollars)
Debt obligations * : . $ 1694 8§ - 933§ T [F 1§ — % — § 2,629
Interest payments 70 22 2 2 2 — 98
:{..“gtters of credut ‘ X . e i —_ — _— 39 |
Pension and other postemployment benefit plans 107 101 99 83 65 244 704
Operating leases 45. 37 0 32 2316 25 178 ]
Total . $ 1,955 § 1093 § 134 § 114 $ 83 % 269 $ 3,648

In addinon, the Company estimates its 2014 capital expenditures to be 1n the range of $370-$420 mithion

Other Liquidity and Caputal Resource ltems

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had $761 million of cash and cash equivalents, of which $224 mallion was held by foreign subsidharies In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19, the Company asserts that these funds are indefinutely reinvested due to operational and investing needs

of the foreign locations Furthermore, the Company will accrue any apphcable taxes in the period when the Company no longer mtends to indefimtely remvest

these funds The Company would expect that the
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umpact on cash taxes would be immaterial due to the availabiity of net operation loss carryforwards and related valuation allowances, earnings considered
previously taxed, and applicable tax treaties

The Company matntains investments in several non-consolidated affiliates, which are located 1n China, Kerea, Turkey and the Umited States The
Company’s direct ownership 1n such affiliates ranges from approximately 2% to 50% The agpregate investments m these affihates were $253 mllion and
$240 millton as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Dividends recerved from non-consohidated affiliates by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 | were $33 mullion, $31 muthion and $16 million, respectively

The Company’s joint ventures are businesses established and mamntained 1 connecnon with 1is operating strategy and are not special purpose entities In
general, the Company does not extend guarantees, loans or other instruments of a variable nature that may result in sncremental nisk to the Company’s
liquidity position Furthermore, the Company does not rety on dividend payments or other cash flows from 1ts non-consolidated affiliates to fund its
operations and, accordingly, does not believe that they have a maienal effect on the Company's hquidity

The Company holds a 50% non-controlling mnterest in a joint venture located (n Turkey (“Turkey JV™) The Turkey JV was established i 1995 for the

purpose of manufacturing and marketing automotive parts, mcluding pistons, piston rings, piston pins, and cyhnder liners, to onginal equipment and

aftermarket customers The Company purchases/sells inventory from/to the Turkey IV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were $152 mullion, $150 mmllion and $171 mullion, respectively Sales to the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 were $44 mullion, $45 million and $46 milhon, respectively The Company had net accounts payable balances with the Turkey JV of $6 million
and $5 m:llion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

The Company has determined that 1ts investments in Chinese joint venture arrangements are constdered to be “hrmuted-lived” as such entities have specified
durations ranging from 30 to 50 years pursuant to regional statutory regulations In general, these arrangements call for extension, renewal or liquudation at the
discretion of the parties to the arrangement at the end of the contractual agreement Accordingly, a reasonable assessment cannot be made as to the impact of
such contingencies on the future hquidity position of the Company

Federal-Mogul subsidianes in Brazil, France, Germany, Italy, and the United States are party to accounts recervable factoring and secuntization facilities
Gross accounts recervable transferred under these facilities were $271 million and $217 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Of those
gross amounts, $258 milhion and $216 million, respectively, qualify as sales as defined in FASB ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing The remaming
transferred receivables were pledged as collateral and accounted for as secured borrowings and recorded 1n the consolidated balance sheets within “Accounts
recervable, net” and “Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt ” Under the terms of these facihities, the Company 1s not obhigated to draw
cash immediately upon the transfer of accounts receivable, however, as of both December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had drawn all such
cash Proceeds from the transfers of accounts receivable qualifying as sales were approximately $1 5 billion, $1 5 bilion and $1 7 billion for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively

Losses on sales of account receivables were $7 mullion, 37 million and $9 muilion for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
These expenses were recorded 1n the consolidated statements of operations within “Other expense net ™

Where the Company receives a fee to service and montor these transferred receivables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a servicing asset
or {1ability 15 not recorded as a result of such activities

Certamn of the facihities contain terms that require the Company to share in the credit risk of the sold receivables The maximum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facihities’ terms were $21 million and $19 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively The fair values of the
exposures to the Company associated with these certain facilies’ terms were deterruned to be immatenal

Subsequent Events

In January 2014, the Company entered 1nto a defimtive purchase agreement to acquive certain business assets of the Honeywell automotive and mndustrial
brake friction business including two recently estabiished manufacturing facilities tn China and Romania for a base purchase price of approximately $155
nullion, subject to post-closing adjustments and a potential earn-out payment of up to $5 million, i each case as further enumerated 1 the purchase
agreement This transaction 1s subject to customary approvals from regulatory authorities and other stakeholders where required The parties anticipate closing
the transaction during the second half of 2014

Also 1n January 2014, the Company entered into a definitive asset purchase agreement to acquire Affinia‘’s chassis components business for a base purchase
price of $150 million, subject to certain customary closing and post-closing adjustments as further
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enumerated 1n the asset purchase agreement Thus business serves leading U § aftermarket customers with branded and private label chassis product lines
Ths transaction 1s subject to customary approvals from regulatory authonties and other stakeholders where required The parties anticipate closing the
transaction dunng the second half of 2014

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Refer to Note 6 to the Consohdated Financial Statements, included 1 Item 8 of thus report, for information with respect to interést rate nisk, commodity pnice
nsk and foreign currency risk

The translated values of revenue and expense from the Company’s international operations are subject to fluctuations due te changes 1n currency exchange
rates During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company derived 37% of 1ts sales in the Umted States and 63% internationally Of these international
sales, 57% are denominated in the euro, with no other single currency representing more than 9% To mummize foreign currency nsk, the Company generally
maintains natural hedges within 1ts non-U § activitigs, including the matching of operational revenues and costs Where natural hedges are not 1n place, the
Company manages certain aspects of its foreign currency activities and larger transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward contracts
The Company estimates that a hypothetical 10% adverse movement of all foreign currencies in the same direction aganst the U S dollar over the year ended
December 31, 2013 would have decreased net income from continuing operations attnibutable to Federal-Mogul by approximately $16 million
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ITEM 83 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

MANAGEMENT’S REFORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management s responsible for establishing and maintaiming adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term 18 defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15({f) under the U § Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Under the supervision and with the participation of the principal executive and financial officers
of the Company, an evaluation of the effectiveness of intemnal controls over financial reporting was conducted based upon the framework in Internal Control
— Integrated Framework (1992} 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsonng Organizations (the “COSO 1992 Framework”} of the Treadway Commission
Based on the evaluation performed under the COSO 1992 Framework as of December 31, 2013, management has concluded that the Company’s internal
control over financial reporung was effecuve

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has andited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, as stated 1n their report which 1s included heremn
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Corporation

We have audited the intemnal control over financial reporting of Federal-Mogul Corporation (2 Delaware corporation) and subsidianes (the “Company”) as of
December 31,2013, based on critena established 1n the 1992 Internal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) The Company's management 1s responstble for mantaiming effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of mternal control over financial reporting, mncluded in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Fmancial Reporting Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion: on the Company’s internal contrel over financial reporting based on our andit

-

We conducted our audit i accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtan reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maimtained in all matenal
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of mternal control over financial reporting, assessing the nisk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of nternal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary 1n the circumstances We believe that our audit provides a reasonable bas:s for our opinion

A company’s mternal control over financial reporting 15 a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehiability of financial reporung and
the preparation of financial statements for extenal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles A company’s mtemal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thar (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in Teasonable detail, accurately and farrly reflect
the transactrons and dispositions of the assets of the company, {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are bemng
made only 1n accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Because of 1ts inherent hmitations, internal contro! over financial reporting may not prevent or detect musstatements Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future penods are subject to the nisk that controls may become madequate because of changes 1n conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may detenorate

In our opinion, the Company maintained, n all matenal respects, effective internal control over financial reporing as of December 31, 2013, based on critena
established 1n the 1992 [ntemal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by COSO

We also have audited, 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consohidated financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and our report dated February 24, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Southfield, Michigan

February 24, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Federal-Mogul Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Federal-Mogul Corporation {(a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”} as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consohdated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders” equity, and cash flows for
the years then ended Qur audits of the basic consolidated financial statements included the financial statement schedule listed 1n the index appeaning under
[tem 15(a}(2) for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management Our responsibility 1s to express an opinien on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Umted States) Those standards requure that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes
examiming, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and sigmficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We beheve that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opimon, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 2ll matenal respects, the financial position of Federal-Mogul
Cotporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the Unuted States of Amenica Also m our opimon, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered m relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, 1n all matenial respects, the information set forth therein

We also have audited, 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unated States), the Company’s nternal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on cntena established in the 1992 Intemal Control-Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Commttee of
Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway Commussion {COS0), and our report dated February 24, 2014 expressed an unqualified optmion

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Southfield, Michigan

February 24, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of
Federal-Mogu! Corporation

We have audited the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and shareholders' equity of Federal-Mogut Corporation
for the year ended December 31, 2011 Qur audit also included the financial staternent schedule hsted 1n the Index at ltem 15(a) for the year ended December
31,2011 These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management Our responsibility 1s to express an opmnion on these
financial statements and schedule based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) These standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal nusstatement An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportng the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements An audst also includes assessing the accounting
ponciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We behieve that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our optnion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, mn all matenal respects, the consohdated results of operations and cash
flows of Federal-Mogul Corporation for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2011, 1 conferrmty with U S generally accepted accounting principles Also, m our
opmen, the related financial statement schedule for the year ended December 31, 2011, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken 2s a
whole, presents fairly in all matenial respects the mformation set forth therein

fs/ Emst & Young LLP
Detrort, Michigan
February 28, 2012

except for Notes 2 and 10 as to which the date 15 February 27, 2013
and Notes 1, 3,4, 5, 9, 14, 15, 21 and 24 as to which the date 1s November 1, 2013
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION

Consohdated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

(Milhions of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)
Netsales; it oo 2g.. . o0 o v B T LT AT g VAR 1860 8 6w 64447 8. "1 6,719
Cost of products sold (5,766} (5 531) (5,640)
GrOsS THATEL G i o s Sy s T e 7 st F e 5310008 ST 9133 | 14079.
Sellmg, general and admrmustrative expenses (719} (702) (680)
Thterest expense?net“;"‘xg,w’ SRRTAT Dy il € o '!F"“”S,:ﬁf; =, *Mw& W“‘ srp :,::‘: 2 y:«x?’*x?‘ W N if;%ggﬁm% (99)%‘:‘ 7 (lzs)g s %z - S )_!
Amortization expense (47 (49) (48)
Résﬁilcumng’aeipwséz n’ét%ﬁ ‘g“’ i T e < g o w’gmé swh‘»a S R xm&maﬁﬁk‘é:mésifﬁwr‘“’“‘m%&« o 15;’%’ A0 »z mzﬁ)g%“ wp oF 2 (5)}
Eqmty earmings of non-consolidated afﬁhates 34

OPER curtmitent gain et 2 : R e e A - v}i?iﬁ;‘*l

Adjustment of assets to far value (8) (187) 279)
T T T v EM A T e 5 T 3

Other eXpense, net s oo et hetsy L S T S e B S E DB e S B (26)w«ss«»,~=5 Lo (18)]

Income(Ipss) from contrmmng operations beforeincome taxes . 5 Th D et n 1S : Feo (12 )%Wé?zgam oo (40‘)”3
Income tax (expense) beneﬁt (56) 29 (16)

5 R o v“_ﬁw T “ﬁ;ﬂgwﬁ"ﬁ o bE L e sy B nied

Net income (loss) from contmumg operatlons 101 (91) (56)
. IR e g o - p s

Loss fromrdiscontinued operatians. Fations et ol tax taxgnate B TR e N ?"‘%‘i‘@g“(n) et U9V w27

Net mcome (loss) (110} (83)

; ; f% !&z 2 NZ%)"‘,‘%& MR TR n :j,;a Hrge, Birza © g ; ‘) T iR j}m u P ‘i..,x i L o gak 4 Ji_ﬁsé ajfﬁ%“’ﬁ‘%;é z%ﬁ“ T @%; ”:*E
Less net income at'mbutable to noncontrollmg mterests (8) (7) (7)
Netmc‘o”'rﬁé" (loss) atu'ibutablc’ito“ﬁchcraluMogul Wy ?‘W L ’°‘ie';z¢°«;€ T e {%?5 & n) &3‘%& L AT e e CEL7Ee 8 b e 7 (90))
7 - ERN Lt ’:‘:x;' s ‘?} o zsg;‘ * ;& :j}:i‘ig - ?!ifs Tt ’Lﬁ/gzﬁm :,f;n‘ S ‘ih”::-;;,,, woe T :":gs‘i

Basic and d11uted
Net mcome (foss) from dontimmngroperaiong-~ "<+~ 5 =0t o0 e, s 500 o050 BT (099Y 8 T (0 64)]
Loss from discontinued operatlons net of tax (0 42) (019) {027)

(O A

Netmcome (loss) B 133% L N B R T R T 1 18) §s 0,913
) S 5 [ A N . - La ¢

’émﬂ ]!ﬁts‘g; m'lggtable to Emﬂbijmgggl; T " n M L L U e . : V L — i
Net income (loss) from continumg operations $ 93 § (98) % (63)
Loss from discontnued operations, net of tax ' © - N < Ty s Ay @nl
Net income (10ss) $ 41 3 (117 8 90)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consolidated Statgments of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Eaded December 31

2013 2012 2011
. {Milhons of Dollars)

Net mcome (loss)® . - R RS T S TN 83)]
Other comprehensive ncome (loss) . . . < T e o i - - ’
[ Foreign currency translation adjustments and other =" i i 1y: - ' 54 - (132)
L. FOTEigh currency ten > and ot ;
Postemployment bénefifs &7 0k, Tatr |, oo FpoC. sp L R L T AT R T T |

Net unrealized postemployment benefits (costs) credits s ansing durmg year 246 211 {121}

ag 5 Reclasmﬁcanon oﬁnetpostcmploymcm bqgcﬁts crcd:ts scosts inchidedan nef tr;co A ’; o "v’;’w;{ﬁﬁg;; !;z e B . §3f %}; s

K ”%"‘@“" - (;L ﬁgdurmg ycar %&W ;g,ﬁ_ 9’%:’ it ¥ g}’"’ Wx’%’”%i&* wﬁﬁ” %‘% # .,,u (‘4) g ‘, (ggf, 2 o 8

Income taxes (&) 27 1

g i ot T SR v N R 7 IR - - i

{ .-’ Postemployment Igeyeﬁtsf,jrﬁpﬁmx;‘& i Lol e o S e S T TR e e 23pr Go b (213) - L (112
{_ " Hedgemstruments oo, &, . G oo Lok e LT R RN NN YE
Net unrealized hedgmg (losses) gains ansing dunng year N 1 {32)
{ 7 Reclassificanon of. net hedging losses'included in net'income (loss) durmng yeat =, oo AT [47AE G -4 L 3

Income taxes 1 2) 3
! Hedge mstruments, net of t2x- A s S P P T Y0 °5 |
:Othcr comprehensive income (foss), net of tax . ToeT, N bav 220 wes - (113 (239ﬂ
Comprehensive moome {Joss) - ~ -~ S . - . 269 - 21y (322)]
Less comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests . (4) . {7} @)

'LComprchcnswe mcome {loss) attrbutable to Federal-Mogul $ 265 3 (228) § (324))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2013 2012
. (Millsans of Dollary)
— - e e e s — oy
f DR U S WPl i A_§§ETS Eal W e et o o twidhe s e 4a VRS, S .
Current assets
IRl e bl Ak st s e o - e 7 = = T T Fnars i G oagics B n
{__ Cash and eqmvalents>~ ’ R S at s A $: 761§ “:A» 467
Accounts receivable, net 1,324 1,396
o AT T Ty o — T L i = o o, e
" T Inveniones, netirt . Lo L o o e e ema T T LOeRTT T T T T g7aE
Prepald expcnscs and other cum:nt assets 224 203
LN TR T Voay e % F n T W b PR, o [ N L TS LR T R IO oY il
Total | currentaassetsw D e e ey 33777 s 31407
Property Vplanband“eqmpmenl,‘netkmf"% i—rﬁ‘*"\k }w_m By s 93;41:; AR f:h;é;a e *%ﬂ%g‘:i’%h, T T O RRES ii Eh 971
Goodwill and other mdeﬁmte-lwcd intangtble assets ],017 1,019
2 g g

253 240

ERTRDS P T 1 L,
gt T R 1418 e 1495

3 7,182 % 6,927

.

(T 220 ey LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS: EQUITYa 47

Current liabilines

. 75 Short-term. debt;fmcludmg current’hornen.of on tongotemn de By e B «}g’%# sy b SR 1,608 nE
Accounts payable 799 751
[ F Accrued-hiabilitiess & y LR %ﬁ'ﬁ%f’ﬁf s i.?w?«ﬁw I ‘wg T %&"ﬁf: ;»._5’;:‘:‘ W g e ;; e g ”‘i f:, 2N V454%§§<,‘“””E’ 42:’}’5%
Current portion of pensions and other postemployment benefits ability 44 47
[ -7 sOthericutreniabilities s, o Abap ey Leig gy TRdTiae T L AT TR R S T e 14T e e T 748
Total current habilities 3,138 1,489
Long-term debtdu SR v oo T T T R IR TR AR T T R ke B e Q0S¢ e 2733k
Penstons and other postemployment benefits liability 1 028 1:3 62
leéﬂg-”te}g portion of deferréd Income xes <0 & Corr o T T TR AT R T R e, Y 388}
Cther accrued habilities 127 123
Shareholders? equity %, TR N Y N N Y A L i
Preferred stock (30 01 par value, 90,000,000 authonized shares, none lssued) — —
Common stock“{$0’01 par valuc &45041 00 000 duthonzed sharesthSI 624,744 lssued sharesand~ . . . IR IR
150,029, 244 outstanding shares as ofDeccmbcr 31 2013, 100,500,000 iSsugd sbiares and 98,904, suo e R ’
outstandmg g shires'as of December 31, 72012) > 7 R #v IR - <2 i
Additional paid-in capntal, including warrants 2,649 2,150
U Acoumulated defiot.. . T IR TR T (518) (5591
~ Accumulated other comprehensive loss (626) (850)
i Treasury stock, at cost N e - {un un
Tatal Federal-Mogul shareholders’ equity 1,490 725
. - Noncontrolling interests .o -~ . IS TR e z T e 107§
Total shareholders’ equity 1,601 832
e : T s 7182 8 6.927 |
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
o o
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2611
{Millions of Doltars)
Cash Provided From (Used By) Operatiug Activities R : N j ]
Net income (loss) $ 9 3 oy $ (83)
zAdjus'tmems to reconcile nét income (loss) to net Mﬁcﬂ from (used by)ﬂb‘pgaimg‘"‘mmm-_«, AR IE N :“_;_ I S A BT g e B, _]
Depreciation and amortization B 296 289 284
Net loss from busmess s dispositians VA s N ;f I _7:7__ — |
Change n postemploym:nt bencfits, cxcludmg mmaxlmcnt gains (72) (66) (45)
i W, Equuy carnihgs o ufnun-oonsohda,tcd aﬁ'hatrs ese, ¢ fl R L CLL T Lgan e LN R - L)
Cash dividends recewed from non-conseclidated nﬂihmcs kX1 31 16
{7 Restrucwunng expense, net -~ - % e o ' ) Lot . 26 " —ﬂ
Payments against restructaring lmb:h:m (28) (5 (20
[ 5 GPEB curtmiment gaing. # ¢ ¢ . R T e e Y (S s F L ]
Deferred tax benefit (2) (78 (n
[ - - Adjustiment of assets to far value - e T - & _ o 8 T 194 o 307 |
Insurunce proceeds related to Thailand flood — 17 —_
Changes in operating assets and ltabilines 5, - R N T S T AR e
Accounts recervable 1 - (197) (137)
L invemtomes- -2r. - . s T T T e e T T en R (120
Accounts payable 79 2) 87
f Other assets aud hablites - - > o C o e 4 o, e gt Rty AN = 4] A 36 § 23]
Net Cash Provided From (Used by} Operating Activities 41% 53 241
Cash Provided From (Used By) lavesting Activities - I - . |
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (380) (387) (348)
[ Net proceeds assocuated with business disposons Ly R TS v ’ e 2 — —]
Payments to acquire businesses, net of cash acquired — (52) (8)
| Insusanice proceeds related to Thaland flood — 13 — ]
Net proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment k] 5 —
L Capital mvestment w non-catschdated affilate i i : @y , 6) e }
Net Cash Used By Investing Actvities . {35%) 427) (356)
:Cash Provided From {Used By) Financing Activities ]
Proceeds from equity nghts offering, net of related fees 500 . — —
i Principal payments on term loans {275} (30) (%2]_]
Increase in short-term debt 23 6 16
i Net {remuttances) proceeds on servicing of factoning arrangements {4 2 2 ‘l
Increase (decrease) in other long-term debt 2 — (4)
E Debt 1ssuance fees 4 — ——”i
Net Cash Provided From (Used By) Financing Activittes * 242 (22) _iES)
{ .
Effect of foresgn currency exchange rate fluctuations on cash [40)) 16 (22)
-
Encmase (decrease) 1 cash and equivalents 2094 (486) {152y
:Cush and equivalents at bepnning of year 467 953 1.1 057
Cash and equivalents a1 end of year $ 61 8 467 3 953
(=3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
Consohdated Statements of Shareholders’ Equuty

Accumutated
Additional Other Treasury
Common Paid-a Retuined Camprehensive Stock, Nencoptrolling
Stock Capleal Defict Income {Lots) at Cost Total Interests
{Millions of Dollnrs)
- T ra G L R B s Ly w7 Y. A %s. pisnps 'l R T W"v?"
Balance at January 1,201 . .- - v a0 o §0 0150 § 150% e (352 357y $° Awrg "G (505)% 7 (17) 5 1,}77 s g 8B
Net (loss) income (83) (83) 7
Tess net :ncomeiattnbutable!to t0 noncontrolling nterestse P TEE T Al it e e s Dy e () e P ‘ﬁ? 3
Other comprchenswe loss, net of tax {234} (234) (5}
i e G LT R (e mﬂmﬂmwmm
Capxtalhrwesunent 1n;,sub51dlary by,nr:m-cm'm':)llmgm}T gl ﬁﬁy g A “"”«2&%@«.@@”‘ it ’?’,g{ g %&,f% N “?jl
s : o i e e »» pa w@f T e ik &{m Bt T i
sha holder é}’{gﬁ%ww @%gﬁé ‘ﬁéﬁ nE e &Em e s g e %3 Fie w%;gﬁ ¢ %i‘? : 33%5:&&%{% ; z%{u %{.ﬂwdw ww@ﬁ&"ﬁ ’f”“” '%g 10
Balance at December 31, 2011 1 2,150 (442) (739) an 953 100
Net(loss) mcomer B ?gi e e SN g’m,é‘% o e (10)e 5 e [ e G 0N e ‘53_?13?%
Less net mcome atlnbutable to noncontrollmg mterests (¥ (7}

2,150 (559) (850) {17 715 107
N R NG TR Y NN S AR L 8

Less net mncome attrlbutable to noncontro]lmg mterests 8) 8
Other, comiprehenswegmccmé%netof»tax : : : A
Equity nghts offering l 499 500

Balance at December 31, 2013 T G E TR Tl T 53,6400, S0 (518)” $HRIIN (626)7 S (A7) S 1400F A S 11T |

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Statement Presentafion The audited consolidated financial statements of Federal-Mogul Corporation {the *Company™) have been prepared m
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U S GAAP™)

Principles of Consolidation The Company consolidates 1nto 1ts financial statements the accounts of the Company, all wholly-owned subsidianes, and any
partially-owned subsidiary that the Company has the ablity to control Control generzlly equates to ownership percentage, whereby nvestments that are more

than 50% owned are consolidated, investments in affiliates of 50% or less but greater than 20% are accounted for using the equity method, and investments in
affiliates of 20% or less are accounted for using the cost method The Company does not consolidate any enuty for wiich it has a vanable interest based solely

on power to direct the activities and sigmificant participation 1n the entity’s expected results that would not otherwise be consohdated based on control through

voting interests Further, the Company s joint ventures are businesses established and maintamed n connection with the Company’s operating strategy All
mtercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformuty with U § GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported therein Due to the inherent uncertainty mnvolved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon
amounts that differ from these estimates

Controlling Ownerskip Mr Carl C leahn indirectly controls approximately 80 73% of the voung power of the Company's capital stock and, by virtue of
such stock ownership, 1s able to control or exert substantial influence over the Company, including the election of directors, business strategy and policies,

mergers or other business combinations, acquisition or disposition of assets, future 1ssuances of cornmon stock or other secunities, incurrence of debt or

obtamning other sources of financing, and the payment of dividends on the Company’s common stock The existence of a controlling stockholder may have the

effect of making 1t difficult for, or may discourage or delay, a third party from seeking to acquire a majonty of the Company's outstanding common stock,
which may adversely affect the market price of the stock

Mr Icahn’s interests may not always be consistent with the Company’s interests or with the interests of the Company’s other stockholders Mr Icahn and
entities controlled by him may also pursue acquisitions or business opportutities that may or may not be complementary to the Company’s business To the
extent that conflicts of mterest may anse between the Company and Mr [cahn and his affihates, those conflicts may be resolved 1n a manner adverse to the
Company or its other shareholders

Related Party Icahn Sourcing, LLC (*Icahn Sourcing™) 15 an entity formed by Mr Icahn in order to maximize the potential buying power of a group of
entities with which Mr Tcahn has a relationship 1n negotiating with a wide range of supphers of goods, services and tangible and intangible property at
negotiated rates The Company was a member of the buying group in 2012 Prior to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay [cahn Sourcing any fees or
other amounts with respect to the buying group arrangement

In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure 1ts ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Portfolhe Group LLC (“Insight Portfolie Group™) In connection with the restructuring the Company acquired a mimonity equuty interest in Insight Portfohio
Group and agreed to pay a portton of Insight Portfolio Group's operating expenses 1 2013 In addition to the mnority equity interest held by the Company,
certain subsidiaries of Icahn Enterprises Holdings, including CVR, Tropicana, ARI, Viskase PSC Metals and WPH also acquired mminonty equity interests in
Insight Portfolio Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operatng expenses in 2013 A number of other entities with which Mr [cahn
has a relationship also acquired equity mterests in Insight Portfolie Group and also agreed to pay certain operating expenses of Insight Portfoho Group's in
2013

The Company's payments to Insight Portfoho Group were less than $0 5 miliion durning 2013 The Company anticipates its 2014 payments to Insight
Portfolio Group to be sumilar to the amounts paid i 2013

Cash and Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid mmvestments with matunties of 90 days or less from the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents

Acquisitton  In June 2012, the Company entered into a defimtive agreement to purchase the spark plug business from BorgWarner, Inc These spark plugs
are manufactured in France and Germany and are sold to Evropean ongimnal equipment manufacturers The purchase closed i September 2012 for $52
miliion, net of cash acquired The Company allocated the purchase price in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB' ) Accounting
Standards Codificauons (“*ASC™) Topic 805, Business Combinations The Company utilized a third party to assist i the fair value determunation of certain
components of the purchase prnice allocation, namely fixed assets and intangible assets The Company recorded $19 milhion of defimte-lived intangible assets
{primanly customer relattonships) and 39 mullion of indefinne-lived 1ntangible assets (pnmarily goodwill) associated with this acquisition
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Drvestitures In connection with 1ts strategic planning process, the Company assesses 115 operations for market position, product technology and capability,
and profitability Those businesses determined by management not to have a sustainable competiive advantage are considered non-core and may be considered
for divestiture or other exit acivities Dunng the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company divested its sintered components operations located 1t France,
1ts connecting rod manufactunng facihity located in Canada, 1ts camshaft foundry located in the Umted Kingdom and its fuel pump busiess, which
included an aftermarket business component and a manufacturing and research and development facility located tn the United States These divestitures have
been presented as discontinued operations tn the consohidated statements of operations See Note 5 for further detauls

Tirade Accounts Recewvable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Trade accounts receivable 1s stated at net realizable value, which approximates fair
value The Company does not generally require collateral for 115 trade accounts receivable Accounts recervable 1s reduced by an allowance for amounts that
may become uncollectible in the future This estimated allowance 15 based pnmanly on management’s evaluation of specific balances as the balances become
past due, the financial condition of 1ts customers and the Company’s histoncal expenence of write-offs The Company’s general policy for uncoliectibie
accounts, 1f not reserved through specific exarmnation procedures, 1s to reserve based upon the aging categones of accounts receivable and whether amounts
are due from an onginal equipment manufacturer or servicer (*OE") or aftermarket customer Past due status 15 based upon the mvoice date of the onginal
amounts outstanding Included 1n selling, general and administration (“SG&A™) expenses are bad debt expenses of 53 milhon, 52 million and $3 million for
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have
been exhausted and the potential for recovery 1s considered remote The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts was $11 mullion and $13 mllion at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Federal-Mogul subsidiartes m Brazil, France, Germany, ltaly and the Uruted States are party to accounts recelvable factonng and secuntization facilines
Amounts factored under these facilities consist of the following

December 31
2013 012
{(Millions of Dollars)
Giross accoun(s. recervable factored s o bl 8 2 gt 2 g o o Sderie i D7 1k Sl 5 n 2 17
Gross accounts recervable factored, qualifying as sales 258 216

Undrawn cash on factored accounts recérvable s .o . 45t e |

N LR
B ~ Lt JU— w17 Ay
B 5 % ryc AT N TPRILE)

s
-

Proceeds from the factonng of accounts recervable qualifying as sales and expenses associated with the factoning of accounts receivable are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollars)
Proceeds from factoring quahifying as sales ) 1482 & ' - 1475 8§ 1,73.1__1
Losses on sales of account receivables (7) (2] 9

Accounts recervables factored but not qualifying as a sale, as defined in FASB ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, were pledged as collateral and
accounted for as secured borrowings and recorded in the consolidated balance sheets within “Accounts receivable, net” and “Short-term debt, including the
current portion of long-term debt ™

The expenses associated with receivables factoring are recorded in the consolidated statements of operauons within “Other expense, net ™" Where the Company
recetves a fee to service and momtor these transferred receivables, such fees are sufficient to offset the costs and as such, a servicing asset or habilaty 1s not
recorded as a result of such activihes

Certain of the facihties contain terms that require the Company to share 1n the credit nisk of the sold receivables The maxunum exposures to the Company
associated with these certain facihittes” terms were $21 nullion and 519 mulhion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively The fair values of the
exposures to the Company associated with these certain facilities” terms were determined to be immatenal

Inventortes The Company values inventory at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a first-1n, first-out (“FIFO") basis Cost of inventory
includes direct matenals, labor and applicable manufacturing overhead costs The value of inventories
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continned

are reduced for excess and obsolete inventortes based on management's review of on-hand inventories compared to histoncal and estimated future sales and
usage

Long-Lived Assets As a result of fresh-start reporting, long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment (PP&E”) that were purchased prior to
January |, 2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future use of the assets indicated a lower value was approprate PP&E
purchased since that tume are recorded at cost Defimute-hved intangible assets have been stated at fair value established at emergence and at cost thereafter
Long-lived assets are penodically reviewed for impairment mdicators if impairment indicators exist, the Company performs the required analysis and records
an impairment charge, 1f required, 1n accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant & Equipment
(“FASB ASC 360™} If the carrying value of a long-lived asset 1s considered impaired, an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the carrying
value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value Depreciation and amortization 1s computed principally by the straight-line method for financial reporting
purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes

Goodwill As of December 31, 2007, goodwill was determined as the excess of reorganization value over amounts attributable to specific tangible and
intangible assets, including developed technology and customer relationships Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment annually as of QOctober 1, or more
frequently 1f impairment indicators exist, tn accordance with the subscquent measurement provisions of FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles ~ Goodwill and
Other (“FASB ASC 350™) This impairment analysts compares the fair values of the Company’s reporting umts to their related carrying values 1f a reporting
umt’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting umit’s imphed fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are
recorded for any excess of the goodwll carrying value over the implied fair value of goodwill The reporting unuts” fair values are based upon consideration of
vanous valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the risks involved, guideline transaction
multiples, and multples of current and future earmings

Trademarks and Brand Names As of December 31, 2007, trademarks and brand names were stated at fair value as a result of fresh-start reporting  These
indefinite-hived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annually as of Gctober 1, or more frequently if impairment indicators exist, in accordance with
the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC 350 This impairment analysis compares the fair values of these assets to the related carrying values,
and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of carrying values over fair values These fair values are based upon the prospective stream of
hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropriate for these intangible assets

Short-term Debt Debt obligations that are due within ene year of the balance sheet date, including maturiuies of long-term debt, are classified as current The

Company has $1,694 milhon of short-term debt as of December 31, 2013, of which $1,597 muthon relates to the tranche B term loan that matures on
December 27,2014 On December 6, 2013, High Rrver Lumted Partnership (* High River™), an affiliate of Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company’s largest
stockholder, provided a backstop commitment letter (the "Backstop Commitment™) i favor of the Company with respect to its existing tranche B term

loan The Backstop Commutment provides that 1f the Company 1s unable to refinance its tranche B term loan on or prior to September 27, 2014, High River or

an affihate thereof with at least the same net worth wall provide loan financing of up to $1 6 billion to the Company and its subsidianes on arms-length terms
to provide the funding necessary to repay the tranche B term loan The High River loan will be subject to negotiation and execution of definitive documentation

to be approved by the independent directors of the Company

Penston and Other Postemployment Obligations Pension and other postemployment benefit costs are dependent upen assumptions used 1n calculating such
costs These assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trends, expected returns on plan assets and other factors In accordance with U S GAAP,
actual results that differ from the assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future penods and, accordingly, generally affect recogmzed expense
and the recorded obhigation in future periods

Revenue Recogmtion The Company records sales when products are shipped and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, the
sales price 15 fixed and determinable, and the collectability of revenue 1s reasonably assured Accruals for sales returns and other allowances are provided at
point of sale based upon past expenence Adjustments to such returns and allowances are made as new information becomes available

Rebates The Company accrues for rebates pursuant to specific arrangements with certain of its customers, pnmarily in the aftermarket Rebates gencrally
provide for pnce reductions based upon the achievement of specified purchase volumes and are recorded as a reduction of sales as earned by such customers

Sales and Sales Related Taxes The Company collects and remuts taxes assessed by vanous governmenlal authonities that are both imposed on and
concurrent with revenue-producing transacttons with its customers These taxes may include, but are not lumited to, sales, use, value-added, and some excise
taxes The collecuon of these taxes 1s reported on a net basis (excluded from revenues)

Shipping and Handling Costs The Company recogruzes shipping and handling costs as mncurred as 2 component of cost of products sold in the
consolidated statements of operaticns
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Engmeering and Tooling Costs Pre-production tooling and engineering costs that the Company will not own and that will be used 1n producing products
under fong-term supply arrangements are expensed as mcurred unless the supply amangement provides the Company with the noncancelable nght to use the
tools, or the rexmbursement of such costs 15 agreed to by the customer Pre-production tooling costs that are owned by the Company are capitalized as part of
machinery and equipment, and are depreciated over the shorter of the tool's expected hife or the duration of the related program

Research and Development The Company expenses research and development (“R&D™) costs as incwrred R&D expense, including product engineering
and vahidation costs, was $173 million, $173 mullion and $166 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively R&D expense
15 recorded 1n the consolidated statements of operations within “Selling, general and administrative expenses ™

Adverusing Cosis Advertising and promonon expenses for continuing operanons are expensed as incurred and were $41 mullien, $37 million and $49
milhien for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2612 and 2011, respectively Advertising and promotion expenses are recorded in the consohdated statements
of operations within “Selling, general and admunistrative expenses ”

Restructuring The costs contmned within “Restructunng expense, net” m the Company’s consohdated statements of operations are compnised of two types
employee costs (principally termunation benefits) and facility closure costs Termunation benefits are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC Topic 712,
Compensation — Nonretirement Postemplovment Benefits (“FASB ASC 712™), and are recorded when 1t 1s probable that employees will be entitled to
benefits and the amounts can be reasonably esumated Estimates of termination benefits are based on the frequency of past termination benefits, the similanty
of benefits under the current plan and prior plans, and the existence of statutory required mimmum benefits Termination benefits are also accounted for in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligarnions (“FASB ASC 420™), for one-time termination benefits and are recorded dependent
upon future service requirements Facility closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the hability 1s
incurred

Foreign Cunrency Translation Exchange adjustments related to international currency transactions and translation adjustments for international subsidianies
whose functional currency 1s the United States dollar (pnincipally those located mn highly inflanonary economies) are reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations Translation adjustments of mternationat subsidianies for which the local currency 1s the functional currency are reflected in the consohdated
balance sheets as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive loss ™ Deferred taxes are not provided on translation adjustments as the eamings of the
subsidianies are considered to be permanently remnvested

Environmental Liabilites The Company recogmzes environmental liabilities when a loss 13 probable and reasonably estumable Such liabilities are generally
not subject to wnsurance coverage Engineenng and legal specialists within the Company estumate each environmental obligation based on current law and
existing technologies Such estimates are based primanly upon the estimated cost of mvestigation and remediation required and the hkelthood that other
potentially responsible parties will be able to fulfill thewr commitments at the sites where the Company may be jointly and severally hable with such parties
The Company regularly evaluates and revises 1ts esttmates for environmental obligations based on expenditures against established accruals and the
avallability of additional informanon

Asset Retirement Obligattions The Company records asset retirement obligations (“ARO™) o accordance with FASB ASC Topic 410, Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations (“FASB ASC 410™) The Company's primary ARO acuvities relate to the removal of hazardous building matenals at its facilities
The Company records ARO when amounts can be reasonably estimated, typically upon the expectation that facthties may be closed or sold

Derwvauve Financial Instruments The Company uses interest rate swaps, commodity forward contracts and currency swaps to manage volatility of
underlying exposures The Company recogmzes all of its derivative instruments as erther assets or liabilities at fair value The accounting for changes in the
fair value (1 ¢ , gamns or losses) of a denvative instrument depends on whether it has been designated, and 15 effective. as a hedge and further on the type of
hedging relationship For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualhfy as hedging instruments, a company must designate the hedging
instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a net investment 1n a foreign operation Gains and
losses related to a hedge are ether recogmzed in income 1mmediately to offset the gain or loss on the hedged 1tem or are deferred and reported as a component of
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” and subsequently recogruzed in earnings when the hedged 1tem affects earmings The change 1n fair value of the
inefiective portion of a financial instrument, determined using the hypothetical derivative method, 1s recognized in eamings immediately The gain or loss
related to financial instruments that are not designated as hedges are recogmzed immediately in earmings Cash flows telated to hedging acuvities are included
in the operating section of the consolidated statements of cash flows The Company does not hold or 1ssue denvative financial mstruments for trading or
speculative purposes The Company’s objectives for holding denivatives are to mimimize risks using the most effective and cost-efficient methods available
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New Accounting Pronouncements In December 2011, the FASB 1ssued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU"} No 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210) -
Disclosures about Offcetting Assets and Liabilintes and 1n January 2013, 1ssued ASU No 2013-1, Balance Sheet (Topic 210} - Clurifving the Scope of
Disclosures about Offsetung Assets and Ligbilities Both ASUs amend ASC Topic 210, Balance Sheet, and require enhanced disclosures that will cnable
users of financial statements to evaluate the effect or potentiai effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position These ASU’s are effective

retrospectively for intenm and annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 The adoption of this ASU effecuve Januvary 1, 2013 had no disclosure

impact

In July 2012, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2012-2, /ntangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impairment This ASU allows for the option to perform a quakitative assessment that may allow compames to forego the annual two-step impatrment test for
indefinite-lived intangibles This ASU 15 effecuve for annual and intertm goedwill impatrment tests performed for fiscal years begmning after September 15,
2012 with early adoptton permitted The Company’s adoption of this new guidance effective January 1, 2013 had ne impact on its financial position, results
of operations, cash flows or disclosures

In February 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-2, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) Reporung of Amounis Reclassified out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income This ASU 1s effective prospectively for imterim and annual penods beginning after December 15, 2012 and expands the presentation
of changes in accumulated other comprehensive income The required disclosures have been incorporated into Notes 17 and 18

In February 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-4, Liabilities (Toptc 405) Obligations Resulting from Jownt and Several Liability Arrangements for
Which the Total Amount of the Obligation 1s Fixed at the Reporting Date This ASU 1s effective for intenm and annual peniods beginming after
December 15, 2013 and requires the measurement of obligations resulting from joint and several Liability arrangements for which the total amount of the
obligation 15 fixed at the reportung date as the sum of a) the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among 1ts co-obligors, and
b) any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors Required disclosures include a description of the joint-and-several
arrangement and the total outstanding amount of the obligatien for all jomnt parties The Company anticipates the adoptien of this guidance will have mimmal
umpact on 1ts financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures

In March 2013, the FASB :ssued ASU No 2013-5, Liabiluies (Topic 830) Parent's Accounting for Cumulative Translation Adyusiment upon
Derecognitton of Certain Subsidiaries o1 Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment tn a Foreign Entity This ASU 15 effective for
nterim and annual penods beginning after December 15, 2013 and requares the release of any cumulative translation adjustment into net income upon
derecognition of certain subsidianes or groups of assets within a foreign ennity or of an mvestment 1o foreign entity The Company anticipates the adoption of
this gurdance will have rmimmal impact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures

In Juiy 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-10, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 813} Inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (or Overmight
Index Swap Rate} as a Benchmark Interest Raie for Hedge Accountng Purposes This ASU 1s effecuve prospectively for qualifymg new or redesignated
hedging relatienships entered wito on or after July 17, 2013 The Company antictpates the adoption of this gutdance will have murumal impact on 1ts financial

position, results of operanions, cash flows or disclosures

In Juty 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU No 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740) Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operanng Loss
Carryforward, a Sirlar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists This ASU 1s effective for fiscal years and intenm peniods beginning after
December 15, 2013 and changes the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits The Company anticipates the adoption of this guidance will have munimal
umpact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures
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2 RESTRUCTURING

The Company’s restructuring activities are undertaken as necessary to execute management’s strategy and streamline operauons, consolidate and take
advantage of available capacity and resources, and ultimately achieve net cost reductions Restructuring achvities include efforts to integrate and rationalize the
Company’s businesses and to relocate manufacturing operations to best cost manufactunng locations

The costs contained withm “Restructuring expense, net” 1n the Company’s consolidated statements of operations are compnsed of two types employee costs
(principally termination benefits) and facility closure costs Termination benefits are accounted for 1n accordance with FASB ASC 712 and are recorded when
it 1s probable that employees will be entitled to benefits and the amounts can be reasonably estimated Estimates of termination benefits are based on the
frequency of past terminatien benefits, the simlarity of benefits under the current plan and prior plans, and the existence of statutory required mimimum
benefits Termunation benefits are also accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420, for one-time termunation benefits and are recorded dependent upon
future service requirements Facility closure and other costs are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 420 and are recorded when the liability 1s
incurred

Estimates of restructuring expenses are based on information available at the ume such charges are recorded In certain countries where the Company operates,
statutory requtrements include mnvoluntary termuination benefits that extend several years into the future Accordingly, severance payments continue well past
the date of termination at many non-U S locations Thus, restructuning programs appear to be ongoing when, n fact, terminations and other activities have
been substantially completed

Management expects to finance 1ts restructuring programs through cash generated from its ongomng operations or through cash available under 1ts existing credit
facihity, subject to the terms of applicable covenants Management does not expect that the execution of such programs will have an adverse impact on i1s
liqudity position

The following table 15 a summary of the Company's consolidated restructunng habilinies and related activity for 2013, 2012 and 2011 by reporuing segment
“PT” represents Powertrain and “VCS” represents Vehicle Components Solutions

Total
Reporting Total
PT V(S Segment Corporate Company
(‘Vl.il[ions of Dollars)
Balance at January 12011, ¢, . . . oo S o 192 8 e A8 sy ,‘zsz S A oo Zon $ 241
Provisions 7 2 —
[ Revemalstie o & o T B ) R e .59.(4)5?%3 M e s oL
Payments an 3) (20) (1) (21)
Balance at December 31,2011 - . . . .of o 6 0 B, L 7L S l% 0 . 8
Provisions 6 16 22 4 26
{ Reversals . - - o - (B -, L = (1) T e (t)_J
Payments G (6) (13) {2} (15}
! Reclassifications to pension habihity - =T (6Y - - (6). - — . (6}
Balance at December 31, 2012 4 5 9 3 12
Provisions - 20 20 ~ 49 4 . 44 ]
Reversals @) — 3} (1 4)
[ Payments o ay any - (24); @) 28) |
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 8 S 14 3 22 3 2 5 24
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The following table provides a summary of the Company's consolidated restructuring liabihities and related activity for each type of exit cost for 2013, 2012
and 2011 As the table 1ndicates, facility closure costs are typically paid within the year of incurrence

Employee Faeliry
Costs Costs Total
(Millions of Dollars)

?z;_lgn_cg_al January 1, 2031 ) TR mregge s T 24}

Provisions 4 5 9
E__ Reversals - : R T S R )

Payments (16) (5) {2n
Balance at December 31,2011 - ; R — . .8

Provisions 25 1 26
T P I G S ) G TR =S AN D)

Payments {14) (1) (15)
¥ Reclassificauion to pension liability - S TRy . T - - (6)
Balance at December 31, 2012 12 — 12
]r“h”‘ Proviston$ S, R T AL o s T S

Reversals 4) — {4)
[ Paymems - ‘ - (25)- ~ . @) T (28)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 24 3 - § 24 ‘

Due to the inherent uncentamnty involved m estimating restructuring expenses, actual amounts paid for such activiies may differ from amounts inmitiaily
esumated Accordingly the Company reversed $4 mithion, $t mlhion and $4 malhion of previously recorded habiimes in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
Such reversals result from changes in estimated amounts to accomplish previously planned activities, changes 1n expected (based on historical practice)
outcome of negotiations with labor unions, which reduced the level of onginally committed actions, newly implemented government employment programs,
which lowered the expected cost and changes i approach to accomplish restructuning activities

Actities under “Restructuring 2013 Program

In February 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors approved evaluation of restructuring opportunities 1n order to improve operating performance The
Company obtamned Board approval o commence a restructuring plan (*'Restructuning 2013") as detailed below Restructurtng 2013 15 intended to take place
from 2013-2015

The following table 1s a summary of the Company’s Restructuring 2013 liabihties and related activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 by reporting
segment

Total
Reporting Totsl
PT YC§ Segment Corporate Company
(Millions of Dollars)
Balance at Japuary 1, 2013 $ — 3 — 3 — 8 — 3 — |
Provisions 19 18 37 4 41
[_ Reversals (2) - (2) - _Q)}
Payments (o) 4) (14) ) (16)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 7 8 14 3 21§ 2 3 23 |
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The followng table provides a summary of the Company’s Restructuring 2013 habtlities and related acuvity for each type of exit cost as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2013

Employee Faculity
Casts Costs Total
{Millions of Dollars)
- > e e o - o s vy
Balance at January 1,2013 ~ +° G ot L e D EETA e 0w aT,
Provisions 40 1 41
{ Reversals. ~ -~ o < o 7 TS R T TR ) b e 2 o (3,
Payments (15) (1) {16}
Balance at December 31, 2013, = ", ta, 3 w.5c o et e 230 8V o SR S i i3]
Net Restructuring 2013 costs by type of exit cost are as follows
Total Estimated
Expected Costs tn Additional
Costs 2013 Cosix
(Milhions of Dollars}
T S R Sl i S i )
Factllty costs 15 14
T QR M A S S Py 0 o~
fwm - s L it ot L e SO ke BT n o Bl JTE R ?3%;%%‘539 ) sl etk

Acnwvities under “Restructuring 2012 Program \

In June 2012, the Company announced a restructuring plan (“Restructuring 2012} to reduce or eluminate capacity at several hugh cost VCS facilities and
transfer production to lower cost locations Restructuning 2012 was completed as of December 31, 2013 In connection with Restructuring 2012, the Company
mcurred restructunng charges totaling $13 mudlion

The following table provides a summary of the Company’s Restructuring 2012 liabilittes and related activity for each type of exat cost for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Employee Facilsty
Costs Costs Total
(Millions of Dollars)

Balance at January 1, 2012 ., . . . 1§ e Brae = § i

Provisions 11 —_ 11
L Paymentsi-v o e o e () e e e e ()

Reclassificauon to pension hability (6) — (&)
Balance at December 31,2012 °» =~ © "~ 5 te ey S0 bt gl Gn et T g

Provisions — 2 2
N I N A i P AR 5 |
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ — 8 — 3 — '
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Net Restructuring 2012 costs by type of exut cost are as follows

Total
Incurred Costs in Costs 1
Costs 2012 2013
(Miilrony of Doﬂir's)
Employee costs C _ 8 i 1o 11-=8 i o 118 ___I]
Facility costs o 2 — 2
T S s . 13.8 - 1.8 . 2]

Other Restructuring Activities

Durning the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded $14 mullion and 35 muillion, respectively, in net restructuring expenses outside
of Restructuring 2012 and Restructuring 2013 The Company recorded $14 mullion i employee costs related to other restructuring activities dunng 2012 The
Company recorded $3 million in employee costs and $2 million in facility closure costs related to other restructunng activitres dunng 2011

3 ADJUSTMENT OF ASSETS TO FAIR VALUE
The Company recorded total impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as follows

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
(Mulhons of Dollars)
Property, plant and equipment-. RS AN 11]
Goodwill — 96 231
'cher indefinite-lived mtangible assets: - R 37]
Investments in non-consolidated affiliates — 2 —_
[ i 8 8 $- 187§ 279 |

The 2012 property, plant and equipment impairment excludes $7 mallion related to discontinued operations Discontinued operanions are further discussed in
Note 5

The 2011 goodwill impairment excludes 328 mulhion related to disconunued operanions Dhscontinued operations are further discussed m Note 5
Impaiments of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are discussed further in Note 7 and Note 10
The Company recorded impairment charges to adjust property, plant and equipment to their fair values in accordance with the subsequent measurement

provisions of FASB ASC 360 (see Note 7) The charges for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 by reporting segment are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 011
{Mullicns of Dollars)
Powertram $ :—: 5 S5 18 § 5]
Vehicle Components Solutions 2 23 6
Corporate 1 1 :|
b 8 3 43 3 11
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4. OTHER EXPENSE, NET

The specific components of “*Other expense, net” are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollars)

Foreign currency exchange’ 7 "% n o0 eiecciotn ey §pee s (10)-3 wrih e (18)-$ S o o (9]
Losses on sales of account receivables (7 (N 9)
B A P R N e T s R S Y
Adjustment of Chapter 11 accrual 4 — —
Othier s e o T L i B o ot i e Tt i D i i A ety s, ()]

3 3) % (26) § (18)

Foreign currency exchange The Company recogmzed $10 mulhon, $18 million and $9 mullion in foreign currency exchange losses dunng the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively Of the $18 million mn foreign currency exchange losses dunng the year ended December 31, 2012, $10
mullion related to unreahized losses associated with outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts that settled duning 2013 (see Note 6 for further details)

5 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In connection with 1ts strategic planning process, the Company assesses 1ts operations for market position, product technology and capability, and
profitability Those businesses not core te the Company's long-term portfoho may be constdered for divestiture or other exit activiies

Dunng March 2013, the Company’s Powertrain Segment completed the divesuture of its sintered components operations located i France This disposal
resulted 1n a $48 million net loss (no income tax umpact), which 18 inciuded in “Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax” durng the year ended
December 31, 2013

Dunng June 2013, the Company's Powertrain Segment completed the divestiture of 1ts connecting rod manufacturing facihity located in Canada and 1ts
camshaft foundry located in the Umited Kingdom This disposal resulted ina $6 mulhion net loss (no income tax impact), which 15 included 1n “Loss from
discontinued operations, net of tax” during the year ended December 31, 2013

Duning Septemnber 2013, the Company completed the divestiture of its fugl pump business This disposal resulted ina $7 million net gain (inclusive of a $2
million tax benefit), wluch 15 included m “Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax™ duning the year December 31, 2013 As certain employees at the fuel
pump manufacturing facility participated in the Company’s U S Welfare Benefit Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due to 1ts curtailment
mmphcations The termumation of those employees and the related reduction 1n the average remairung future service penod to the full ehgibility date of the
remaimng active plan participants in the U § Welfare Benefit Plan triggered & $19 mullion OPEB curtailment gain which 1s included in "Loss on sale of
discontinued operations” during the year ended December 31,2013
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Operating results related to discontinued operations are as follows

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollars)

Net sales $ 119 § 220 % 190
Costofproductssold . - 7 _ e e e L e T R () e 2220 (181}
Gross margin ’ — 2 9
Selling, general and adtmmstratsve expenses =~ oo 0 c oo o7 o W Gy TR gy T T g
Adjustment of assets to far value — (7 (28)
Other mcome (expense), net 5. © . e#lgh . o o0 o aiEa L eofaec 3 Did T 5 17 eE g Wi o 1
Operatmg loss (no mcome tax 1mpact) (5) {19} (27)
I.ossmn saIe of dzscontmued operaﬂons (et of tax bénefit of SZi‘milmn for the ycara SSEE AN Ge o m P e e
‘ended December 31 2013), A R s S P e Y CL] 1%”2 S TEY e S —
Loss from discontinued operations, et of tax b {(52) $ {19) $ 27)

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Interest Rate Risk

The Company, during 2008, entered into a senes of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notional value of $1,190 million to hedge the vanabihity
of interest payments associated with 1ts vanable-rate term loans Through these swap agreements, the Company has fixed its base interest and premtum rate at
a combined average interest rate of approximately 5 37% on the hedged principal amount of $1.190 million Since the interest rate swaps hedge the variability
of interest payments on variable rate debt with the same terms, they qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment As of December 31, 2013, all of these
five-year intercst rate swap agreements had expired As of December 31, 2012, unrealized net losses of $10 mllton were recorded 1n “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss™ as a result of these hedges

Commodity Price Risk .

The Company’s production processes are dependent upon the supply of certain raw matenals that are exposed te pnce fluctuations on the open market The
primary purpose of the Company’s commodity price forward contract activity 1s to manage the volatihty associated with forecasted purchases The Company
monttors 1ts commoedity price nsk exposures regularly to maximuze the overall effectiveness of its commodity forward contracts Principal raw materials
hedged mclude natural gas, copper, mckel, tin, zinc, high-grade alumnmum and aluminum alloy Forward contracts are used to mitigate commodity price nisk
associated with raw matenals, generally related to purchases forecast for up to fifteen months mn the future

The Company had commeodity price hedge contracts outstanding with combined notional values of $51 rullion and $45 mullion at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, of which substantially all mature within one year and substantially all were designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes
Unrealized net losses of 5(1) million and unrealized net gains of $1 muilhon were recorded 1n “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company manufactures and sells its products in North Amenca, South America, Asia, Europe and Africa As a result, the Company’s financial results
could be sigmficantly affected by factors such as changes n foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions 1n foreign markets 1n which the
Company manufactures and sells its products The Company's operating resuits are primanly exposed to changes in exchange rates between the U § dollar
and European currencies

The Company generally tnes to use natural hedges within its foreign currency activities, including the matching of revenues and costs, to minimize foreign
currency risk Where natural hedges are not 1n place, the Company considers managing certain aspects of uts foreign currency activities and larger
transactions through the use of foreign currency options or forward contracts Principal currencies hedged have histoncally included the euro, Bnish pound
and Polish zloty The Company had notional values of $12 milhion and $160 milhon of foreign currency hedge contracts outstanding at December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively, of which substantially all mature in less than one year Of these outstanding contracts, $12 million and $11 mullion 1n combined
notional values at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were designated as cash flow hedging instruments for accounting purposes Unrealized net
losses of $(1) mulion and unrcalized net gains of less than $1 million were recorded in “Accumulated other

"
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comprehensive loss™ as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for the contracts designated as hedging instruments The remaiming outstandmg foreign
currency contracts with a combined notional value of $149 milhion as of December 31, 2012 were entered 1nto by the Company to offset fluctuations in
consohidated earnings caused by changes in currency rates used to translate earnings at foreign subsidiaries into U S dollars These contracts were not
designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes and were marked to market through the income statement Foreign currency exchange losses of $ |
millien and $10 miflion related to these contracts were recorded mn “Other expense, net” for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

Other

The Company presents its derivative posittons and any related matenial collateral under master netting agreements on a net basis For dentvatives designated as
cash flow hedges, changes in the time value are excluded from the assessment of hedge effechveness Unreahzed gains and losses associated with ineffective
hedges, determined using the hypothetical derivative method, are recogmzed 1n “Other expense, net” Denvatve gains and losses included n *Accumulated
other comprehensive loss™ for effective hedges are reclassified into operations upon recognition of the hedged transaction Dervative gains and losses associated
with undesignated hedges are recogmzed 1n “Other expense, net” for outstanding hedges and “Cost of products sold” upen hedge maturity The Company’s
undesignated hedges are pnmarily commodity hedges and such hedges have become undesignated mainly due to forecasted volume deciines

Concentrations of Credst Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primanly of accounts recervable and cash investments
The Company’s customer base includes virtually every significant global light and commercial vehicle manufacturer and a large number of retailers,
distnbutors and installers of automotive aftermarket parts The Company’s credit evaluation process and the geographical dispersion of sales transactions
help to mitigate credit nsk concentration No individual customer accounted for more than 6% of the Company’s direct sales during 2013 During 2012, the
Company granted terms extensions with certam customers i the North Amernican aftermarket As a result, the Company has one VCS customer that accounts
for 14% of the Company’s net accounts receivable balance as of December 31, 2013 The Company requires placement of cash 1n financial institutions
evaluated as lighly creditworthy

The following table discloses the farr values and balance sheet locations of the Company’s derivative instruments

Asset Denivatives Liabihity Denvatives
Balance Sheet December 31, December 31, Balance Sheet D 31, D 1ber 31,
Location 2013 - 2012 Laocation 2013 2012

Derivatives desiguated as cash flows [ 707 Az ; i it LR T
Hedging instrim engs: = P ey ”*““"‘érizfﬁ“ é:j 2t *Z. ‘§ T g 2B B
Interest rate swap contracts Other current
s — — liabilities $ — 3 (10)
:h " Other current' " :Xj‘ﬂiqx Ry LI e e ;;'” Othar«currentsw O R e
e ?L;dg Eﬁ‘f‘w S S ahe T Ixabill}lcsﬁjf* i"ﬁ Rl [ CU P R R W) e llabxhhesax“ *a B BT {2) 2 BN ae (1);
Foreign currency contracts Other current
habilities — p. 1y —
U sy Bt e T T L TR T T T TR 2 et e g )F §re (1D
Derivatives not designated as cash
flow hedging mstruments
"'F‘ L A T LN - . "i”;e ¢ ek yae R M&;, Jz;fa: U B e MM ther current” o m“ T 5 ‘v:? :
' mel@mcy‘f?ﬂ%{ TR X Sty ”S*’i"*"éi *izzwn,__,, = Yatlites T 5 S I AP $s~wf" “ "4(10)1
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The followng tables disclose the effect of the Company’s denivative instruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2013

Amount of
Gam (Loss)
Recognized in
OClon Location of Loss Reclassified A t of Loss Reclassificd
Derivatives from AQCI inte from AOCI into
{Effective Income {Effective Income {Effective
Dervatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Portion)
(Millions of Doliars)
Interest rate gwap contracts | o §re o AT, ST Interest expensésnetis. & $xov o 0w - . (9) 4
Commedity contracts N Cost of products sold (5
Foreign curvency contracts” *, "+ - -~ ' 7% (1)7,% . Costofproductssold,  va c# - ]
5 {7) $ (14}
Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized m Recognized in
Income on Income on
Dervatives Not Destgnated as Hedging Instruments Derivatives Derivatives
{Millions of Dollars)
Foreign currenoy contracts | * i . e oo Otherexpense,met* '+ §_ .t a0 o (1) o

The following tables disclose the effect of the Company’s dertvative mstruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2012

Amount of
Gain (Loss)
Recogmzed in Location of Gain Amount of Gain
OCl on (Loss) Reclassified {Lots) Reclassified
Denivatives from AQC] into from AOCI into
{Effective Income (Effective lncome (Effective
Dervanves Designated as Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Partion)
(Millions of Dallars)
Initerest rate swap contracts -x % @) ¢ /_Interest expense, net g - 7@
Commodity contracts 7 Cost of products sold (19)
Foreign currency contracts {2) Cost of products sold ) i
3 1 5 (47)
Location of Loss Amount of Loss
Recognized in Recognized 1n
Income on Income on
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Dervatives Derivatives
(Muliions of Dollars)
Foreign currency contracts Other expense, net ¥ 10 |
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The followng tables disclose the effect of the Company’s denvative instruments on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2011

Location of Lasy Amount of Loss
Recognuzed in Recognized in
Amount of [ncome on [ncome on
Gain (Loss) Dernvatives Derivatives
Recognized Location of Gan Amount of Gamn (1neffective Portion (Ineffective Portion
n OCI on {Loss) Reclassified (Loss) Reclassified and Amount and Amount
Derivatives from AOCI into (rom AOCT into Excluded from Excluded from
Derivatives Designated as {Effective locome (Effective Income (Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness
Hedging Instruments Portion) Portion) Porticn) Testing) Testing)
(Millions of Dollars)
Interest rate swap confracts’  $r. .1 (13) . | Interestexpense.net’ i 8. g i (3O L Wt TRl Lot e
Commodity contracts (22) Cost of products sold 5 Other expense, net (N
frmm—— st < kg 5 3t H e g e e a e " P
Foreign cunéncy contracts /"5 %77 a0 35 10 cCogt of products sold Vil re et B Hga T 5T S T T PR e, 2 L
3 (32) 5 (34) £ (1)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

1AsB asC Topie 320 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (*"FASB ASC 820}, clanfies that fair value 1s an exit pnice, representing the amount that would be
recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability 1n an orderly transaction between market participants As such, fair value 1s a market-based measurement
that should be deterrmned based upon assumptions that market participants would use i pricing an asset or habihity As a basis for considening such
assumptions, FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the mputs used 1n measurmg fair value as follows

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted prices n active markets,
Level 2 Inputs, other than quoted prices 1n active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly, and
Level 3 Unobservable mputs in which there 1s little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions

An asset’s or habihity’s fair value measurement Jevel within the fair value hierarchy 1s based on the fowest level of any mput that 1s sigmificant to the fair value
measurement Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable mputs and mimimize the use of unobservable inputs

Assets and habilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techmiques noted i FASB ASC 820

A Market approach Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or
Labilities

Cost approach Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset {replacement cost)

Income approach Techmiques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations {including present
value fechniques, option-pricing and excess earmungs models)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Assets and habihities remeasured and disclosed at fair value or a recurmnng basis at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are set forth in the table below

Asset Valuation
(Liability) Level 2 Technique
{Milbons of Dollars)

December 31,2013 _ _ ] S R
Commodity contracts $ (1) § () C
Foreign currency contmacts -~ e T T T Ty e ]
December 31, 2012
Tnterest rate swap contraets _ kN Wy ST g T ]
Commodity contracts 1 1 C
Forewgn currency contracts, . ., T 7 a0 TRy T G ]

The Company calculates the fair value of its interest rate swap contracts, commodity contracts and foreign currency contracts using quoted interest rate
curves, quoted commodity forward rates and quoted currency forward rates, respectively, to calculate forward values, and then discounts the forward values

The discount rates for all derivative contracts are based on quoted swap interest rates or bank deposit rates For contracts which, when aggregated by
counterparty, are in a hability position, the rates are adjusted by the credit spread that market participants weuld apply 1f buying these contracts from the
Company’s counterparties

The following table presents the Company’s defined benefit plan assets measured at faur vatue on a recurnng basis as of December 31, 2013

Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Technique
(Milhons of Dollars)
U.S. Plans. o - Y DDk ) Lo ]
Cash 3 3 % 33§ — 3 — A
Investments with registered mvestment companses - . e s o " j
Equity secunties 347 347 —_ — A
L Fixed income securities ’ ‘ L © 135 ~. 135. —_ — A ]
Rea) estate and other 23 23 — — A
qu:_[y securities 242 c . 242 — — A ]
Debt secunties
{  Corporate and other . 22 — Y — B ]
Government . 22 14 8 — A
Hedge funds ) 8s . = = o 85 - AC |
§ 909 3 794 % 30 § 85
Non-U.8 Plans: ° - - . ]
Insurance contracts 3 4 5 — 3 — § 44 B
:lnvestmems with registered investment companies J
Fixed income securities 7 7 — — A
[ Equity secunties 2 2 — — A i
Corporate bonds 2 — 2 — B
| 3 55 5 3 2 S 44 |
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following table summanizes the acuvity for the U S plan assets classified in level 3

Foreign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, lnto (Our) of Rate December 31,
2013 Gans (Loss) Ner Net Level 3 Movements 2013
(Miltiont of Dollary)
Assets e - - ,‘
Hedge funds and other $ 4 % 11 3 83 § 23) § — % — 8 85
The following table summarnizes the activity for the non-U § plan assets classified mn level 3
Fore:gn
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unreatized Settlements, Sales, Iato (Out) of Rate December 31,
2013 Gains {Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2013
(Mullions of Dollxrs)
‘Asgets S e e Faan em G el o il Bl gl T, A TN i ]
Insurance contracts $ 42 § 1 $ 6 3 6y 8 — 5 1 8 44
The following table presents the Company’s defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value on a recurning basts as of December 31, 2012
Valuation
Total Level | Level 2 Level 3 Technique
{Milbions of Dollars)
1.8 . S Raae s - S N A e S I S N R . A Somear ra i -
U.S. Plans: » - 0 s O R NIRRT AL &AL, A i o . g AN }
Cash 5 4 3 4 % — 3 — A
I b ’ L COIPATIES | L et - F s i e BPER TR v A et T e s T
nvestments with registered nvesuNent CoMPANIES 44, =8 2 070, .85 e e SRS R IR TR e
Equity secunties 257 257 — — A ‘
{ Flfedi?ﬁcmh&sccurme;f: SaE NP i RN ’T&s‘?”ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&} WA s, ;L‘—-'i;f%“”‘ P b T A El ‘
Real estate and other 4 4 — — A
Equity securtiies s 00 4 A 1 1 = N
Fixed income collective trust 45 — 45 — B
Debt secunities ;" 485w o <k o T e R AN TN N -,
Corporate and other 37 - 37 — B
- " — = 3 " o T 1
{ Government™ " _ AR > L2 — .. 27 — A
Hedge funds 14 —_ _— 14 AC
= . = = 1
T N . v . 3 $ - 778- 8. 6557 § 09 § 14 i
Non-U 8. Plans
Insurance contracts!, < tes, - L, . . $. 42 % — 8 - 8 42 B .
; N —
[nvestments with registered investment companies
I Fixed income securrties ‘ v I | L 10 T — A i
Equity secunties 1 1 — — A
e e — e T e T — -
Corporate bonds;> ' R . R ) . -2 — 2 - B
$ 55 % Il $ 2 3 42
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The foilowing table summanzes the activity for the U S plan assets classified in level 3

Foreign
Purchases, Currency
Balance at Net Realized/ and Transters Exchange Balance at
January 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into (Out) of Rate December 31,
2012 Guns {Loss) Net Net Level 3 Movements 2012
(Mill:ons of Dollxrs)
Assets \ L L - L e R = 1
Hedge funds and other $ —-— % 2 % 12 8 — % — 3 — § 14
The following table summarnizes the activity for the non-U S plan assets classified in level 3
Foragn
Net Purchases, Currency
Balance at Realized/ and Transfers Exchange Balance at
Janoary 1, Unrealized Settlements, Sales, Into (Out) Rate December 31,
2012 Galns (Loss) Net Net of Level 3 Movements 2012
{Millions of Dollars)
‘Assets -
Insurance contracts $ 35 % 1 3 7 $ @ % — % 1 § 42

US Plan

As of December 31, 2013, plan assets were compnsed of 65% equity nvestrnents, 20% fixed income investments, and 15% in other investments which
include hedge funds Approximately 74% of the U S plan assets were mvested in 2ctively managed investment funds The Cormpany’s investment strategy
includes a target assct allocation of 50% equity investments, 25% fixed income 1nvestments and 25% in other investment types including hedge funds

Investments with registered mvestment companies, common and preferred stocks, and government debt securities are valued at the closing price reported on
the active market on which the funds are traded Corporate debt securities are valued by third-party pncing sources Hedge funds and collective trusts are
valued at net asset value (“*"NA V™) per share

Non-U S Plans

The insurance contracts guarantee a munimum rate of return The Company bas no tnput into the investment strategy of the assets underlying the contracts,
but they are typically heawvily wvested in active bond markets and are highly regulated by local law

Assets and Irabilities measured at fair value on 2 nonrecurring basis at December 31,2013 and 2012 are set forth in the table below

Asset Valuation
{Luiability) Level 3 (Low) Techoique
{Millions of Dallars)
December 31, 2013
Property, plant and equipment 55 55 % (8) C

December 31, 2012

EREEREREEE

Trademarks and brand names 3 231§ 231§ (46) [
Goodwill — — (95) C
:l_’__funpe_rty_.plant and equipment 100 100 (50) C
Asset retirement obhgation (8} (8) — C
Investments 1 non-consolidated affibates . — — 2} C

Property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of $63 million were wnitten down to thetr fair value of 355 mulhon, resulting 1 an impairment charge of
$8 million, which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fawr value” for the year ended December 31, 2013 Property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of $150 million were written down to their fair value of $100 mulhion, resulting 1n an impairment charge of $50 mullion, which was recorded

within “Adjustment of assets to fair value’
[+
o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

for the year ended December 31, 2012 The Company determuned the fair value of these assets through the use of valuation speciahsts

Trademarks and brand names with a carrying value of $277 million were wnitten down to their fair value of $231 mullion, resuiting 1n an impairment charge
of $46 mullion, which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair value™ for the year ended December 31, 2012 These fair values are based upon the
prospective stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of retum appropnate for these mtangible assets

Goodwll at two of the Company s reporting units with a combined carrying value of $95 milhion was wntten down 10 1ts fair value of zero, resulting In a
$95 million impairment charge for the year ended December 31, 2012, which was recorded within “Adjustment of assets to fair value ” The esumated farr
values were determuned based upon consideration of vanious valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate
with the nsks involved, pmdeline ransaction muluples, and multiples of current and furure eamings

Asset retirement obligations with carrying values of $8 million were established during the year ended December 31, 2012

8. INVENTORY

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost 1s determuned by the first-in, first-out (“FIFQ") method at December 31, 2013 and 2012 Inventones
are reduced by an ailowance for excess and obsolete inventories based on management’s review of an-hand inventones compared to hustoncal and estimated
future sales and usage

Net inventonies consist of the foliowing

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
Raw matenals 3 207 % 200
Work-in-process” M L vy e . ME0_ - 1614
Finushed products 819 812
[ SR CoTE R L T ie e T 11867 - i 1,173
Inventory valuation allowance (118) (99)
CEIR TR RS I 1,068-% . 1074]

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As a result of fresh-start reporting, PP&E that were purchased prior to January 1, 2008 were stated at estimated replacement cost, unless the expected future
use of the assets indicated a lower value was appropriate PP&E purchased since that time are recorded at cost Depreciation expense for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $247 million, $236 million and $232 mullion, respectively

PP&E consist of the following

December 31 December 31
Useful Life 2013 012
(Millions of Dollars)
Land - § 219§ 226
Buildings and bulding improvements 10 - 40 years 495 477!
Machinery and equipment 2 -12 years 2,662 2,420
L fo : ; : : s 3,376° 3,123 |
Accumulated deprec:atlfun _ o o (1,338) (1,152)
f $ 2038 § 1,971
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The Company leases PP&E used in its operations Future nuntmum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remainung terms of more
than one year are as follows (in muliions of dollars)

2014 $ 45

g L o T 2015 kiR T3
2016 32

R - 2017 o= 23]
2018 ie

Thereafter - . "~ Jro, + 25
3 178

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $63 millien, $55 million and $56 millien,
respectively, exclusive of property taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company

19, GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of the following

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrving Carrying Accumulated Carrymng

Amount I[mpsirment Amount Amount Imparment Ameount

(Millicns of Dollars)

Goodwill: oo " T - S n 136258 0 e (ST0)° 8, ¢ - 792,08 1,385 § . . (508} & - 7874
Trademarks and brand names 423 (198) 225 433 (201) 232
L e TS LT85 §L o (I68) $i+ LOL7< §°7 1818 §¢ ., (799) $ ' - L019]

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, definte-lived intangible assets consust of the following

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Gross Net Gross Net
Carryng Accumulated Carrying Carrymng Accumulated Carrving
Amount Amgrtization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(Millions of Dollars)
Developed technology $: 116§ 63) § "~ 83 U UH7 § (53) & 64 |
Customer relationships 555 (252) 303 562 (218) 344
| $ 671 § (3159 § 356 3 679 $ (271) % 408' |

The Company’s nct goodwill balances by reporting segment as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows

December 31 December 31
2013 2012
(Millions of Dallars)
Powertrain by 487 § 480
;Vehlc]e Components Solutions 305 307 |
3 792 § 787
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The Company’s net trademarks and brand names balances by reporting segment as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows

December 31 December 31 .
2013 2
(Mallions of Dollars)
Vehicle Components Solutionis™ ' - . $, e.i 222§ . 228
Powertrain 3 4
R N Lo $ 7w 22508507 Lan)

The following 1s a rollforward of the Company's goodwll and other intangible assets (net) for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Total
Goodwil]
and
Trademarks Indefinite- Definite-
and Lived Laved
Goodwill Brand Names Intangibles Intangibles
. (Mbllsons of Dollars)
Balance st Balance at January 1,202, %>, ~ 5 7L, g TR TR T AT GRTNE 3 gt v 2770 Sy 19115, § oo o d34n

2011 imparrment fmallzatlon (1)

[ 522012 mmparrment;, . R ~(95m1§@‘%%%%’e§g46 e iR (1
Alleged defective products hablity adjustment

L ‘fPropf?%? ‘Dlant-and’equinmentadinstments

P SO Wi i

e Ma«a@mﬂ T g

¥ ey P Ry . - i e 5 m.\ga} i " T s § Ay S
{1y ity Amormétzon’iexpéus : £ LT e &z,&%;i; %y, S by ] e Y Tt @ e i i N Mwm(49?)j
Fore:gn currency 1 — 1 1

W

Balance at Dmembmala ETSCLEIT AREREE e AR B T B b o TR sl T g PP 1019 s 408
5 o, i, Al i
Purchase accounting adjustments for acquired spark plug busmess 8 — 8 (3)

gﬁ L i *i ;e; 13 3% 535 % a%khu S Sa;%n T '?% »«““;“ Sa ‘“ﬁi»;e ;kku ;squux>;(3) §;§ﬁ%;% :}fﬁ:w('l et S r‘szrf‘ i ?{10)3,% ,m 54«5»:,; T (2)}

Amortization expense — — —_ (47
i s R el BN ¥ - = " N -
Balance at Détetnbier. 31, 201300 os, | e Lk E, rﬁé‘%=§w~3?:ﬁiz Srl e e §R TR Gl v e v, 2285 §ET0M-. $F 1 - 356)
Goodwll

As of December 31, 2007, goodwill was determtned as the excess of reorgamzation value over amounts atiributable to specific tangible and intangible assets,
including developed technology and customer relationshups Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually as of Octeber 1, or more frequently if impairment
indicators exist, wn accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC 350 This impairment analysis compares the fair values of the
Company’s reporting units to their related carrying values If a reporting unit carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then calculate the
reporting unut’s tmplied fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of the goodwill carrying value over the implied farr value of
goodwill The reporting units” fair values are based upon consideration of varnious valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted
at rates commensurate with the nisks involved, guideline transaction muluiples, and multiples of current and future earmings  All of the Company's reporting
units with a goodwill balance passed "Step 1" of the October 1, 2013 goodwill impairment analysis All "Step 1" results had fair values 1n excess of carrying
values of at least 26%

Dunng the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company determned that 1t was not properly accountmg for alleged defective products as 1t was recording an expense
when a claim was made by a customer as opposed to at pomnt of sale The Company performed an analysis and determuned that 1t needed to mcrease its alleged
defective products liabihity by $37 mullion as of December 31, 2012 As this error predates the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy on December 27,
2007, a $36 milhion increase to 1ts alleged defective products liability should have beer recorded at December 31, 2007 with a direct offset to goodwill
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Due to this retrospective increase in goodwill, the Company re-performed 1ts goodwill impairment testing from 2008 to 2011 and discovered that a previous
fresh-stant adjustment identified and recorded 1n 2009 increasing goodwill by $13 mullion had been incorrectly assigned to one reporting unit instead of being
allocated across all reporting units Thus specific reporting umit's goodwill was sigrificantly imparred during the Company’s 2011 annual umpairment test,
$13 mulion of which was on goodwill that should not have been assigned to this reporting unit After properly allocating goodwill ta the Company's reporting
unus as of December 31, 2007 and re-performing 1its goodwnl imparrment testing, the Company determined that the impact to impairment charges taken 1n
each of the years 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 was not matenal to any individual year and the cumulative 1mpact on impairment charges since the
December 31, 2007 fresh-start reporting date was less than $1 mullion

in June 2012, the Company entered nto a defimtive agreement to purchase the spark plug business from BorgWarmer, Inc These spark plugs are
manufactured in France and Germany and are sold to European onginal equipment manufacturers The purchase closed at the end of September 2012 for $52
mullion, net of cash acquired The Company allocated the purchase price m accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations The Company
utilized a third party 1o ass:st in the fair value determination of certain componens of the purchase price allocation, namely fixed assets and intangible assets
The Company recorded $19 mullion of definite-lived intangible assets (pnmartly customer relationships) and $9 mullion of indefinste-lived intangmble assets
(primanly goodw1l]) associated with this acqutsition

Effective September 1, 2012, the Company re-segmented 1ts business to its current segments Given the business realignments that occurred due to this re-
segmentation and the fact that some reporting units contarning geodwilt under the former segmentation were being divided within the new Cempany structure
thus requiring the Company to determine the relative fair value of these divided reporting units 1n order to allocate goodwill, the Company deemed 1t prudent to
perform an intenm goodwall impairment test in accordance with FASB ASC 350 As a result of this intenm testing, one divided reporting unit that received a
relative fair value goodwill allocation of $3 mullion had a carrying value in excess of fair value, thus requinng the Company to recognize a full impairment
charge of $3 million in the third quarter of 2012

In the second quarter of 2012, the Company determmed that goodwill impairment 1ndicators existed 1n the Company’s friction reporting unit, including lower
than expected profits and cash flows due to continued lower aftermarket volumes, further product mix stufts and pressure on margins In response to these
trends, the Company’s board of directors approved a restructunng plan to reduce or eluminate capacity at several high cost facilittes and transfer production to
lower cost locations The friction reporting unit goodwill was tested for impairment 1n accordance with the FASB ASC 350 during the second quarter of 2012
The fair value of friction reporting unit did not suppaort the recorded goodwill and accordingly the Company recognized a full impatrment charge of $91
mullion in the second quarter of 2012

In the first quarter of 2012, the Cempany mereased goodwill and decreased PP&E by $8 million to correct for PP&E that were incorrectly valued in fresh-
start accounting

Given the complexity of the calculation, the Company had not finalized “Step 2 of its annual goodwill impairment assessment for the year ended December
31, 2011 pnor to filing 1ts annual report on Form 10-K The goodwill impairment charge recogmzed during the fourth quarter of 2011 was $259 million In
the first quarter of 2012, the Company completed this assessment, and recorded an additional $1 million goodwill impairment charge

Other Intangible Assets

The Company performs its annual trademarks and brand names impairment snalysts as of October 1, or more frequently sf smpairment indicators exist
accordance with the subsequent measurement provisions of FASB ASC 350 This impairment analysis compares the tair values of these assets to the related
carrymg values, and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of carrying values over fair values These fair values are based upon the prospective
stream of hypothetical after-tax royalty cost savings discounted at rates that reflect the rates of return appropnate for these intangible assets

Primanly all of the Company's trademarks and brand names are associated with 1ts aftermarket sales and are further broken down by product line All of the
Company's trademarks and brand names passed the October 1, 2013 impairment analysis in connection with the September 1, 2012 goodwill impairment
test, the Company also performed 1ts trademarks and brand names impairment analysis as of September 1, 2012 Based upon this annual analysis, the
Company recognized a $33 mullion impairment charge i the third quarter of 2012

The Company performed a trademarks and brand names impairment analysis in accordance FASB ASC 350 duning the second quarter of 2012 due to noted
impairment indicators Based upon this anatysis, the Company recognized a $13 muilion impairment charge mn the second quarter of 2012

79




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The Company recorded amortization expense of $47 mullion, $49 mallron and $48 mullion associated with definite-lived intangible assets during the years

ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively The Company utlizes the straight line method of amortization, recogmzed over the estimated useful

Lives of the assets The Company’s developed technology intangible assets have useful ives of between 10 and 15 years The Company’s customer
relationships intangible assets have useful hives of between | and 15 years The Company’s estimated future amortization expense for its definite-lived
intangible assets 15 as follows (in mulhions of dollars)

R e e 2014p 8, 4] |
2015 47
:'_ R vooah Pl f&_— LT 2015; >, (“f:: . 45
2017 45
e e T T 2018 - . 37
:@Eeff_ter - 135
R ) LA T s el $Eeds . 356)

11 INVESTMENTS IN NON-CONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

The Company maintains investments 1n several non.consohidated affilates, which are located in China, Korea, Turkey and the Umted States The Company
does not hold a controlling interest 1n an entity based on exposure to economic risks and potential rewards {vanable interests) for which 1t 1s the pnmary
beneficiary Further, the Company's jomt ventures are businesses established and maimained 1n connection wath its operating strategy and are not special
purpose entities

The following represents the Company’s aggregate investments and direct ownership in these affilates

December 31
2013 012
{Mullions of Dollars)
Investments i non-consolidated affilates - - s s L 5 2538 7 - .- 240
)
Direct 6wnersh1|1 peﬂi:wenfaggs&“?i;:;%f g T e B A e et R0 SQuae wihe P00 ’“:30%&{

The following table represents amounts reflected 1n the Company’s financial statements related to non-consclidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011
{Milleons of Doltars)
:f_imqtmn_ty earmings of non«consohét_e_a{a_ﬁixates —“— s s N - Eﬂ
Cash dividends received from non-consolidated affiliates 13 31 16

80




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

The following tables present selected aggregated financial information of the Cornpany s non-consolidated affiliates

Year Ended December 31

1013 012 011

(Mulozs of Dollars)} .
Statements of Operations _ e L v Se Coe T ]
Sates b 918 3§ 682 § 744
Gross margsn .~ - * o o - URE R AR T 138 ]
Income from continwng operations 120 91 1
Netmeome  ~ : i - 103 ML TR

December 31 December 31
2013 012

(Millions of Dollars)
Balance Sheets

Current assetsi: - ) A R . R 301]
Noncurrent assets . 398 343
Current liabilties . P o N 180.° " 133]
Noncurrent habilities 38 39

The Company holds a 50% non-centrolling interest in a joint venture located m Turkey (“Turkey JV™) The Turkey JV was established in 1995 for the
purpose of manufacturing and marketing automotive parts, including pistons, piston rings, piston pins, and cylinder liners to onginal equipment and

aftermarket customers The Company purchases/sells mventory from/to the Turkey JV Purchases from the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were 3152 million, $150 milhien and $171 milbion, respectively Sales to the Turkey JV for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011 were $44 mullion, 345 mithon and $46 mulhion, respecuvely The Company had net accounts payzble balances with the Turkey JV of $6 million

and 85 mulhion as of December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively

The Company has determned that its investments in Chinese joint venture arrangements are considered to be * limuted-lived™ as such entities have specified
durations ranging from 30 to 50 years pursuant to regicnal statutory regulations In general these arrangements call for extension, renewal or hquidation at the
discretion of the parties to the arrangement at the end of the contractual agreement Accordingly, a reasonable assessment cannot be made as to the impact of

such arrangements on the future iquidity position of the Company

12 ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued habilities consist of the foltowing

December 31
2013 2012
(Milbons of Dollars) .
‘Accrued compensation 5 169 % 1531
Accrued rebates 125 113
Non-income tax payable | 4 3
Alleged defective products 30 42
:l_{estructunng lizbihitacs 24 12_}
Accrued product returns 21 22
‘Accrued professional services 21 lﬂ
Accrued income taxes 17 15
TAccrued warranty 6 12}
Othet — 1
I $ 454§ 423 |
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13. DEBT

On December 6, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment (the “Amendment™) of s Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of
December 27, 2007 (as amended, the “Credit Agreement”), among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc  as Admunistrative Agent,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothull, LLC, as Co-Documentation
Agents, to amend 1ts existing revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit facility {the “Replacement Revolving Facility’™) The
Amendment, among other things, (1) increases the aggregate commitments available under the Replacement Revolving Facility from  $540 million to $550
muilhion, (11} extends the maturity date of the Replacement Revolving Facility to December 6, 2018, subject to certain himited exceptions descnbed below and
(1) amends the Company’s borrowing base to provide the Company with addittonal hquidity

Advances under the Replacement Revolving Facility gencrally bear interest at a vanable rate per annum cqual to (1) the Altermate Base Rate (as defined in the
Credit Agreement) plus an adjustable margin of 0 50% to 1 00% based on the average monthly availability under the Replacement Revolving Facility or
(1) Adjusted LIBOR Rate (as defined tn the Credit Agreement) plus a margin of } 50% to 2 00% based on the average monthly availability under the
Replacement Revolving Facility An unused commitment fee of 0 375% also 1s payable under the terms of the Amendment

Under certain limited circumstances the matunty date of the Replacement Revolving Facility may be accelerated In the event that as of a particular
determination date more than $300 million aggregate pnincipal amount of the Company’s existing term loans and certain related refinancing indebtedness will
become due within 81 days of such determnauon date, the Replacement Revolving Facility will mature on such determinanon date

The Amendment does not alter the Company’s existing Tranche B or Tranche C term loans under the Credit Agreement dated December 7, 2007 The tranche
B term loans mature December 27, 2014 and the tranche C term loans mature December 27, 2015 All term loans bear mnterest at LIBOR plus 1 9375% To
the extent that interest rates change by 25 basis points, the Company’s annual interest expense would show a corresponding change of approximatety $7
mullion and $2 milhon for years 2014 - 2015, the period of the term loans under the Company's Credit Agreement

The Company has $1,694 milion of short-term debt as of December 31, 2013, of which $1,597 mullion relates to the tranche B term loan that matures on
December 27, 2014 On December 6, 2013, High River, an affiliate of Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company’s largest stockholder, provided a Backstop
Commiunent in favor of the Company with respect to its extsung tranche B term loan The Backstop Commutment provides that if the Company 1s unable to
refinance 1ts tranche B term loan on or prior to September 27, 2014, High River or an affiliate thereof with at least the same net worth wall provide loan
financing of up to $1 6 billion to the Company and 1ts subsidiaries on arms-length terms to provide the funlding necessary to repay the tranche B term
loan The High Raver loan will be subject to negotiation and execution of definitive documentation to be approved by the independent directors of the Company

During 2008, the Company entered into a series of five-year interest rate swap agreements with a total notonal value of $1,190 million 1o hedge the vanability
of interest payments associated with 1ts vartable-rate term loans under the Credit Agreement Through these swap agreements, the Company has fixed ats base
interest ane premium rate at a combined average mterest rate of approximately 5 37% on the hedged principal amount of $1,190 million Since the interest rate
swaps hedge the variabibity of interest payments on vanable rate debt with the same terms, they qualhify tor cash flow hedge accounting treatment All of these
five-year interest rate swap agreements had expired as of December 31, 2013

The Credit Agreement was imtially negonated and agreement was reached 'on the majority of sigmificant terms i early 2007 Between the time the terms were
agreed 1n early 2007 and December 27, 2007, interest rates charged on simular debt mstruments for comparies with stmular debt ratings and capitalization
levels rose to higher levels As such, when applying the provisions of fresh-start reporting, the Company estimated a fair value adjustment of $163 milion for
the available borrowings under the Credit Agreement Thus estimated fair value was recorded within the fresh-start reporting, and 1s being amortized as interest
expense over the terms of each of the underlying components of the Credit Agreement Interest expense associated with the amortization of this fair value
adjustment, recognized 1n the Company’s consolidated statements of operations, conststs of the following

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

{Mitlions of Dollars}
Amortization of far value adjustment $ 22§ 22 % 23

L
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Debt consists of the followtng

December 31
2013 2012
{Millions af Dollars)

iTerm loans under credit agreement . > . Lo, el s |

Tranche B term loan 3 1597 & 1,862
Tranche C termn loan i i T - 940 - 950
Debt discount {30) (52)
'lOthcr debt, primanly foreign instruments <A : v R 927 67 |

2,599 2,827
Less shor-torm debt, mcludmgﬂ current matunties of long-tesm debt . ral ,{1_,59.473_*“ . (34—}}

Total long-term debt . $ 905 % 2,733

The obhigauons of the Company under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by substanually all of the domestic subsidianes and certan foreign subsidianes of
the Company, and are secured by substantially all personal property and certain real property of the Company and such guarantors, subject to certain
limitattons The liens granted to secure these obligations and certarn cash management and hedging obligattons have first priority

The Credit Agreement contains some affirmative and negative covenants and events of default, including, subject to certain exceptions, restrictions on
incurring additional indebtedness, mandatory prepayment provisiens associated with specified asset sales and dispositions, and limitations on 1)
Investments, 1) certain acquisitions, mergers or consohdations, ) sale and leaseback transactions, 1v) certain transactions with affiliates and v) divtdends
and other payments in respect of capital stock Per the terms of the Credit Agreement, $50 mullton of the Tranche C Term Loan proceeds were deposited 1n a
Term Letter of Credit Account The Company was in compliance with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2013

The revolving credit facility has an avatlable borrowing base of $550 rmllion and $451 mullion as of December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively The
Company had $29 millien and 337 mullion of letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, pertaining to the term loan credit
factlity To the extent letters of credit associated with the revolving credit facihity are issued, there 15 a corresponding decrease 1n borrowings available under
this facility

Estimated fair values of the Company’s term loans under the Credit Agreement were

Estimated
Far Farr Value in Excess
Value (Deficit) of Carrying Valuaticn
(Level 1) Value Technique
(Milliens of Dollars)

December 31, 2013 1
Term Loans 3 2520 % 13 A
r ]
December 31, 2012
Term Loans $ 2,587 § (173) A |

Fair market values are developed by the use of esumates obtained from brokers and other appropnate valuation techniques based on information available as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 The fair value estimates do not necessanly reflect the values the Company could realize in the current markets Refer to Note
7, Fair Value Measurements, for defimitions of input levels and valuation techmiques
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The Company has the following contractual debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2013 (in mithions of dollars)

014§ 1,694

f . L 2015, X
- o 2016 L
e - L 2017 1]
Total S 2,629

The weighted average cash interest rates for debt were approximately 2 3% and 2 6% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Interest paid on debt in
2013, 2012 and 2011 was $77 mullion $106 milhion and $104 million, respectively
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14 PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Company sponsers defined benefit penston plans (“Pension Benefits™) and postretirement health care and hife msurance benefits (“Other Postemployment
Benefits” or “OPEB") for certain employees and retirees around the world Using appropnate actuanal methods and assumptions, the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans and postemployment benefits other than pensions are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 715, Compensation —
Retirement Benefits (“FASB ASC 715™)

The measurement date for all defined benefit plans 1s December 31 The following provides a reconciliation of the plans® benefit obligations, plan assets,
funded status and recogmtion in the consolidated balance sheets

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
United States Plans Non-US Plang Benefits
203 2012 20t3 2012 2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)

Change n benefit obligation - 7+ ¥ ey YR ) i, A L Ia B
Benefit obligation, beginming of year ’ $ 1,298 % 1227 § 474 S 362 % 395 § 350

{ " Servicocosth | &+ tve T R NN IV ) — R
Interest cost 47 53 14 16 11 14

(% Employes contobutions® g . 5. 47 T G N N =% SRt R S
Benefits pad (64) (62) (28) 2n (28) (29)

[ Medicare subsidues receivedsy  \ i - s ) L e it ¢ oa gy e - TS 3 - 3]
Plan amendments — — — 1 — (16}

[ 7 Curtalments =" - . T e e (16) ¢ ¢ (W et @, .. —]
Settlements — (4) — —_ — —

[ Contractual termnation benefity , . . * L n RN R o —
Actuarial (gains) losses and changes 1n actuanal assumptions (101) 98 (25) %94 (43) 75

{ Net'transfers (ouffm, .. -~ -~ =~ i ety T (28, (1Y 3 1) @)
Currency translation — — t5 10 (2) —

| Benefitobhganon, endofyear. .~ © e $..1,08¢. § 1,298 . 8§ 450 . §  424- $  335° § 395

Change 10 plan assets .~ L M v . s S Tt ]
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 3 778 % 670 § 55 % 48 8 — 5 —

| Actual retum on plan assets 138 82 2 3 — — |
Employee contnibutions — — —_ — 1 e

{ Company coniributions i T 60 93 24 24 24 26 |
Benefits paid (64) (62) (28) {21} (28) (29}

|____ Expenses T L) et (5) — — — — |
Medicare subsidies recerved — — — — 3 3

[ Curency translation — — 2 1 — — ]

Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 9209 % 7718 % 55 8§ 55 % — % —

{ i
Funded status of the plan $ 275y 8§ (520) % (395) § 419) § (335) § (395)

; !

Amounts recogmzed mn the consolidated balance sheets

f___ Noncurrent assets $ — % —  § — 3 2 3 — 8 — |
Current hlabtlines 3) (3) (13) (15) (28) 29

| Noncurrent Liabities 272) (517 (382) (406) (307) (366}

Net amount recognized $ (@719 % 520) $ (395 %8 (419) $ (335) % (393)

L s

Amounts recognized 1n accumulated other comprehensive loss, ¢

mclusive of tax impacts

[ Netactuanal loss $ 242 § 435 S 8L § 107 S 63 8 113 |
Pror service cost (credit) — — 3 4 28y (75

[ Total $ 242 § 435§ 84 § 111 § 35 % 38 |
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

U S Penston Plan

In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company froze contributions credits under s U § qualified pension plan for salaned and non-union hourly employees
The elunination of benefit accruals related to participants’ future service 1s treated as a curtailment and 1s shown as a $16 mullion redaction to the benefit
obligation

U § Welfare Benefit Plan

In May 2013, the Company ceased operations at one of its U S manufacturing locations As this location participated m the Company’s U S Welfare Benefit
Plan, the Company had this plan re-measured due tc its curtaiiment implhications The resulting reduction in the average remaiming future service period to the

full ehgibility date of the remainung active plan participants in the Company's U S Welfare Benefit Plan tniggered the recogmition of a2 $19 mullion OPEB
curiailment gan, which was recogmzed n the consolidated statements of operatwons for the year ended December 31, 2013

In July 2012, as a result of contract negotiations with a union at one of the Company’s U § manufactunng locations, the benefits under the U S Welfare
Benefit Plan were eliminated for the location’s active participants  Since this plan change reduced benefits attnbutable to employee service atready rendered, it

was treated as a negative plan amendment, which created a $13 mulhon prior service credit in accumulated other comprehensive loss The corresponding
reduction in the average remamnng future service penod to the full elyzibility date also tniggered the recognition of a $51 nullion OPEB curtailment gamn which
was recognized 1n the consolidated statements of operations during the third quarter of 2012 1t should be noted that the calculation of the curtailment excluded

the newly created pnor service credit

In December 2011, the Company ceased operations at one of its U § manufactunng locations The resulting reduction 1n the average remaining future service
peniod to the full ehigibility date of the remaining active plan participants i the Company’s U § Welfare Benefit Plan tnggered the recognition of a $1 nullion
OPEB curtaiiment gan, which was recognized n the consolidated statements of operations during the fourth quarter of 2011

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Duscountrater > 0Dt PTG e s e 4 SERRAnE 3 10% s L . 3A9%: 5 2 99%u. 1 4 45% i 5 . 3 60%.)
Rate of compensation increase — — 317% 313% — —

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net penodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits Other Postemployment
Umited States Plans Non-U.S Plans Benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate E . YTO% 450%- . .299% 4 69% 3 60% 445% |
Expected return on plan asscts 7 45% 7 60% 462% 527% — —
}late of compensatton increase; T o ovE . . . — i 350% .. -313% 0 3.16% | — ]

The Company evaluates its discount rate assumption annually as of December 31 for each of s retirement-related benefit plans based upon the yield of high
quality, fixed-income debt instruments the matunities of which correspond to expected benefit payment dates

The Company’s expected return on assets 15 established annually through analysis of anticipated future long-term investment performance for the plan based
upon the asset allocation strategy  While the study gives appropnate consideration to recent fund performance and historical returns, the assumption 1s
primarily a long-term prospective rate

The U 8 investment strategy mitigates risk by incorporating diversification across appropnate assel classes 1o meet the plan’s objectives It 1s intended to
reduce nisk, provide long-term financial stability for the plan and mantain funded levels that meet long-term plan obligations while preserving sufficient
liquidity for near-term benefit payments Risk assumed 1s considered appropnate for the return anticipated and consistent with the diversification of plan
assets The Company’s investment strategy includes a target asset allocation of 50% equity mvestments, 25% fixed income investments and 25% 1n other
investment types including hedge funds Approximately 74% of the U S plan assets were invested 1n actively managed investment funds

86
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The majonty of the assets of the non-U § plans are invested through insurance contracts The insurance contracts guarantee a mmimum rate of return The
Company has no input into the investment strategy of the assets underlying the contracts, but they are typically heavily invested mn active bond markets and

are ghly regulated by local law The target asset allocation for the non-U S pension plans 1s 80% msurance contracts, } 5% debt investments and 5% equity
investments

Retfer to Note 7, “Fair Valug Measurements,” for more detail surrounding the fair value of each major category of plan assets, including the inputs and
valuation techmques used to develop the fair value measurements of the plans® assets, at December 31, 2013 and 2012

Information for defined benefit plans with projected benefit obligations 1 excess of plan assets

Other
Pension Benefits Postemployment
Umited States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2013 2012 2013 012 013 2012
(Millzons of Dollars)
ll;gjecled benefit obligation . $° . L1848 1298 § T a48.0%  C a72. % - 335 % 395
Faur value of plan assets 309 778 . 52 51 — —

Informaton for pension plans wrth accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Pension Benefits

United States Plans Non-U § Plans
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Milhoas of Dollars)
Projected benefit obligation ' $ 11848 C1298 § o amd. § . 47T
Accumutated benefit obligation 1,184 1,298 409 436
Fair value of plan assets 509~ 778 . 49 R

The accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans 1s $1 598 nuliion and $1,735 mullion as of December 31 2013 and 2012, respectively

Components of net penodic benefit cost (credit) for the years ended December 31

Pension Benefits Otber Postemployment
United States Plans Non-U S Plans Benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 201
{Mihons of Dollars)

Service cost i 3 4 5§ 21 % 19 $ 12 3 9 8 9 8 — 8 1 % L]
Interest cost 47 53 58 14 16 17 11 14 18
:Ewi(pected return on plan asseis (58) (52} {55) 3) ) 3) — — —]
Amortization of actuanal losses 14 35 24 8 — — 6 2 1
lAmortization of prior service credit N — — — — 1 — ) (14) (_l_g}j
Settlement loss (gain) — ) — 1 — — — — —
Curtmilment gain — () — o - — (19) D (L)

Net periadic cost (credit) $ 7 % 55 % 46 § 32 % 24 % 2308 (1) 3 (48) § 3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Amounts i “*Accumulated other comprehensive loss” expected to be recogmzed as components of net penodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year

Pension Benefits Other
Postemployment
United States Non-U S Plans Benefits
(Milligns of Dellars)
b A RCTLE oA Ty poKiy TENE, BEET, O

‘Amortization of actuatial losses « §- U TTREOAR $RLT RS AT R 3
Amortization of prior service cost — — (5)

; : T : T i e Rr . " r e o i
f.rOtaNI“ . ? VRS ‘“*“f w o w0 5 - f:i; s %&,s«'ﬁ%"?é éﬁ;’*&?z;»fs":y $"1:’§f < g (2) 54

The assumed health care and drug cost trend rates used io measure next year’s postemployment healthcare benefits are as follows

Other
Postemployment
Bencfits
2013 2012
Health care cost trend rate1 ¢, 740 <t % o 2ot S y’;«;%‘“:;:;: e ) g,gg%vgﬁ;m‘ 5507 259
Ultimate health care cost trend rate ‘ 500% 500%
T T z s % A P e 75 REE T H
iYearuliimate health care.cost trend rate reached |+~ % -] 7 S LAl ﬁ*&ﬁﬁi@%"rfé o G 20187

i
e
"l

Drug costitrendraie o b

s i
Ultimate drug cost trend rate

Year ultimate drug cost trend rate reached - "L & s ¢ Lo 4Rt i 90 T T2 TV 9018 0
i g i, 3 ool

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a sigmficant impact on the amounts reported for Other Postemployment Benefits plans The following table
illustrates the sensitivity to a change in the assumed health care cost trend rate

Total Service and

Interest Cosy APBO
{Millaons of Dollars)
{100 basis point (“bp™) increase 1n healthcare cost frend rate |, -~ o .. oo, $o0 0 0 1§ 26
100 bp decrease n health care cost trend rate (0 (23)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certamn assumptions for projected benefit obligations (“PBO”), associated expense and other
comprehensive loss (“OCL”) The changes in these assumptions have no impact on the Company’s funding requirements

Pension Bencefits

Other Postemployment

Umted States Plans Non-U' S Plans Benefits

Change Change Change Change

m 2014 Change in tn 2014 Change in Change Change

pension 2] accumulated peasi in accumulated m 2014 w

expense PBO OCL expense PBO OCL expense PBO

(Millions of dollars}
?ﬁSﬁjgp decrease m discount rate- 3 -1 &, 28 §° 28 $° .k § 14 8 . a9- s — 8 7—]
25 bp increasein discount rate (1) 27) 27 () (13) 13 — (7}
?5,..,.5;‘ decreage inrefurn on assets . SO E T . ' I
ity 2 _ L — e
25 bp increase 1 return on assets
rate 2) — — — — — — —_
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Projected benefit payments from the plans are estimated as foltows

Pension Begefits Other
Pastemplovment
United States Non-US Plany Benefits
{Millions of Dollzr:)m _ _

r 2014 § ; 82 8§ T 25§ 28]
. 2015 82 23 28
e .. 2016 S 5]
2017 83 23 27
P 2018 86 - 26 o 27]
Years 2019 - 2022 435 134 120

The Company expects to contribute approximately $78 million to its penston plans in 2014

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

The Company also maintams certain defined contribution pension plans for ehgible employees Effective January 1, 2013, the Company amended 1its U S
defined contribution plan to allow for an enhanced company rnatch and company provided age-based contributions for eligible U S szlanied and non-union
hourly employees The total expenses attmbutable to the Company’s defined contnbution savings plan were $42 mullion, $23 rullion and $23 milhion for the

years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively

The amounts contributed to defined contribution pensien plans nclude contributions to multi-employer plans in France, ltaly and the United States of §1
million durmg each of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 None of the multiemployer plans m which the Company participates are

individually significant

Other Benefits

The Company accounts for benefits to former or inactive employees paid after employment but before reurement pursuant to FASB ASC 712 The ltabihiues ‘
for such U S and Buropean postemployment benefits were $29 mullion and $34 miilion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

15 INCOME TAXES

Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and Liabilities are determuned based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
habiliues and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that w1l be tn effect when the differences are expected to reverse

The compenents of incomte (loss) from conunuing operanons before mcome taxes consist of the following

Yesar Ended December 31

2013 2012 o
{Millions of Dollars)
Domestic 3 28 8 ©(103) $ (215)
Intemational 129 175
{ Total $ 157 % 140)
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Significant components of the {expense) benefit for mcome taxes are as follows

Year Ended
December 31
2013 012 2011
{Millions of Dollars)
| Fréa;aiﬂsiart:a;ld local - 5 3) 8 2) §
T oo L T T T e W
Total current (58) (49) (33)
Deferred.” - = ~7 .~ . % s o ; BT t?‘ﬁ’“'”‘f"" RN YR ?ﬂ
Federal, state and local a3)

Total deferred 2 78 17

T I Ty T ST Ty T
Fw&%wmﬁmﬁw&ﬂm%wwmm N T il oy i Seveoshstp s SOVR Shsida s 29SS cuns<(16)]

The reconciliation of income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to income tax (expense) benefit 1s

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 won
) (Multons of Dollars)
Income tax (expense} benefit at United Stales Statutory rte co-ir . oo o B0g cda (351 900y o, o 42 80 L <14
Tax effect from
[ Gondwill mpmrme b By T s R e T T T (o)
U S income mclustons from foreign subsidianes (5) (27) (33)
|~ NonZconsohdated'foréignaffihatess™ 3. 747 ~ . T pn % g oo« Ll S T w0y
Tax holidays, mcentives and mimmumn tax 14 9 13
! Fore?@frate \(ana'hée”faindﬁé;ﬁ"ct‘ed‘rsftekch"aﬁgfes AT R R o R T S B %
State imncome taxes 3) 1) (1)
[ Uncenam tax positions and assessments (14) 335" 25 ]
Valuation allowances (15 (327} 36
[ Other - < — g - T2
Income tax (expense) benefit 3 {56) % 29 % (16)

The followng table summarnizes the Company's total (provision) benefit for income taxes by component

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Millions of Dollars) -
Income tax (expense) benefit . 3 (36) % 29 % (16)]
Adjustments to goodwll — — 2
Allocated to equity _ ]
Postemployment benefits ) (83) (71 (37)
‘“- Denvatives . . I ) N L ~l_]
Foreign currency translanon {n %3] 4
T Valmwomallowsmees 1 29 = ®]
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Sigmificant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and habiliues are as follows

December 31
2013 2012
(Millions of Dotlars)
Deferredtax ax assets N ’ L i, T, g*xr&ge?:f:r o "5““41
Net op operating 1oss carryforwards 5 783 % 777
e Postemployment benefits, ncluding pensions -~ = .~ ScF T T TR L TS g e *%ﬁﬂ
Reorgamzation costs . 27
L Tdovemtory o o T TR T R U g TR 46]
Other temporary differences 98 94
Taxcredts - S i 126
Total deferred tax assets 1,387 1,508
{__>_Valuation allowances for deferred tax assetss + ~ * -0 0 = o GUISN R (1.293)
Net defcrred tax assets 236 285
[ =i f} e s»q::f;w, N if N i i@wgs« S ;f‘f ; B R “4:“%“ . ‘Ey“”?‘{i&% o, :,u“y P w1
Deferred tax llal:nlmcs
| InvestmentanUS subsidiares s R B 30T ¢ - {307y
Intangible assets (166) (199)
[ Fixed assets's . o L . 5o i L g e ) e e A9 e (30Y
Total deferred tax habilities (492) (536)
; g G = TR . LN A «; - o T -
5 (256) (251)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded 1n the consclidated balance sheets as follows
December 31
2013 2012
(Millions of Dollars)
'Assets !
Prepard expenses and other cuurent assets $ 0 3 42
[ Other noncurrent assets 87 95]
Liabilities
‘L_ Long-termn portion of deferred income taxes - (383) (388)
5 (256) $ (251)

The Company continues to maintain a valuation allowance related to its net deferred tax assets m multiple junsdictions As of December 31, 2013, the
Company had valuation allowances of $882 million related to tax loss and credit carryforwards The current and firture provision for income taxes may be
sigmificantly impacted by changes to valuation allowances 1n certan countries These allowances will be maintamned untel 1t 1s more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets will be realized The future provision for income taxes will include no tax benefit with respect to losses incurred and no tax expense with
respect to income generated in these countries until the respect:ve valuation allowance 1s eliminated Duning the current year the Company recordeda $15
mution valuation allowance on deferred tax assets that the Company believes are not more hikely than not to be realized in the foreseeable future

At December 31 2013, the Company had a deferred tax asset before valuation allowance of $923 mllion for tax loss carryforwards and tax eredits, including
$533 million in the United States with expiration dates from 2014 through 2033, 3200 milhion 1 the United Kingdom wath no expiration date and $190
mullion 1n other junsdictions with various expiratien dates
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Income taxes paid, net of income tax refunds received, were $38 milhon, $56 million and $43 mllien for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively

The Company did not record taxes on 1ts undistributed earnings of $824 mullion at December 31, 2013 since these earnings are considered by the Company to
be permanently reinvested. If at some future date these eamings cease to be permanently remnvested, the Company may be subject to United States income taxes

and fore:gn withholding taxes on such amounts Deterrmming the unrecogmized deferred tax iability on the potential distnbution of these earnings 1s not

practicable as such habihity, 1f any, 15 dependent on circumstances existing when remittance occurs

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had $761 mullion of cash and cash equivalents, of which $224 million was held by foreign subsidiaries In
accordance with FASB ASC 740-30-25-17 through 19, the Company asserts that these funds are indefimtely reinvested due to operational and investing needs
of the foreign locations Furthermore, the Company will accrue any applicable taxes in the penod when the Company no tonger intends to indefinttely remnvest
these funds The Company would expect that the umpact on cash taxes would be immatenal due to the availabality of net operation loss carryforwards and
related valuation allowances, earmings considered previously taxed, and applicable tax treaties

At December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company had total unrecogrized tax benefits of $78 mullion, $69 mullion and $375 mulhion, respectively Of
these totals, $47 rmullion, $39 million and $66 mullion, respecuively, represent the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that, 1if recognized, would affect the
effective income tax rates The total unrecogmzed tax benefits dsffer from the amounts which would affect the effective tax rates pnmanly due to the impact of
valuation allowances

A summary of the changes 1n the gross amount of unrecogruzed tax benefits for the ycars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are shown below

Year Ended December 31
2013 1012 2011

(Milhons of Dollars)
r o Ry E R A AR T Eigd ¥ i il P TR 2 TR
Change n unrecogmzed tax bénefifs; - ¥ T s F R %ﬁ. Y o s R \:ﬁf}%‘ﬁﬁ.&% S E

Balance at January 1 $ 69 § 375§ 399
[ - _Additions based ofitax positions related to the curtenbyear. | o b ¢ L B e S T T
Additions for tax positions of prior years 6 10 22
! . v Decreases fof tdx positdis of | fﬁz'x;cjg'}xehrs‘;&% LRt t 2 el e T e Ly maer 0 (O)S W - e (20)]
Decreases for statute of limitations expiration {1} (13} (8)
L Setlements® o T T T T Y T T e o e e PR T g R T an)
Impact of currency translation (1) (1) (3)
l Balance at Decerql‘)e‘réit%%"zg;“%u}.“ R ﬂf;“"j:ﬂ"?’ s A . o Bl TBE 0 69, $eP o Y 375

The Company classifies tax-related penalties and net interest as income tax expense As of December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded $23
million, $15 milhion and $13 million, respectively, v Liabilities for tax-related net interest and penalties on 1ts consolidated balance sheet Duning the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded tax expenses related to a net increase (decrease) in 1ts hability for mterest and penalties of $8
mullion, $2 million and $(3) mullion, respectively

The Company operates tn multiple junsdictions throughout the world The Company 15 no longer subjectto U § federal tax examinations for years before
2010 or state and local for years before 2008, with mited exceptions Furthermore, the Company 1s no longer subject to income tax examinations 1n major
foreign tax junisdictions for years prior 10 2005 The income tax returns of foreign subsidianies in vanous tax jurisdictions are currently under examination

The Company believes that 1t 1s reasonably possible that its unrecognized tax benefits 1n multiple junsdictions, which primanly relate to transfer pnicing,
corporate reorganization and vanous other matters, may decrease by approximately $25 million 1n the next 12 months due to audrt settlements or statute
expirations, of which approximately $5 mullion, 1f recogmized, could unpact the effective tax rate

On July 11, 2013, Federal-Mogul Corporation became part of the Icahn Enterpnises affiliated group of corporations as defined 1n Section 1504 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which Amenican Entertainment Properties Corp (“AEP”) 1s the common parent The Company
subscquently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement™) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the
Company have agreed to the allocation of certamn income tax items The Company will join AEP mn the filing of AEP’s federal consolidated return and certain
siate consohdated returns In those junsdictions where the Company 1s filing consclidated retumns with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax
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1t would have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 1s able to reduce 1ts tax liability as a result of including the
Company m 1ts consolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryforward for its own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the items that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits™) While a member of the AEP affibated group
the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, if the Company should ever become deconsolidated
from AEP, AEP will reimburse the Company for any tax liabihity m post-consolidatton years the Company would not have paid had 1t actually had the Excess
Tax Benefits for 1ts own use The cumulatve payments to the Company by AEP post-consohidation cannot exceed the cumulative reductions n tax to the AEP
group resulting from its use of the Excess Tax Bencfits Separate return methodelogy wilk be used 1n determmmng income taxes

16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Environmental Matters

The Company ts 2 defendant i lawsuuts filed, or the recipient of administrative orders 1ssued or demand letters received, 1 vanous jurisdictions pursuant to
the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (*CERCLA™) or other simlar national, provincial or state
environmental remedial laws These laws provide that responsible parties may be hable to pay for remediating contamination resulting from hazardous
substances that were discharged nto the environment by them, by prior owners or occupants of property they currently own ar operate, or by others to whom
they sent such substances for treatrment or other disposition at third party locations The Company has been notified by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, other national environmental agencies, and vanous provincial and state agencies that 1t may be a potennally responsible party (“PRP”)
under such laws for the cost of remediating hazardous substances pursuant to CERCLA and other national and state or provinctal envircnmental laws PRP
designation typically requires the funding of site mnvestigations and subsequent remedial activities

Many of the sites that are likely to be the costhest to remedsate are often current or former commercial waste disposal factlities to which numerous companies
sent wastes Despite the potential jomt and several liabihity which might be imposed on the Company under CERCLA and some of the other laws pertatning to
these sites, the Company’s share of the total waste sent to these sites has generally been small The Company believes 1ts exposure for liability at these sites 15
limuted

The Company has also identified certain other present and former properties at which it may be responsible for cleaning up or addressing environmental
contammation, in some cases as a result of contractual commitments and/or federal or state environmental laws The Company 1s actively seeking to resolve
these actual and potential statutory, regulatory and contractual obhigations Although difficult to quantify based on the complexity of the 1ssues, the Company
has accrued amounts corresponding te 1ts best estunate of the costs associated with such regulatory and contractual obligations on the basis of available

information from site investigations and best professional judgment of consultants ,

Total environmental habilities, determuned on an undiscounted basis are meluded m the consolrdated balance sheets as follows

Decermber 31, December 31,
2013 2012
{Millions of Dellars)
Other current hablities $ 5 8 6
:Other accrued Labilities (noncurrent) . . 9 f, _ﬂ
3 14 % 15

Management believes that recorded environmental Liabilities will be adequate to cover the Company’s estunated liability for 1ts exposure n respect to such
matters In the event that such habilities were to significantly exceed the amounts recorded by the Company, the Company's results of operations and financial
condition could be matenally affected At December 31, 2013, management estimates that reasonably possible matenal additional losses above and beyond
management’s best estimate of required remediation costs as recorded approxumate $44 muillion

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records asset retirement obhigations (“ARO™) mn accordance with FASB ASC 410 The Company’s primary ARO activiuies relate 10 the removal
of hazardous bulding matenals at 1ts faciliies The Company records an ARO at fair value upon imtizl recogruuon when the amount can be reasonably
estimated. typically upon the expectation that an operating site may be closed or sold ARO fair values are determined based on the Company’s determunation
of what a third party would charge to perform the remediation actrvities, generally using a present value technique
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

For those sites that the Company identifies 1n the future for closure or sale, or for which 1t otherwise believes 1t has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities to
a range of potential settlement dates, the Company will review these sites for both ARO and impairmient 1ssues

The Company has identified sites with contractual obligations and several sites that are closed or expected to be closed and sold In connection with these sites,
the Company mamtains ARO habihities in the consoldated balance sheets as follows

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
{Milicns of Dollars)
Other current habilitics b 4 3 3
Other accrued liabibites (noncurent) - - ' ) S S L2 a0 264
$ 26 % 25

The following 1s a rollforward of the Company’s ARO hablity for the two years ended December 31, 2013 (in malltons of dollars)

Liabilities incurred 9

L o Luabilitics settied/a adjustments. - ot G ST ’%sfm‘{ﬁ;w%@)

Balance at December 31, 201 2

e e T

26,1

The Company has conditional asset retirement obligations (‘*CARO"™)}, pnmanly related to removal costs of hazardous matenals 1n buldings, for which 1t
beheves reasonable cost estimates cannot be made at this time because the Company does not believe it has a reasonable basis to assign probabilities to a range

of potential settlement dates for these retirement obhigations Accordingly, the Company 1s cumrently unable to determne amounts to accrue for CARO at such
sites :

Affihate Pension Obligations

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock rights offering The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nghts offering increased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest in the Company by Mr Icahn’s
affiliates, the Company 1s subject to the pension liabilities of all entittes 1n which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% One
such entity, ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the minimum funding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2013 If the ACF plans were voluntanly terminated, they would be
underfunded by approximately $100 million as of December 31, 2013 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’
actuanes These habilities could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors, including fiuture changes 1n benefits, investment returns, and the
assumptions used to calculate the lability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be hable for any fallure of ACF 1o make ongoing pension
contributions or to pay the unfunded liabilities upon a terrmination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entities now or n the future within the
controlled group in which the Company 1s included may have pension plan oblhigations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
liable for any failure of such entities to make ongoing pension contnbutions or to pay the unfunded habihities upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of liens m favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation
(“PBGC") against the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requires it to notfy the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certamn extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The obligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the occurrence of such reportable events

lcahn Enterprises Holdings L P and [EH FM Heldings LLC have undertaken to indemnify Federal-Mogul for any and ali hability imposed upon the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation thereunder (“ERISA™) resulting from the
Company bemg considered a member of a controlied group within the meanmg of ERISA

- o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

§ 4001(a)(14) of which American Entertainment Properties Corporation 1s a member, except with respect to hability n respect to any employee benefit plan, as
defined by ERISA § 3(3), maimntained by the Company lcahn Enterpnses Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to masntain any specific
net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC will be able to fund its indemmification obhigations to the
Company

Other Matters

’

The Company 15 involved m other legal actions and claims, directly and through its subsidianes Management does not believe that the outcomes of these other
actions or claims are likely to have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows

17 CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS BY COMPONENT (NET OF TAX)

The following represents the Company’s changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss ("AOCL") by component for the year ended December 31, 2013

Foreign Guins and
Currency Losses on Past-
Translation Cash Flow employment
Adjustments Hedges Benefits Total
{Millions of Dallars)
Balance at Janwary 1, 20137779, " xS e UL N P o e 88 e (242)0 T 4y T Shaas e 584y § 7T (850))

O T Al A St I A T QA e e e e T e
{7 TOttr comprehensive (1035) 1ncome Before recl assCatons & oo 0. «0 a4 i {7 %*%agjf((ﬁ L, R AR T L 232

s

Amounts reclassified from AOCL . — 14 (14) _—
[ Tficome faXesty: BL o o dre s At e S e S R h B T P GO T, b e OV T (BN
Other comprehensive (loss) income (7) 8 223 224
ORI SRR S T 2o S o S T G T S S LN A e T S T O A R o A e
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ (249) % (16) § (361) § (626)
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18 RECLASSIFICATIONS OUT OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Items not reclassified 1n their entirety out of AOCL to net iicome for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows

Year Ended AfTected Line [tem 1n the
December 3} Statement Where Net Income
2013 is Presented
Losses on‘cash flow hedges?? G, 7 IalF 7o Fe TR e ol RS R
Interest rate swap contracts 5
N Conmwdltyfcontracts o B ik éﬁ?u»x £ ’%’w}iﬁ},ﬁ@v =03 ;goj’groduct%l@ﬁ%’%%mwm P B RER T ’ 'j
Total (14)
Wyﬁcﬁﬁé‘%ﬁzwg i ey e it ST " (1) Incomerta. expense) benefitston i Tose g ETET b Pl Ve ]
Net of tax (15)

Postemployment beneﬁts
i 4% Revognition of unamortized lossest!
Curtallment gat

Cost of products sold and Selling, general and admumistratve expenses
("SG&A")

[ ") Incorie 1axes s g o &%%rlncom)mxpxpense%eneﬁt e e A e
Net of tax
“)M'JS AN T 2 7 = T “!J&“‘i; %mw
LR R T e B P S e e
Tutal reclassifications
[tem 1 See Note 6, Financial Instruments, for additional information

19 WARRANTS

On December 27, 2607, the Company 1ssued 6,951,871 warrants to purchase 6,951,871 commeon shares of the Company at an exercise price equal to
$45 815, exercisable through December 27, 2014 Al of these warrants remain outstanding as of Decernber 31, 2013

20. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
CEQ Stock-Based Compensation Agreements

Effective March 31, 2012, Jose Mana Alapont retired as president and chief executive officer of the Company Mr Alapont’s retirement had no acceunting
impact on either the stock options or the deferred compensation agreement discussed below

On March 23, 2010, the Company entered into the Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, which extended Jose Maria Alapont’s employment
with the Company for three years Also on March 23, 2010, the Company amended and restated the Stock Option Agreement by and between the Company
and Mr Alapont dated as of February 15, 2008 (the “Restated Stock Option Agreement™) The Restated Stock Option Agreement removed Mr Alapont’s put
option to sell stock received from a stock option exercise to the Company for cash The Restated Stock Option Agreement provides for pay out of any exercise

of Mr Alapont’s stock options 1n stock or, at the election of the Company, 1n cash The awards were previously accounted for as ltability awards based on the
optional cash exercise feature, however the accounting tmpact associated with this modification 1s that the options are now considered an equity award as of

March 23, 2010 The Company revalued the 4,000,000 stock options granted 1o
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Mr Alapont at March 23, 2010, resulting in a revised fair value of $27 rmullion This amount was reclassified from “Other accrued lablines” to “Additional
paid-in capatal” due to their equity award status As these stock options were fully vested as of March 23, 2010, no further expense related to these options was
recogmzed subsequent to that date These opuions had an intnnsic value of zero as of December 21, 2011 These options expired on June 29, 2012

Mr Alapont’s Deferred Compensatton Agreement was also amended and restated on March 23, 2010 The amended and restated agreement included no

changes that impacted the accounting for this agreement Mr Alapont received his payout associated with this agreement of $9 7 mullion (500,000 shares of
stock muluplied by the March 23, 2¢10 stock price of $19 46) on October 3, 2012 The Company recogmzed $1 nullion i expense associated with
Mr Alapont’s Deferred Compensation Agreement duning cach year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively The Deferred Compensatton Agreement
had an intrinsic value of $9 7 mullion as of December 31, 2011

The Deferred Compensation Agreement fair value was estimated using the Monte Carlo valuation model with the following assumptions

December 31
m2
Exercise price of options conpected to deferred COMpPEnsalion, - wims s st 10 0 65 @ e i $¢ 5 1950 4, )
Expected valatlity 60%
e M A R S DN B e |

Risk-free rate over the estimated expected life
EXpicted ife (Mygars)oras 4 Jo o a v rAL ers L

Fair value (1n millions)

Far value of vested portion (m mithions) = -

For the noted valuanon, expected volatility 15 based on the average of five-year histoncal volatility and implied volatility for a group of comparable auto
industry companies as of the measurement date Rusk-free rate ts determined based upon U 8 Treasury rates over the esttmated expected option hves Expected
dividend yield 15 zero as the Company has not paid dividends to holders of its common stock m the recent past nor does 1t expect to do so mn the future
Expected option hives are primanly equal to one-half of the time between the measurement date and the end of the option term

Stock Appreciation Rights

A summary of the Company's stock appreciation nghts ("SARs") activity on an annual basis for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 1s as
follows

Weighted
Wesghted Average
Average HRematning Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intnpsic
SARs Price Lafe Value
(Thousands) (Years) (MiRioas)
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 401 § 17 16 |
Granted 1,043 2103
[ Exercised (34) 19 49 |
Forfeited 22) 20 18
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 1388 $ 19 96 39 § —]
Granted 809 17 64
[ Forfoted u 311 18 50 ]
Qutstanding at Decemnber 31, 2012 1,886 § 19 21 34 § —
[ Exercised. (182) 17 48 ]
Forfeited (445) 19 30
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 _m 1,259 S 19 43 24 8 1]
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 831 § 19 67 22 % 1l
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In February 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company granted approximately 809,000, 1,043,000 and 437,000 SARs, respectively, to certain employees The SARs
granted 1n February 2012 (2012 SARs™) and 1n February 2011 (*2011 SARs™) vested 25 0% on grant date and 25 0% on each of the next three anniversarics
of the grant date The SARs granted in February 2010 (“2010 SARs™) vest 33 3% on each of the three anniversanes of the grant date All SARs have a term of
five years from date of grant The SARs are payable in cash or, at the election of the Company, 1 stock As the Company anticipates paying out SARs
exercises In the form of cash, the SARs are beng treated as habhity awards for accounting purposes  The Company recogmized SARs expense of $5 million
and $1 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 The Company recognized SARs mcome of $4 miliion for the year ended December 31,
2012 The SARs fair values were estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
. 2012 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs 202 SARs 2011 SARs 2010 SARs
gy AR T B i ' ERprow = o T AT v T APTarT T Cx
Exeraiseprice ., Gre o s Sept 1764585 200D 5. 5017 1655 Se'. T 64 S8 21,034 $.4° 7L 17164

Expected volatility 56% 56%
Expected.dividend-yield i 4 : B, RN e
Expected forfeitures —% —% —% —% —% —%
Riskifree Tategyer the expociodnie 298 {0 AR5 0%
Expected hfe (1n years)
Fair valuc(in mijon

Fair value of vested portion (in mlhions)

Expected volatility 1s based on the average of five-year histonical volatility and umplied volatility for a group of comparable auto industry compames as of the
measurement date Risk-free rate 1s determined based upon U § Treasury rates over the esimated expected lives Expected dividend yield 1s zero as the
Company has not paid dividends to holders of its common stock 1n the recent past nor does 1t expect to do so n the future Expected forfeitures are zero as the
Company has no histonical expenience with SARs, the impact of forfeitures 1s recogmzed by the Company upoen occurrence Expected life 15 the average of the
tume until the award 1s fully vested and the end of the term

The Company recognized $2 million i expense duning the year ended December 31, 2011 associated with incentive compensation earned durmg that year that
was patd out through the granting of SARs m February 2012 The Company did not 1ssue SARs m February 2013
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21 INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denomunators of the basic and diluted income (loss) per common share

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

(In Mlllions of Dollars. Elcept Per Share Amounts)
Amounts attbuiable 0 Fedeml-Mogull ” , , *- © . chh.  pe s dieie b m dB . e ahians m e il
Net income (foss) from continuing operations hS 93 % (98) $ (63)
Loss from discontnted Operations; net of tax: . iz o & ot oo mobh - gon 1y Gib L b ari e L TR ;
Net income {loss) $ 41 3 (117 3 (50)

I3 Z.'."’ ,»z;,;x“’u.y/\ﬁ‘,x” SRR A A A :‘{:4 S . LW o L, F Y o .

L A L T e sl |
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic (in rullions) 123 4 98 9 98 9
Incremiental sharés 6n dssumed conversion of déferred compensation stock (10 millions)s oot v 47 00 = 7 Rl e e (5 L M T 5 )
Wexghted average shares outstanding, diluted (tn milhons) l23 4 99 4 99 4
L TR T %&3"% W I S o T ST T e TR METR R TR R T T E

Net income (loss) per share attnbutab]e to Federal Mogul - basu: and dllutcd

Net mcomeé (loss) omiicontiningroperationye o 7 Fy T LR R i ke () T 099Y. 8% < 7 (064),
g P A R T

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (0 42) {0 19) (0 27)

Netuncome (loss)= .~ ™ TUEETT AT S T AT T e g e e ey 7 @9D)]

The Company had losses for the years ended Decemnber 31,2012 and 2011 As a result, diluted loss per share 15 the same as bastc in those pertods, as any
potentially dilutive secunties would reduce the loss per share

Warrants to purchase 6,951,871 common shares were not included 1n the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was greater
than the average market price of the Company's common shares during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Opticns to purchase 4,000,000
common shares, which expired on June 29, 2012, were not included n the compwation of diluted eamings per share because the exercise price was greater
than the average market pnce of the Company’s common shares dunng the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The 500,000 common shares 1ssued in connection with the Deferred Compensation Agreement deseribed 1 Note 20 are excluded from the basic earnings per
share calculation as required by FASB ASC Topic 710, Compensation

22. THAILAND MANUFACTURING FACILITY FLOOD .

In October 2011, a flood occurred at the Company’s manufactuning facihty in Ayutthaya, Thalland This facihity was parhally submerged 1n the flood waters
for a penod of approximately six weeks, resulting in extensive damage to the facitity and the loss of substantially all of 11s related equipment and 1nventory
Operattons at the facility are currently suspended

In addition 1o other coverage the Company believes its msurance policies provide for replacement of demaged property sales value of destroyed inventory,

reimbursement for losses due to interruption of business operations, and reimbursement of expenditures incurred to restore operations In February and Apnl

2012, the Company received cash advances from its msurance cammer of $25 mullion and $5 mullion, respectively The Company 1s m liigation with the
applicable insurance carmer regarding recovery of additional insurance proceeds related to the flood
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The table below provides, by insurance coverage stream, the amount of insurance recoverable recorded as of December 31, 2011 (in mulhons of dollars)

Real and personal property

e T T Y T pERap T PR = e 33 e B o 3 5 P b
g_ - Properfy; plant and equipments; 7% LR N R XL, SR e e P e B e e R e S !3:33;
Inventory 6
ko ¥ L ANE N ES G TR B " T T P i o = i e B
Incremental costs incuired to Testore dperdtions, . " el < e N A T A I B N e SR IO
$ 21

The following table presents a ro{lforward of the msurance recoverable for the year ended December 31, 2012 (in muilhions of dollars)

lnsurance recoverable as of December 31, 201 2 21
", Cash advalice fromm nsurance carmer, o oF & 5y e T *‘”‘é?f T AP (36}}
Incremental costs mcurred to restore Dperatlons

13

Inisi

i

oSl Wl

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2014, the Company entered mto a defimtive purchase agreement to acquire certain business assets of the Honeywell automotive and industrial
brake friction business including two recently estabhished manufacturing facilities in Chuna and Romama for a base purchase price of approximately $155
mllion subject to post-closing adjustments and a potential eam-out payment of up to $5 mullion, 1n each case as further enumerated 1n the purchase agreement
This transaction 1s subject to customary approvals from regulatory authorities and other stakeholders where required The parties anticipate closing the
transaction during the second half of 2014

Also mn January 2014, the Company entered into a defimtive asset purchase agreement to acquure Affima‘s chassis components business for a base purchase
price of $150 mullion, subject to certain customary closing and post-closing adjustments as further enumerated 1n the asset purchase agreement This business
serves leading U S aftermarket customers with branded and private label chassis product hnes This transaction 1s subject to customary approvals from
regulatory authorities and other stakeholders where required The parties anticipate closing the transaction during the second half of 2014

24. OPERATIONS BY REPORTING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company operates with two end-customer focused business segments The Powertrain segment focuses on ornigmal equipment products for automotive,
heavy duty and industrial applications The Vehicle Components Soluttons segment sells and distnibutes a broad portfolio of products in the global
aftermarket, while also serving onginal equipment manufacturers with products ncluding braking, chassis, wipers and other vehicle components This
orgamizational model allows for a strong product Ine focus benefitting both onginal equipment and aftermarket customers and enables the global Federal-
Mogul teams to be respensive to customers’ needs for supenor products and to promote greater :dentification with Federal-Mogul premium brands
Additionatly, this orgamzational model enhances management focus to capitalize on opportumities for orgamc or acquisition growth, profit improvement,
resource utilization and business model optimization 1n hine with the unique requrements of the two different customer bases

The Company evaluates reporting segment performance principally on a non-GAAP Operational EBITDA basis Management believes that Operational
EBITDA provides supplemental nformation for management and mvestors to evaluate the operating performance of 1ts business Management uses and
believes that investors benefit from refernng to Operational EBITDA 1n assessing the Company’s operating resuits, as well as in planming, forecasting and
analyzing future pertods as this financial measure approximates the cash flow associated with the operational earnings of the Company Additionally,
Operational EBITDA presents measures of cotporate performance exclusive of capital structure and the methed by which assets were acquired and financed
Operational EBITDA, 15 defined as earnings from contimung operations before interest, income taxes, depreciaion and amortization, and certain 1tems such as
restructuring and impairment charges, Chapter 11 and U K Admimstration related reorganization expenses, gains or losses on the sales of busmesses, the
non-service cost components of the U § based funded pension plan, OPEB curtaiiment gamns or losses and the income statement 1mpacts associated with
stock appreciation rights

100




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Net sales

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
{Millzons of Dollars)
Powertrain & :m; T e S v pw AT Ea 3;;4. (EE s%vw 431737
Vehicle Components Solutions 2 935 2,853 2,985
Inter-scgment chmmations”, " _ ’/;%f?‘?i%?‘v BT s f&%ﬁé‘m Cr A aa R e (3A2) 2, ??Wﬁ%& i (397)
Total s 6.786 $ 6,444 $ 6,719

Cost of products sold

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollar!)
Rowert G L £ o bl e D e S 8 ) £ SREE)
Vehecle Components Solunons (2,432) (2 390) (2,462)

Intef-segrment-ehmmmatons oo, o7 /- o o s “5’:3?4@9:’2 e
Total Reportmg Segment

A e O W R W 4 7 i
Total Company 3 (5 766) § {5, 531) $ (5 640)

Gross margin

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Miihons of Dollars)
Powertrami (s, G200 o v TR g T T s S e S 17 8T ST A6 R 8 R A 56 |
Vehicle Components Solutions 503 463 523
l_“ _ Total Reporung Segment-  war” , < o'r dor 500 eeo o0 (T 10205 s T, 91082, ol 1,084
Corporate — (6) (5)
I ‘Total Company =~~~ ST e 10200 8. 9130 8 - 1,079
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Operational EBITDA and the reconciliation to net incomce {loss) were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(Milhons of Dollars)
Powertramn s ~° pngm o ordmo o Ccoeor oot o7 TR G T RIS o 2881 By onr. 425 )
Vehicle Components Solutions 209 200 254
| o TomlOperatonal BBITDAL & 1 1 s T 7 sgpoewwer o gqggr c o 6794

[tems requu'ed to reconcile Operatlonal EBITDA to net income (loss)

L ggs»%Deprec;atmnand amoh On P %mﬂ,%\ Nl TN R IR ,(294)w§r§;§ (285 %‘%’%ﬁ{izsﬁﬁ

Interest expense net (99) (128) {127)

{ ., 3. Disconhinued operatloﬁs}; Ry I SRR K ’2%’,;&% 52y ket o (19 :af«r’ s (7))

Restructurmg expense net (40) (26) {3)

R 2 S o s ()
(137)

S e TR

enté;asso ated wath 1) 8- based: funded unded pensiait/plar

Total assets, capital expenditures, and depreciation and amortization information by reporting segment is as set forth 1n the tables below Gooedwill was
assigned to reporting segments and reporting units based on individual reporting unit fair values over values attributed to spectfic intangible and tangible
assets Reporting umits are components of the Company's reporting segments {which are also its operating segments) and generally align with specific product
groups for which segment managers regularly review operating results

Deprecratton and

Total Assets Capital Expenditures Amortization
December 31 Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2013 1012z 2013 2012 2011 213 2012 2011
{Millions of Dollars}

Powertrain_ =, 7 5, 50 o b el sl §ET3RT GRS G00T S ) 376, Sr 278, § 4 2505 $.r KT8 § oo lbsi $-e. 1574
Vehicle Components Solutions 3,055 3,226 86 86 68 100 99 102
|77 Toml Reportiig Segmentin=: 17 TR T <0 Tk 6 428 e 6,3 T6 4 S 362 e, B 364 L O 327 BT TR b 9645 ¢« 250/
Corporate 754 516 13 16 14 1 6 21 21
Discontinued operations . ~~5” " -~ UV i 8 TR T 95580y o5 §UUSNT T @ el g $ TR Tl

Total Company $ 7182 S 6,927 $ 380 $ 387 § 348 § 296 § 289 5 234
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The following table shows geographic information

Net Sales Net PPE
Year Ended December 31 December 31
2013 22 2011 2613 22

' (Millioas of Dollars)
Unted Swates ™ *" 7 UL I T T e S s o U8 P3,5160 8 D AT90 3:73,460 8 359 8 554)

Germany 1,326 1,160 1,234 425 399

T - T o o = 7 e I i = =
France® . ° 3 S AT TN N i) UL land, PR ﬁs{f"-sgﬁ’%;;’;i% “365‘x%§ IR G P i gy < 4T 493 ’j
P E e - 4 21 Ly 2k 2 RN ey B B o D - o o e 8
China 36l 288 262 158 126

IV ARGaDeER ¥ ALY A AP S 4 e S il RSN Y T e T
MERICO. S, fo o g o e L e T T i s e L TR ATE T G 3 (gt e QO3 4 138 i b 122 4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

25 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents selected unaudited quarterly operating results of the Company for 2013 and 2012, and the audited results of the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

First Second Third Fourth Year

(Amounts 1n millions, except per share nmounts and stock prlces)

Year ended:December,31; 20]3 siait sosce b Ty e oo oF 5 e P o : % P g L,
Net sales 1, 659 S 1,744 3 1,690 § 1, 694 $ 6,786
T Y G T 2 PN ¥ , 9., e E%,W‘a~ 13 ﬁxu, 2ol
gL GFOSY marginie- = S ST e o S T e T R DAG S il D8 S T D85 T 3R ST 10200

A

{Arounts atrbutable (0.F cderal-Mogul

Net income (loss) per common share attnbutable to Federal-Mogul - basic and
diluted

e S
¢ 5o Net ncome. (f0ss) fromscong&ugéigpn ‘

R KG 5 ansmy 4 WW
Weighted avs, shares outstandung O8I T 08 9 TS0 T a0 0 w123 AY

shares outstandin, 98 9 7 1450

98 9

Ere
; q L R
] A S R

O B8 g 0301 17337 § 502170
$ 598 $ 434 $ 992 $ 1497

s

) S 5 35“"""' Mwm{* (K‘mi#q;'sz?;; E“ i e # A \a«‘i’m..s N -

DlVldend per share — — — —

* The Comparny’s results were impacted by the following

Quarter ended December 31, 2013 The Company recognized $20 milhion of restructuning expense and $15 mullion of tax expense related to an
establishment of a valuation allowance

-Quarter ended June 30, 2013 The Company recogmzed a $19 million OPEB curiailment gain




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Centinued

First Second Third Fourth Year
(Amounts in miltions, except per thare amounts and stock prices)
(Yearended December 31,2012 . -~ =~ v " S sTemt Sl LT WR LT ehy ﬁﬁi@%‘;f@ﬁﬁt e R g T T R
Net sales $ 1,714 § 1,645 § 1,545 § 1,540 $ 6,444

T

~ E& pare By SN " T ™ 2 \1‘&,,,.‘, £ 2% NS WO CF - PR I b 5 kS &
[ Grosssurgm. = - I R i s Y e N L e T O AR TEN

fAmounts atertbutable to FedembMogul'u:*‘ ; R A r. ngm RO “»&,;4 et »M.«* *’.‘mﬂ‘%‘* e el T ]
Net (loss) income from continuing aperations $ 32 S @n s (8) S {(75) § (98)
Loss from discontinued Gperations; netobtaxs, © = R e e LR SRR (5, C (19)]
Net (loss) income attributable to chcml-Mogul‘ 32 $ (59) $ (ayn 8 (80) % (117)

L R ‘ﬁ“%&? T %“-@%%* ,,fw oS % L ET é*:’“‘,‘” gi& i
Net {loss) income per common share attributable to Federal-Mogul - basnc
w.th‘(loss)fmcumc‘fmm CONNINUING OPErations & & x¢ & Soatr 0320, S8 o « $¥7.7 (008), $5.(076), S . (099)]
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — 012) 003) (0 05} (019}

[ " Net (loss) income atiributable to F‘%demi-Mogumw e 5 G PET AN SR S (0 60)o; SR (DILD) S H(0B1)E $- - (I'18)]
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3‘? }} &W(ﬁ%‘?}“{% f;azf‘fm‘é.tx e G i o j
Tie

&

Net (loss) income per comrmon share attributable o F"cdcr:’il—zhio*gﬂ‘ul":*’clrﬂutod? MR R e G e NN
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Net (loss) income atmbumble 10 Fedeml-Mogul‘ $ 032 % (0 60) S 011) $ ©s8l) $ (1 £8)
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'_S_____tockpnce . }iw‘js 2 - LA . Y/};‘% . F N ’ijr.: - j‘?r ;m:\‘ :c - y o L ) . ! }
High 1797 % 1720 % 179 3 10 18
[ Low : ) .

1480;

(-2 ]

996 % 867 § 690 i

o

[ Drividend per share s — —_ _— — |

* The Company’s results were impacted by the following

-Quarter ended December 31, 2012 The Company recogmzed adjustment of assets to faur value of $20 mullion, partially offset by $5 millton of tax
benefit

-Quarter ended September 30, 2012 The Company recognized adjustment of assets to fair value of $53 mullion, partially offset by $7 mullion of tax
benefit This net charge was more than offset by the Company's recogmtion of a $51 mulhon OPEB curtailment gain with no tax impact

-Quarter ended june 30, 2012 The Company recognized adjustment of assets to fair value of $112 million, partally offset by $5 mallion of tax benefit
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iTEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCL.OSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed m the Company’s penodic
Exchange Act reports 1s recorded, processed, summanzed and reported within the time penods specified 1n the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information 15 accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including nts Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropniate, to allow tmcly decistons regarding required disclosure

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system
are met Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relauve
to their costs Because of the inherent limitations 1n all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control 1ssues and
instances of fraud, 1f any, within the Company have been detected

As of December 31, 2013, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s managernent, including the Co-
Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures Based upen that evaluation, the Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures were effecuive as of December 31, 2013, at the reasonable assurance level previously descnbed

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company included within thus Form 10-K Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2013 The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm also attested to, and reported on, the Company's

Internal Control over Financial Reporting Management's report and the independent registered public accounting firm's report are included 1n Item 8 of this
Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company’s internal contrel over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31 2013 that has matenally affected
or 15 reasonably likely to matenally affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART IH

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The information required by Item 10 regarding our directors and other corporate governance matters 1s meorporated by reference to the Company’s proxy
statement for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors”, “*Corporate Governance™ and “Security Qwnership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ” The information required by Item 10 regarding the Company’s executive officers 1s set forth below The
information required by item 10 regarding comphance with section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 15 incorporated by reference
to the Company’s proxy statement for the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportig Comphance

Lt}

Daniel A Ninivaggt
Age 48

Rainer Jueckstock
Age 54

Scott Pepin
Age 46

Mr Ninivaggi jomed the Company as co-chief executive officer and chief executive officer of the Vehicle Components Solutrons
Segment 1n February 2014 Prior to joinmg the Company, Mr Nintvagg served as President of Icahn Enterpnises L P and 1ts
general partner, Icahr Enterprises G P Inc , since Aprik 2010, as its chief executive officer, since August 2010, and as a durector
since March 2012 Icahn Enterprises 1s a diversified holding company engaged 1n a variety of businesses, including investment,
automotive, cnergy, gaming, raifear, food packaging, metals, real estate and home fashion

From 2003 unti} July 2009, Mr Ninivagg: served in a vanety of executive positions at Lear Corporation, a global suppler of
automotive seating and electrical power management systems and components, including as General Counsel from 2003 through
2007, as Semor Vice President from 2004 until 2006, and most recently as Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative
Officer from 2006 10 2009 Lear Corporation filed for bankruptcy in July 2009 and emerged n November 2009 Prior to joining
Lear Corporation, from 1998 to 2003, Mr Ninivagg: was a partner with the law firm of Winston & Strawn LLP, specializing
corporate finance, mergers and acquisiions, and corporate governance Mr Ninivagg alse served as Of Counsel to Winston &
Strawn LLP from July 2009 to March 2010

Mr Ninivaggi has been a director of CVR Energy, Inc, an independent petroleum refiner and marketer of high value
transportation fuels, since May 2012, CVR GP, LLC, the general partner of CVR Partners LP, a mtrogen fertilizer company, since
May 2012, Viskase Companies, Inc , a meat casing company, since June 2011, XO Holdmngs, a competitive provider of telecom
services, since August 2010, and Federal-Mogul Corperation, a suppher of automotive powertramn and safety components, since
March 2010 From January 2011 to May 2012, Mr Nimivagg served as the Intenim Prestdent and Interim Chief Executive Offficer,
and since January 201 1, he has served as a director, of Tropicana Entertainment Inc , a company that 1s pnmanly engaged in the
busmess of ownng and operating casinos and resorts

Mr Nimvaggi was previously a director of Motorola Mobility Holdings, Inc , a provider of mobile communication devices, video
and data delivery solutions, from December 2010 to May 2012, and CIT Group Inc , a barkk holding company, from December
2009 to May 2011 .

CVR Energy, CVR Partners, Viskase Compames, XO Holdings, Federal-Mogul and Tropicana Entertainment are each indirectly
controlled by Mr Carl C Icahn Mr Icahn previously had interests in Motorola Mobility and CIT Group through the ownership of
securties

Mr Nuuvaggt recerved a B A 1n History from Columbia University 1 1986, a Masters of Busmess Admimstration from the
University of Chicago 1n 1988 and a JD from Stanford Law School 1n 1991

Mr Juecksrock has served as cochief executive officer and a direcror of the Company and chief execuuve officer for the Powertrain
Segment since Apnl 2012 Mr Jueckstock jeined the Company in 1990, and has served as semior vice president, Powertrain
Energy, senlor vice president, powertrain operations, senior vice president, pistons, nings and liners, vice president, rings and
lmmers, operations director, piston nings, Europe, and managing director of the Friedberg, Germany, operation He also was sales
director for nings and iiners, Eurape, finance controfler in Burscheid, Germany, and finance manager m Dresden, Germany Smce
February 2013, Mr Jueckstock also serves on the board of directors of PLEXUS Corp

Mr Pepin has setved as semor vice prestdent, Global Human Resources since Apnl 2012 Previously, Mr Pepin was vice
president, labor relations, and director of human resources, North America and Global Powertrain Energy Mr Pepin joined the
company m 1994, and had held several posttions of increasing responsibility He was also formerly senior director, Kellogg Nerth
Amenca, human resources and orgamizational development Pepin eamed a bachelor of arts degree in English and psychology from
the Umiversity of Western Ontane, London, Ontanoe, Canada, and a bachelor of commerce degree 1n business adminstration and a
master’s degree 1n business adrmmstration, both from The Umiversity of Windsor, Ontane Canada

o
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Brett D Pynnonen Mr Pynnonen has served as sentor vice president, general counsel, secretary and chief compliance officer since November 2010

Aged5 Mr Pynnonen joined the Company as associate general counsel and assistant secretary in 2007 Prior to joiming the Company, Mr
Pynnonen was vice president, general counsel and secretary for Covansys Corporation Prior to that, Mr Pynnonen was an
attorney for the law firm of Butzel Long in Detreit, MI

Jerome Rouguet Mr Rouquet has served as semior vice president, finance, Vehicle Component Solutions, and controller and chief accounting officer

Age 46 of the Company since December 2013 Previously, he was intenim Chief Financial Officer of the Company from August to
December 2013, vice president, controller and chuef accounting officer of the company since August 2010, and chuef financial
officer, Vehicle Component Solutions since July 2012 Mr Rouguet joined the Company n 1996 and held various finance
positions of increasing responsibility at regional and group levels across multiple product lines and business units, ultumately
serving as Finance Director, Vehicle Safety and Protection Mr Rouquet graduated in 1990 from the Institut Supeneur de Gestion
n Pans, France

Rajesh Shah Mr Shah has served as semor vice president and chief financial officer of the company since December 2013 Previously, Mr

Age 62 Shah served as executive vice president and chief financial officer at X-Rite, an industnal technology business Prior to that, he
held vanious executive-level positions in finance at compames such as Cadence Innovanon, LLC, Remy International, Inc , Collins
& Aikman, UT Automotive, Varnity Corporation, and Kelsey Hayes Group Mr Shah 1s a chartered accountant i both India and
Canada He earned a bachelor’s degree from Bombay University, Bombay (Mumbai} India, and a master's degree from Bowling
Green University, Bowling Green, Ohuo

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to compensation of exccutive officers and directors of the Company under the captions “Director Compensation”, “Compensation

Commuttee Interiocks and Insider Participation,” and “Compensation Discussion and Analysis™ 1n the Company’s proxy statement for the 2014 annual
meeting of stockholders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Annual Report

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Information under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” 1n the Company’s proxy statement for the 2014 annual
meeting of stockholders 15 incorporated heremn by reference and made a part of this Annual Report

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

Term Loan Backstop Commutment

The Company has $1,694 million of short-term debt as of December 31, 2013, of which $1,597 million relates to the tranche B term loan that matures on
December 27, 2014 On December 6, 2013, High River Limited Partnership (“High River”), an affihate of Mr Carl C Icahn and the Company’s largest
stockhaolder, provided a backstop commutment letter (the "Backstop Commutment") in favor of the Company with respect to 1ts exisung tranche B term
lcan The Backstop Commitment provides that 1f the Company 15 unable to refinance 1ts tranche B term loan on or prior to September 27, 2014, High Ruver or
an affiliate thereof wath at least the same net worth (the “Provider”) will provide loan financing of up to $1 6 billion to the Company and 1ts subsidianes on
arms-length terms to provide the funding necessary to repay the tranche B term loan The High River loan will be subject to negotiation and execution of
definiive documentation to be approved by the independent directors of the Company

Tax Allocation Agreement

On July 11, 2013, Federal-Mogul Cerporation became part of the Icahn Enterprises affihated group of corporations as defined i Section 1504 of the Intermal
Revenue Code of 1986 ("the Code"), as amended, of which American Entertainment Properties Corp (“AEP™) 1s the common parent The Company
subsequently entered into a Tax Allocation Agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement”) with AEP Pursuant to the Tax Allocation Agreement, AEP and the
Company have agreed to the allocation of certain income tax 1tems The Company will jomn AEP in the filing of AEP's federal consolidated retum and certain
state consohdated returns In those junisdictions where the Company 1s filing consolidated returns with AEP, the Company will pay to AEP any tax it would
have owed had 1t continued to file separately To the extent that the AEP consolidated group 15 able to reduce its tax hiability as a result of including the
Company w 1ts consolidated group, AEP will pay the Company an amount equal to 20% of such reduction and the Company will carryforward for 11s own
use under the Tax Allocation Agreement 80% of the ttems that caused the tax reduction (the “Excess Tax Benefits™) Wlule a member of the AEP affiliated group
the Company will reduce the amounts 1t would otherwise owe AEP by the Excess Tax Benefits Moreover, if the Company should ever become deconsohdated
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from AEP, AEP will rexmburse the Company for any tax hability in post-consohdation years the Company would not have paid had 1t actually had the Excess
Tax Benefits for 1ts own use The cumulative payments to the Company by AEP post-consolidation cannot exceed the cumulative reductions 1n tax to the AEP
group resulting from us use of the Excess Tax Benefits Separate return methodology will be used in determining income taxes

Insight Portfolio Group LLC (formally known as feahn Sourcing, LLC)

Icahn Sourcing, LLC (“Icahn Sourcing™) 1s an entity formed by Mr Icahn 1n order to maximize the potential buymg power of a group of entities with which
Mr Icahn has a relanonship in negotiahng with a wide range of suppliers of goods, services and tangible and intangible property at negotiated rates The
Company was a member of the buying group m 2012 Prior to December 31, 2012, the Company did not pay Icahn Sourcing any fees or other amounts with
respect to the buying group arrangement

In December, 2012, Icahn Sourcing advised the Company that effective January 1, 2013 1t would restructure 1ts ownership and change 1ts name to Insight
Portfolio Greup LLC (“Insight Portfalio Group™) [n connection with the restructuring, the Company acquired a mumanty equaty interest in Insight Portfolio
Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses in 2013 In additon to the minonty equity interest held by the Company,
certain subsidiaries of [cahn Enterpnses Holdings, including CVR, Tropicana, ARI, Viskase PSC Metals and WPH also acquired munonity equity nterests in
Insight Portfolio Group and agreed to pay a portion of Insight Portfolio Group’s operating expenses 1n 2013 A number of other entities with which Mr Icahn
has a relationship also acquired equity interests m Insight Portfolio Group and also agreed to pay certam operating expenses of Insight Portfolio Group's 1n
2013

The Company’s payments to Insight Portfolio Group were less than $0 5 million during 2013 The Company anticipates its 2014 payments to Insight
Portfolio Group to be simular to the amounts paid 1n 2013

Affilhate Pension Obligations

In July 2013 the Company completed a common stock rights offenng The purchases of shares of common stock 1n the nights offering increased the indirect
control of Mr Carl C Icahn to approximately 80 73% of the voting power As a result of the more than 80% ownership interest in the Company by Mr Icahn’s
affiliates, the Company 15 subject to the penston hiabilities of all entities m which Mr Icahn has a direct or indirect ownership interest of at least 80% One
such ennity, ACF Industnes LLC ("ACF"), 1s the sponsor of several pension plans All the minimum fimding requirements of the Code and the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 for these plans have been met as of December 31, 2013 If the ACF plans were voluntarily terminated, they would be
underfunded by approximately $160 million as of December 31, 2013 These results are based on the most recent information provided by the plans’
actuanies These hiabihities could increase or decrease, depending on a number of factors, including future changes m benefits, investment returns, and the
assumptions used to calculate the hability As members of the controlled group, the Company would be hable for any failure of ACF to make ongoing pension
contnbutions or to pay the unfunded liabilities upon a termination of the pension plans of ACF In addition, other entities now or 1n the future within the
controlled group in whuch the Company 1s included may have pension plan obligations that are, or may become, underfunded and the Company would be
Liable for any failure of such entities to make ongoing pension contrtbutions o to pay the unfunded liabilities upon termination of such plans Further, the
failure to pay these pension obligations when due may result in the creation of hiens n favor of the pension plan or the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corperation
(' PBGC™) aganst the assets of each member of the controlled group

The current underfunded status of the pension plans of ACF requires 1t to notify the PBGC of certain “reportable events,” such as 1f the Company ceases to be
a member of the ACF controlled group, or the Company makes certan extraordinary dividends or stock redemptions The ebligation to report could cause the
Company to seek to delay or reconsider the accurrence of such reportable events

Icahn Enterpnises Holdings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC have undertaken to indemmfy Federal-Mogul for any and all hhability imposed upan the
Company pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Secunity Act of 1974, as amended, or any regulation thereunder (“ERISA”) resulting from the
Company bemg considered a member of a controlled group within the meaning of ERISA § 4001(a)(14) of which Amencan Entertamment Properties
Corporation 1s a member, except with respect to hiability in respect to any employee benefit plan, as defined by ERISA § 3(3), maintained by the Company
Icahn Enterprises Holdmgs L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC are not required to maimtatn any specific net worth and there can be no guarantee Icahn
Enterpnises Heldings L P and IEH FM Holdings LLC will be able to fund its indemmification obligations to the Company

Additional Information

Addinional mformation required by Item 13 15 incorporated herem by reference to the Company’s proxy statement for the 2014 annual mecting of stockholders
under the captions “Director Independence and Controlled Company Status™ and “Certath Relanonships and Related-Party Transactions
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ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to the fees and services of the Company’s principal accountant under the caption “Fees of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm” 1n the Company’s proxy statement for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders 1s incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this Annual

Report
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of thus report
1. Financial Statements
Financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed under Part i1, [tem 8 hereof
2 Finanaal Statement Schedules
Schedule 11 — Valuanon and Qualifying Accoums
Financial Statements and Schedules Omtted .

Schedules other than the schedule listed above are onutted because they are not required or applicable under instructtons contained
n Regulation S-X or because the informauon called for 1s shown in the financial statements and notes thereto
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SCHEDULE IT — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Column A Column B Colummn C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
g
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deduchons Period
" {Millions of Dollars)
Year ended December 31,2013 7 T R T T T e L i L j
Valuauon allowance for trade recelvables 3 13 8 33 — 3) w $ 11
% S S ATy 2 "«: [ g e I A ricapr i T iy T e,
S e SRR gt S B B PR s TR S e © o BT B TR e
Year dcd December 31, 2012
WWW - y A o Eas s D s T
i@ Valitstionvallowance for trade receivables zés g faott Upoh RIS T 13l TRE g T onih gel B AL B BRI EY i, 0 LT niﬁ
5 = T T W v : g st TN A M G
Year ended Detembar 3152011 2, b T e L T ) T T e
Valuation allowance for trade recetrvables 3 13 5 3 $ — 3 (3y - § 13

4} Uncollectible accounts charged off net of recoveries
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15(b). Exhibits

The Company will furmsh upon request any of the following exhibits upon payment of the Company’s reasonable expenses for furmishing such exhibat
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21

31

32

41

42

101

102

103

104

10 5

106

107

108

109

10 10
10 11
1012
1013

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 11, 2007 between Federal-Mogul Corporation and New F‘ederal-Mogul Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 | to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 11, 2007 )

The Company's Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhubit 3 1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 28, 2008 )

The Company’s Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 2 to the Company’s Cuwrrent Report on Form 8-
K dated July 28, 2008 )

Federal-Mogul U S Asbestos Personal Injury Trust Agreement by and among the Company, the Future Claimants Representative, the Official
Commuttee of Asbestos Claimants, the Trustees, Wilmington Trust Company, and the members of the Trust Advisory Commuttee, dated as of
December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 | to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

Registrauon Rights Agreement dated as of December 27, 2007 by and among the company, Thomwood Associates Limited Partnership and the
Federa!-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury Trust (Incorporated by reference to Exhuibir 4 5 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 27, 2007 )

Warrant Agreement by and between the Company and Melion Investor Services LLC, dated December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement by and among the Company, as Borrower, the Lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc , as
Admimustrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Syndication Agent dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4 11 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 }

Tranche A Term Loan Agreement by and among the Company, as Borrower, the several lenders from time to ime parties thereto, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Admirustrative Agent, dated as of December 27, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Extubit 4 12 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

Indenture by and among the Company, Guarantors theremn and U S Bank National Association, dated as of December 27, 2007 {Incorporated
by reference to Exlubit 4 13 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

$140 Milhion Loan Agreement by and between the Company and the Federal-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury Trust, dated as of December 27,
2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 14 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

$125 Million Loan Agreement by and between the Company and the Federal-Mogul Asbestos Personal Injury Trust, dated as of December 27,
20607 (Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4 15 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 27, 2007 )

Federal-Mogul Corporation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by Reference 1o Extubit 10 § to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-
K dated May 26, 2010) 1

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (Incorporated by Reference to Extubit 10 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
May 26, 2010)

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Rainer Jueckstock dated as of Apnil 1, 2012 (Incorporated by Reference to Extubnt
10 2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion on March 14, 2012)

Federal-Mogul 2013 VCS Management Incentive Plan (MIP) 4
Federal-Mogul 2013 Powertrain Management Incentive Plan (MIP)
Federal-Mogul 2013 Corporate Management Incentive Plan (MIP} 1

Replacement Revolving Facility dated December 6, 2013, which 18 an amendment of the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as
of December 27, 2007, among the Company, the lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA Inc , as Admimstrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N A, as Syndication Agent, and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, as Co-Decumentation Agents, to
amend 1ts existing revolving credit facility to provide for a replacement revolving credit facality (Incorporated by Reference to Eximbit 10 1 to the

Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6, 2013 and filed with the Secunities and Exchange Commussion on December 9,

2013)

114 -




1014

* 1015
10 16

* 1017

* 231
* 232
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* 101

Backstop Commutment Letter, dated December 6, 2013, by High River Limuted Partnership 1n favor of the Company (Incorporated by
Reference to Exhubit 10 2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6, 2G1 3 and filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commussion on December 9, 2013)

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Rajesh K Shah dated as of December 9, 2013 {

Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Damel A Ninivagg dated as of February 5, 2014 {Incorporated by Reference to
Exhibit 10 2 1o the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 4, 2104 and filed with the Secunities and Exchange Commssion on
February 10, 2014) {

Federal-Mogul Corporation 2010 Stock incentive Plan 2014-15 EVA Award Agreement - Powertrain Segment
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Pubhic Accounting Firm < Grant Thomton LLP

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm - Emst & Young LLP

Powers of Attorney

Cerufication by the Cempany’s Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company's Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14

Certification by the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U S C Section 1350 and Rule 13a-
14(b)

Fmancial statements from the annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 24, 2014, formatted 1n XBRL (1) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (11) the Consohidated Staternents of Comprehensive
{Loss) Income, (111) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (1v) the Conschdated Statements of Cash Flows (v) the Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders” Equity and (v1) the Notes to the Consohidated Financiat Statements filed herewith

* Filed Herewith
t Management contracts and compensatory plans or arrangements

15(c) Separate financial statements of affiliates whose securities are pledged as collateral.

None

115




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorzed.

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION

By /sf Rajesh Shah
Rajesh Shah
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated February 24, 2014
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persans on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

fs/ Damel A Nuuvagg) Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Corporation Chief February 24, 2014
Daniel A Ninnvagg Executive Officer, Vehicle Components Solutions Dyvision,
Director
/s/ Rainer Jueckstock Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Corporation Chief February 24, 2014
Rauner Jueckstock Executive Officer, Vehicle Powertrain Division, Director
/s/ Rajesh Shah Semor Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal February 24, 2014
Rajesh Shah Financial Officer)
/s/ Jerome Rouquet Sentor Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting February 24, 2014
. Jerdme Rouquet Officer)
s/ Carl C Icahn Ditector February 24, 2014
Carl C Icahn
* Director February 24, 2014
George Feldenkreis
/s/ SungHwan Cho Director February 24, 2014
SungHwan Cho
/s/ Hunter C Gary Duirector February 24, 2014
Hunter C Gary
* Director February 24, 2014
J Michael Laisure
* Director February 24, 2014
Neil § Subin
* Director February 24, 2014

James H Vandenberghe

*By /s/ Brett D Pvnnonen
(Brett D Pynnonen, Attomey-in-fact)
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December 9, 2013

Personal & Confidential

Mr Rajesh K Shah

LR R R L]
o ek

Dear Rajesh
This letter 1s intended to update, clanfy and supersede your offer letter of November 26, 2013

I am pleased to offer you the opportumty to join us as Senior Vice President, and Chief Financial Officer at a bi-weekly salary of $15,384 62
(annualized at $400,000) This position will report directly to Ramer Jueckstock, Chief Executive Officer, Powertrain and Kevin Freeland, Chief
Executive Officer, Vehicle Component Systems (VCS), and 1s based in our Southfield, Michigan World Headquarters

Dunng the term of your employment, you will participate 1n the annual Management Incentive Plan (MIP), with a target bonus of 70% of base salary,
n accordance with the terms of the plan Payments under this plan are granted at the discrenon of the Board of Directors based on factors that include
both Company financial and individual performance Bonus payments are usualty made in the first quarter of the following calendar year The payout
range 15 between 0 and 175% of Target, depending on performance To be eligible for a bonus payment, you must be an active employee on the date
the bonus 1s pard For the fiscal year 2014, you will be awarded a mmimum MIP payout of $125,000 to be paid at the normal ume MIP payouts are
made All your compensation 1s subject to deductions as required by law

You will be ehgible to participate in the Company’'s benefit plans subject to such plans’ terms In addition, you will receive the following perquisites

Welcome Bonus You will recerve a sign-on bonus of $25,000 (gross) with the first payday following your start date
Automobile Allowance: Equivalent to 4% of base
Umbrella Personal Liability Coverage: You will be covered by a personal hability policy for up to $5 milhon
Tax Preparation: You will be ehigible for a tax preparation reimbursement allowance of up to $3,200
Vacation. You are eligible for 20 vacation days 1n 2014 and per year thereafter
Strategic Incentive Program- Rajesh, you will be eligible to benefit from a Strategic Incentive Program (SIP) scheme, 1n lieu of LTIP
eligibiity, that will be tied directly to F-M’s financial and strategic performarce versus established targets for the 2014, 2015 and 2016
calendar years The total payout for thus SIP 1s capped at $400,000 and the planned payout would be scheduled for March, 2017 but 1s
subject 1o the following schedule

*  If employment penod 1s 3 years (or greater), funding available and subject to performance evaluation equals $400,000

o If employment period 18 less than 3 years, but more than 2 years, finding available and subject to performance evaluation

equals 2/3rds of $400,000
< If employment pertod 15 less than 2 years but more than 1 year, funding available and subject to performance evaluation

equals 1/3rd of $400,000
o Ifemployment 1s termmated prior to | year, Mr Shah would not be ¢ligible for payment




Rayesh, as a cendition to your employment with the Company, you must first clear the Company’s drug test and sign the attached Confidentiality
Agreement In addition, this offer 1s contingent upon receipt of a completed and signed employment application, and sausfactory background
investigation and reference check A Company representative will contact you shortly regarding the drug testing process

In addition, dunng and after your employment you shall not disclose to any thurd party any confidential or proprietary information of the Company,
any of its affiliates or subsidhanes, or any of thewr respective owners, members, directors, managers, and employees  You further agree that dunng
and after your employment you will not disparage, verbally or 10 writing, anyone n the Company or any of its affiliates or subsidianes, mcluding any
of their respective owners, members, directors, managers, or employees, and thewr famuly members

Rayesh, the following provisions apply to your Federal-Mogul employment

1

5

Your employment s at will and may be termunated with or without Cause, and with or without natice, by you or by the Company at any time

The term of your employment 1s 24 menths  Your employment may be extended for an additional 12 months upon a2 mutual wntten agreement
between you and the Company

If the Company terminates your employment without Cause, then you are entitled to the following separation payment, provided that you sign
a release of all claims against the Company and its employees and affihates, in a form approved by the Company

(a) Ifthe Company terminates your employment without Cause dunng the first 24 months of your employment, then you will
receive a separation payment that 1s the lesser of either

(1} your base salary for the remamder of the 24-month employment term, or

(2} six months of your base salary

(b) Alternatively, if your employment has been extended beyond the 24-month employment term, and the Company tenmnates
your employment without Cause dunng the 12-month extension period, then you will receive a separation payment equal to six months of
your base salary

If your employment ends for any reason other than your termination by the Company withour Cause - including, but not limited to, your
termunation for Cause, your termination due to death or disabihity, your own voluntary termination of your employment, or the end

of the 24-month employment term, or the 12-month extension term, without a wnitten extension - then the Company shall provide
you only with your base salary and benefits to the date of termination

The term “Cause” as used herein means the occurrence of any of the following events (1) commussion of a felony, (1) the commussion of
an act of, or omusston of an act that would constitute, willful and material malfeasance or gross negligence in the performance of duties on
behalf of the Company, (111) your breach of any materal term or condition of this Letter Agreement, (1v) the commussion of a willful act of
matenal fraud, dishonest, nusconduct, or nusrepresentation, (v) any incident matenally compromising your reputation or ability to represent
the Company with the public, or {vi} the farlure to substantially perform your job duties to the reasonable satisfaction of the Company's Chief
Executive Officer

Termination of any kind will not relieve you from fulfilling the obligations of the Confidentiality Agreement

Naturally, we will be happy to provide additional information and answer any questions you may have about any aspect of this offer

Rajesh, we believe this 1s a sigmficant opportunity that you will find rewarding and in which you can make a substantial contribution to meeting the
chailenges of the F-M organszatron
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Best regards,

Scott Pepin
Semor Vice President, Human Resources and EH&S

[ accept and agree to these conditions of employment this ___ day of 2013

Sign




Certain information contamed 1n this Exhibit has been redacted pursuaat to & request for confidential treatment fited by Federal-Mogul Corpuration
with the Secunties Exchange Commussion pursuant to rule 24b-2 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934  Information for which
confidential treatment has been requested has been replaced with astenisks

FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION
2010 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

2014-15 EFVA AWARD AGREEMENT - Powertrain Segment

Name: | ] (the “Participant”)

Pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions of the Federal-Mogul Corperation 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended from
time to time (the “Plan”), this award agreement (**Agreement”) evidences the 13suance to the Participant by Federal-Mogul
Comporation (the “Company™), effective as of the grant date set forth below, of a performance-based economic value added award
(the “Award™) The nghts conferred by this Agreement shall be deemed for all purposes a to be a “performance umit” under the
Plan Any term capitalized herein but not defined will have the meaning set forth n the Plan

1 Grang Date The grant date for the Award 1s | i, 2013
1 Performance Penod The Performance Period for the Award shall be the two-year peniod commencing on January 1, 2014 and
ending on December 31, 2015
3 Vesting The Award shall vest 100% on the last day of the Performance Penod, subject to the Participant’s continuous
employment throughout the Performance Period
4 Award Value Participant’s Award shall be valued based on the Award Percentage multiplied by the PT Bonus Pool Subject to the
provisions wn Section 7 hereof, the Participant’s Award Percentage 1s equal to [ 1%
(@ “PT Bonus Pool” means 3 0% of Economic Profit generated by the Powertrain Segment duning the Performance Penod
The PT Bonus Pool cannot be less than $0 and may not exceed $6,700,000 with respect to the Performance Penod
(t) “Economic Profit” means, with respect to the Powertrain Segment of the Company, EBIT of the Powertrain Segment
less the Capital Charge Ecopomuic Profit shall be calculated quarterly during the Performance Period
(c) “EBIT” means, for any fiscal quarter, the Powertrain Segment’s consohdated net income determined 1n accordance with
GAAP before the foliowing
1 nterest income and expense,
u provision for mmcome taxes (ncluding tax shanng payments),
m legacy defined benefit expenses,
v OPEB curtailment gains or losses,
v expenses associated with factoring of receivables, and
vi gains and losses on the sale of a business
EBIT shall be calculated quarterly durtng the Performance Period Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 1n the
foregong, the Compensation Commttee of the Company’s Board of Directors (“Compensation Commuttee™) shall, subject to the
terms of the Plan, adjust the calculation of EBIT for events or actions duning the course of the Performance Period that are
extraordinary and/or non-recurnng (including but not hmited to goodwill impairments or legacy costs)
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(d)

(e)

(0

“Capital Charge” means, for any fiscal quarter, Average Working Assets multiplied by the annual rate specified below
Capnital Charge shall be calculated quarterly duning the Performance Period

1 Fiscal 2014 *** percent (***%) (1 e , ***% each fiscal quarter)
u Fiscal 2015 *** percent (***%) (1 e, ***% each fiscal quarter)

“Average Working Assets” means, for any fiscal quarter, the average of (1) Working Assets as of the last day of such
quarter and (1) Working Assets as of the last day of the immediately preceding quarter Average Working Assets shall be
calculated quarterly durning the Performance Penod

“Working Assets” means, for any fiscal quarter, the following items for the Powertrain Segment as of the last day of
such quarter (1n each case determuined 1n accordance with GAAP)

1 accounts recetvable, plus

u factored recervables that would not have otherwise been paid duning the fiscal quarter, plus

i net inventory, plus

w  property, plant and equipment net of depreciation (1 ¢ net book value), plus

v goodwill and other intangible assets related to acquisitions or nvestments completed on or after {September 30],
2013, plus

v1 nvestments in non-consohidated subsidianes (excluding $100 million consisting primanly of retamed earnings

established before January 1, 2014), less

vn accounts payable, less

v accrued lLiabilittes (other than accruals for short term taxes or short term interest)

Working Assets shall be calculated quarterly during the Performance Penod The Participant and the Company

acknowledge and agree that Working Assets for the fiscal quarter of the Powertrain Segment ended September 30,

2013 was $*** Notwithstanding anything to the contrary n the foregomng (A) Working Assets shall be

determined without giving effect to any gains and losses on the sale of a business, and (B) the Compensation

Commuittee shall, subject to the terms of the Plan, adjust the calculation of Working Assets for events or actions

dunng the course of the Performance Period that are extraordinary and/or non-recurning (incltuding but not himited

to goodwill impairments)

Form and Timing of Payment Except as heremnafter provided, after the end of the Performance Period, the Participant shall be
entitled to receive a payment equal to the value of the Award, 1f any, 1n a lump sum m cash Payment of such amount shall be
made as soon as administratively practicable after the later of (1) the filing of the Company’s 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K
(or any successor filing) and (11) the Economic Profit results are calculated and certified by the Compensation Commuttee
followmg the end of the Performance Penod, but 1n no event later than March 15, 2016

Termmnation of Employment Subject to the forfeiture and clawback provisions containted in Section 15 of the Plan, the
Participant’s right to receive the Award after the Participant’s Termunation of Employment within the Performance Period will be
only as follows

(a)

l'epmunation by the Company other than due to a Breach of Conduct If the Participant mcurs an mvoluntary Termination

of Employment by the Company other than due to a Breach of Conduct prior to the end of the Performance Period,
subject ta the provisions of Section 7 hereof, the Participant shall have the nght to receive a payment 1n a fump sum
cash equal to (1) the value of the Award, if any, multuplied by (11} a fraction, {A) the
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numerator of which 1s equal to the number of days the Participant was employed during the Performance Period and (B)
the denomunator of which 1s equal to the total number of days tn the Performance Period. The payment of such amount,
if any, shall be made 1n accordance with Section 5

(b) Other Termination Unless otherwise determined by the Comrmuttee, 1f the Participant incurs a Termuination of
Employment within the Performance Peniod for any reason other than as described 1n Section 6(a), then the Award shall
thereupon immediately terminate and be forfeited by the Participant

Change in Control and Powertrain Segiment Change of Control Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, 1f the
Partictpant 1s employed by the Company immedately prior to a Change 1n Control Event that occurs during the Performance
Penod, to the extent that the Participant becomes entitled to a payment pursuant to Sectton 5 or Section 6 hereof, such payment
shall not be less than the Change in Control Amount
(a} “Change 1n Control Event” means a Change 1n Control as defined 1n the Plan and/or a Powertrain Segment Change of
Control
(b) “Powertrain Segment Change of Control” shall mean a transaction by which all or substanually all of the assets of the
Powertrain Segment (or the secunties of the entities holding such assets) are sold to a third party who 1s not Affihated
with the Company 1n a private sale (including such transactions that occur following a Spin-Off Transaction or a public
offening of the secunties of the Powertrain Segment}, but 1n no event shall such term be utilized to refer to a Spin-Off
Transaction, a public offering of the secunities of the Powertrain Segment or any other transaction that would not satisfy
the definition of a “change 1n control event” as defined in Code Section 409A and the regulations and other official
gwdance 1ssued thereunder For the avoidance of doubt, a “Powertrain Segment Change of Control” shall in no event
include any transaction if, immedsately following consummation thereof, Carl Icahn and/or the Related Parties are the
Beneficial Owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the Voting Stock of the Powertrain Segment
t “Powertrain Segment” means the powertrain operating segment of the Company (or any successor operating
segment)
1 “Affiliate” shall have the meaning set forth in Rule 405 of Regulation C of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended
m “Spm-Off Transaction” means any transaction by which (1) the Powertrain Segment (or all or substantially all
of the assets of the Powertram Segment or the secunties of the entities holding such assets) 1s distributed to the
securtty holders of the Company or (11) the assets compnising all or substantially all of the Powertramn Segment
(or the securities of the entities holding such assets) are otherwise reorgamzed or restructured in a manner
similar to the foregoing
{¢) “Change in Control Amount” means an amount equal to the value of the Award calculated 1n accordance with Section 4
hereof, but determined as 1f the Performance Period ended on the Change m Control Date
{d) “Change n Contrel Date” means the date wpon which a Change 1 Control Event 18 consummated
Withholding The Company shall have the nght to retamn any amounts that are distributable to the Participant hereunder to the
extent necessary to satisfy the mmmumum required withholding taxes, whether federal, state, local or foreign, tniggered by the
payment of any amounts hereunder
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Transferabiity of the Award The Award 1s transferable only by will or the laws of descent and distribution, or pursuant to a
domestic relations order (as defined in the Code or Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or the rules thereunder)

No Limitation on Rights of the Company The grant of the Award will not in any way affect the right or power of the Company 1o
make adjustments, reclassification or changes 1n its capital or busimess structure, or to merge, consolidate, dissolve, liquidate, sell
or transfer all or any part of 1ts business or assets

Plan and Agreement Not a Contract of Employment Nesther the Plan nor this Agreement 15 a contract of employment, and no
terms of employment of the Participant will be affected in any way by the Plan, this Agreement or related instruments except as
specifically provided therein Neither the establishment of the Plan nor this Agreement will be construed as conferring any legal
nights upon the Participant for a continuation of employment, nor will it interfere with the nght of the Company or any subsidiary
or Affiliate to discharge the Participant and to treat him or her without regard to the effect that treatment might have upon him or
her as the Participant

Notice Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder must be in writing and must be delivered personally,
or sent by certified, registered or express mail, postage prepaid Any such notice will be deemed given when so delivered
personally or, 1f mailed, seven days after the date of deposit 1n the United States mauil, in the case of the Company to the
Company's U § corporate headquarters (as reflected on the Company’s corporate website), Attention General Counsel, and, m
the case of the Participant, to the last known address of the Participant in the Company’s or Subsidiary’s records

Entire Agreement, Governing Law The Plan 1s incorporated herein by reference The Plan and this Agreement constitute the
entire agreement of the parties wath respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede 1n their entirety all pnor undertakings and
agreements of the Company and the Participant with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be modified (except as
provided herein and in the Plan) adversely to the Participant except by means of a wntten document signed by the Company and
the Participant This Agreement and the Award will be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of
the State of Delaware, determuned without regard to its conflict of laws rules

Plan Controls The nghts granted under this Agreement are 1n all respects subject to the provisions of the Plan to the same extent
and with the same effect as 1f they were set forth fully herein If the terms of this document conflict with the terms of the Plan,
the Plan wili control

Participant’s Acknowledgement The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and represents that he or she 1s
fammhar with the terms and provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Agreement subject to all of the terms and provisions
thereof The Participant has reviewed the Plan and tlus Agreement m their entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of
counsel prior to executing thus Apreement and fully understands the provisions of the Agreement The Participant hereby agrees
to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the Compensation Commuttee upon any questions
ansing under the Plan or this Agreement The Participant further agrees to notify the Company upon any change 1n his or her
residence address A facsimile or photocopy of an executed counterpart of this Agreement shall be sufficient to bind the party or
parties whose signature(s) appear thereon




Exhibit 21
FEDERAL-MOGUL CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES

The direct and indirect operating subsidianes of the Company and their respective States or other junisdictions of incorporation as of December 31, 2013 are as
follows

Percentage of Voting Stock
Owned Directly and Indirectly

by
Name of Subsidiaries Country Federal-Mogul
Federal Mogul Argentina SA Argentna %6 3%
Federal-Mogul Plasticos Puntanes, S A Argentina 96 3%
Federal-Mogul Pty Ltd Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Automotive Pty Lid Australia 100 0%
Federal-Mogul S A Belgium 100 0%
Federal-Mogul EMEA Distribution Services, BVBA Belgum 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Global Afiermarket EMEA BVBA Belgium 100 (%
Coventry Assurance Ltd Bermuda 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Industna de Autopecas Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Sistemas Automotivos Lida Brazil 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Canada Limuted Canada 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Changshu} Automotive Parts Co  Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Dahan) Co , Ltd. China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (Shanghar) Automotive Parts Co  Ltd China T 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Dongsuh (Qingdao) Pastons Co , Ltd China 75 5%
Federal-Mogul Fnction Products Co Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul (China) Co Lid China 100 0%
Federal-Moegul Qingdao Automotive Parts Co , L1d China 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Qungdaos Pistons Co Ltd China 6l 5%
Federal-Mogul Scaling System (Nanchang) Co , Ltd China 100 0%
Federal-Mogu! Shanghai Beanngs Co , Lid China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Shanghai Compound Material Co, Lid. China 60 0%
Federal-Mogul Zhengsheng (Changsha) Piston Ring Co , LTD China 95 0%
Federal-Mogul Fnction Products A S Czech Rep 100 0%
Federal-Mogu! Aftermarket Egypt LTD Egypt 100 0%
Federal Mogul Aftermarket France SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Financial Services SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Friction Products SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Igmtion Products SAS France 100 094
Federal-Mogul [gmition SAS France 100 (%
Federal Mogul Operations France 5AS France 100 (%
Federal-Mogul Sealing System SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Services Sarl France 100 0% .
Federal-Mogul Systems Protection SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul SAS France 100 0%
Saxid SAS France 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Aflermarket GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Automouve Verwalhungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Betnebsgrundstiicke Burscheid GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Burscheid Beteihgungs GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Burscheid GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Deva GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Fnction Products GmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Fricdberg GrmbH Germany 100 0%
Federal-Mogul Holding Deutschland GmbH Germany 100 0%

Federal-Mogul igmuon GmbH Germany 100 0%




Federal-Mogu!| Nurenberg GmbH

Federal-Mogul Poweririn Russiza GmbH
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Bretten GmbH
Federal-Mogul Seahing Systems GmbH
Federal-Mogul TP Europe Gmbh & Co KG
Federal-Mogul TP Piston Rings GmbH
Federal-Mogul Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Verwaltungs und Beteiigungs GmbH
Federal-Mogul Whiesbaden GmbH

Goetze Wohnungsbau GmbH

Platin 966 GmbH

Weyburn-Barte] GmbH

Curzon Insurance Limited

Federal-Mogul {T&N) Hong Kong Limited
Federal-Mogul Werld Trade {Asia) Limuted
Federal-Mogu! Hungary Kft

Federal Mogul Wipers Hungary Kft

Federal-Mogul Automotive Products (India) Private Limuted
Federal-Mopul Beantig India Limited
Federal-Mogul Goetze {India) Limuted.
Federal-Mogul PTSB India Private Luruted
Federal-Mogul TPR (India) Limited

Federal-Mogul VSP (India) Limited

Federal-Mogul Italy Sl

Saxids ri

Federal Mogul Japan K K.

Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Holding Korea, Ltd
KFM Bearmg Co , Lid

KFM lnnovative Technology Company Limited
Federal-Mogul Luxembourg S a r |
Federal-Mogul Holdings, L1d

F-M Holding Mexico, S A 'de C V
Federal-Mogul de Mexico, S A de CV
Federal-Mogul SA deCV

McCord Payen de Mexico S de R L

Rammsa, SA deCV

Servicios Admimistrauvos Industnales, § A
Servicio de Componentes Automotrnices, S A de C A
Subensambles Internacionales, S A de SV

T&N de Mexico Sde R L

Federal-Mogul Systems Protection Moroceo SARL AU
Cooperatief Federal-Mogul Dutch investments B A
Federal-Mogul Investments B V

Federal-Mogul VCS Holdng B V

Federal-Mogul Bimet Spolka Akcyjna
Federal-Mogul Gorzyce S A

Federal-Mogul Powertrain Vostak OGO
Federal-Mogul VCS QCO

Federal-Mogul Singapore Invesiments Pte Lid
Federal Mogul of Seuth Affica (Pty) Ltd
Federal-Mogul Aftermarket Espana, SA
Federal-Mogul Frnction Products SA
Federal-Mogul Ibenca. S L

F-M Holding Daros AB

Federal-Mogul Goteborg AB

Federal-Mogul Holding Sweden AB

Federal-Mogul GmbH

Federal-Mogul {Thadand) Ltd

Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Genmany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Guernsey
Heong Kong
Hong Kong
Hungary

Hungary
India

India
India
India
India
India
Ttaly
Italy
Japan

-

Kotea
Korea
Korea
Luxembourg
Maurtius 1s
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Moroceo
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Poland
Poland
Russia
Russta
Singapore
South Affica
Spain
Spamn
Spain
Sweden
Sweden
Sweden
Switzertand
Thaland

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
66 7%
66 6%
100 %
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
63 9%
75 0%
100 0%
62 7%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 %
100 0%
100 0%
104 0%
100 0%
100 $%
95 4%
98 3%
100 8%
100 4%
100 0%
109 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
95 0%
100 0%
100 0%
104 0%
100 0%
100 0%
510%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%




AE Internanonal Limuted

AE Limited

Federal-Mogu! Aftermarket UK Limned
Federal-Mogul Asia Investments Limited
Federal-Mogul Bradford Limited
Federal-Mogul Camshaft Casungs Limited
Federal-Mogul Camshaft Limited

Federal-Mogul (Continental European Operations) Limited
Federal-Mogul Employee Trust Admimstration Lirnated

Federal-Mogul Engineenng Limited
Federal-Mogul Export Services Limited
Federal-Mogul Fricuon Products Limuted
Federal-Mogul Global Growth Limited
Federal-Mogul Sealing Systems Limuted
Federal-Mogul Sinteted Products Limited
F-M International Limited

F-M Trademarks Limtted

Sintration Limated

FDML Holdings Limited
Federal-Mogul UK Investments Lumuted
Federal-Mogul Limited

Piston Rings (UK) Ltd,

Saxid Limated

Wellworthy Limuted

McCord Sealing, Inc

Federal-Mogul Finance | LLC
Federal-Mogul Finance 2, LLC
Federal-Mogul Global LLC
Federal-Mogul Igmuion Company
Federal-Mogul Piston Rings, In¢
Federal-Mogul Powertrain IP, LLC
Federal-Mogul Transaction LLC
Federal-Mogul Yehicle Component Solunions Inc
Ferodo Amenca, Inc

FM Internauonal, LLC

Muzzy-Lyon Auto Parts, Inc

T&N Industries Inc

V8 Quest Acquisiion LLC
Federal-Mogul Powertrain, Inc
Federal-Mogul World Wide, Inc
Federal-Mogul Products, Inc
Federal-Mogul de Venezuela, C A
Federal-Mogul (Viemam) Ltd

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Uk

UK

UK

UK
US-Alabama
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Delaware
US-Michigan
US-Michigan
US-Missourt

Venezuela
Vietnem

100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
160 0%
100 0%
166 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
00 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
1) 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
100 0%
160 8%
100 0%




CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have 1ssued our reports dated February 24, 2014, with respect to the consolidated financial staternents, schedule, and mternal contro over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Federal-Mogul Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 We hereby consent to the
incorporation by reference of said reports in the Registration Statements of Federal-Mogul Corporation on Form §-8 (File No 333- 168508) and Form S-3 (File
Neo 333-1874249)

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Southfield, Michigan
February 24, 2014




CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference i the Registration Statements (Form S-3 No 333-187424 and Form S-8 No  333-168508) of Federal-Mogul
Corporatzon of our report dated February 28, 2012 (except for Notes 2 and 10 as to which the date 1s February 27, 2013 and Notes 1, 3, 4, 5, 9, 14, 15, 21
and 24 as to which the datc 15 November 1, 2013), with respect to the conschdated financial statements and schedule of Federal-Mogul Corporation for the
year ended December 31, 2011, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2013

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 24, 2014




POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of Federal-Mogul Cerporation (the “Company™), hereby apponts Brett D Pynnonen and Rajesh Shah, and each of them
individually, bis true and lawful attorney-in-fact or attomeys-1n-fact, with full power of substitutton, for and 1n hus name, place, and stead, to affix, as
attorney-in-fact, his signature, by manual or facsimile signature, electronic transmission or otherwise, to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for
1ts fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, and any and all amendments thereto to be filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commussion, under the provisions
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with power to file said Annual Report and such amendments, and any and alf other documents that may
be required 1n connection therewith, with the Secunities and Exchange Commussion, hereby granting unto said attorneys-m-fact, and each of them, full power
and authonty te do and perform any and ali acts and things requisite or appropniate 1n connection therewrth, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or
could do 1n person, hereby raufying and confirming all that smd attorneys-n-fact or any of them may lawfully do or cause 1o be done by virtue hereof

This Power of Attorney may be executed 1n multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an oniginal with respect to the person executing 1t

SIGNATURES
Director February 24, 2014
George Feldenkreis
F
Dhrector ebruary 24, 2014
J Michael Laisure
F 4
Director ebruary 24, 201
Nel S Subin
February 24, 2014
Dhrector

James H Vandenberghe




Exhibit 311

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securmies Exchange Act of 1934

. Rainer Juecksiock, the Co-Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Corporation (the “Company}, certify that

1
2

[ have reviewed this annual repont on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporation,

Based on my knowledge, this report docs not contan any unirue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, 1 hight of the carcumstances under which such statements were made, not musieading with respect to the penod covered by thus

report,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all matenal respects the
financial condition, results of operattons and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report,

The registrant’s other cerufying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and mantaiming disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 1n
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal controd over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have

a

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, ncluding 1ts consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others wathin
those entities, particularly duning the period 1n which this report 15 being prepared,

Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliabality of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Evaluated the effectivencss of the registrant’s disclosure contrels and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation, and

Disclosed 1n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarier in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected or 15 reasonably likely
to materally affect, the regtstrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of mternal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commutice of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performeng the equivalent functions)

a

All sigmificant deficiencies and material weaknesses 1n the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and

Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that mvolves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

' Date February 24, 2014

By /s/ Ramer Jueckstock
Ramer Jueckstock

Co-Chuef Execuuve Officer, Federal-Mogul Corporation Chief Executtve
QOfficer, Powertramn Division




Exhibit 31 2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securihes Exchange Act of 1934

I Dantel A Nmvagg, the Co-Chief Executive Officer of Federal-Mogul Corporatien (the “Company™), certify that

6 [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mopu! Corporation,

7 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contam any untrue statement of a material fact or omut to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made, in hight of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not musteading with respect to the peniod covered by this
report,

8 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial mformation included in this report, fairly present in ail matenal respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report,

9 The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishung and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and intermal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)} for the registrant and have

a

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consohidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period 1n which thus report 1s being prepared,

Designed such intecnal control over financial ceporung, or caused such wnternal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiat reporung and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting pnneiples,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the pertod covered by this report based on such evaluanon, and

Dusclosed n this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporung that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenially affected. or 15 reasonably likely
to matenally affect, the registrant’s mternal control over financial reporting, and

10 The regsirant’s other ceruifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal contrel over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commnttee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions)

a

All sigmificant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, swnmanze and report financial information, and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a sigmficant role in the registrant’s itemal
control over financial reporting

Date February 24, 2014

By s/ Damel A Nimvaggi

Danrel A Nimwvagg!
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogu! Corporation
Chief Execunve Officer, VCS Division

o




Exhibit 31 3

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

1, Rajesh Shah, the Chief Financial Officer of Federal-Mogul Corporation {the “Company™), certtfy that

1 I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporatien,

2 Bascd on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omit to state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made, tn hight of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the pentod covered by this
report,

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial mformation included in this report, fairly present 1n all matenal respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented in this report,

4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for estabhishing and maintaiming disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢}) and internal contrel over financial reporting (as defined m Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the reg:strant and have

a Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that matenal mnformation refating to the registrant, including tts consolidated subsidianes, 1s made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared,

b Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such interal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliablity of financial reporting and the preparation of financiai statements for
external purposes i accordance with genenlly accepted accounting principles,

c Evaluated the cffcctiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented 1n this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluatien, and

d Disclosed in this report any change 1n the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred dunng the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the regisirant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuai report) that has materially affected, or 1s reasonably likely
to matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of mtemnal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions)

a All significant deficiencies and matenal weaknesses 1n the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summanze and report financial informaton, and

b Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 1n the registrant’s intemal
control over financial reporung

Date February 24, 2014

By /s/Rajesh Shah
Rajesh Shah
Sensor Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to 18 United States Code § 1350 and

Exhibit 32

Rule 13a-14(b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

The Undersigned hereby certifies that to tus knowledge the annual report on Form 10-K of Federal-Mogul Corporation {the “Company™) filed with the
Secunties and Exchange Commussien on the date hereof fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Secunues Exchange Act of 1934
and that the information contamed 1n such annual repont fairly presents, m all matenal respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company

A signed engmal of this wntien statement, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signatures that appear in typed form
withm the electronic version of this written statement, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and fumished 1o the Securities

and Exchange Commussion or its staff upon request

Datc February 24, 2014

By

By

By

s/ Ramer Jueckstock

Rainer Jueckstock
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogu! Cerporation
Chuef Executive Officer, Powertrain Division

/s/ Damiel A Nimivagg

Daniel A Ninivagg:
Co-Chief Executive Officer, Federal-Mogul Corporation
Chief Executive Officer, VCS Division

/s/ Rajesh Shah

Rajesh Shah
Sentor Vice President and
Chief Financtal Officer




